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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH
ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
“STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached than
other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in
such companies and should make the decision to invest only after
due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to
professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of the companies listed on GEM, there is
a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to
high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a
liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the
contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy
or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever
for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole
or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Kong
Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited (the
“Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility,
includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEM (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to
the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained
in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects
and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters
the omission of which would make any statement herein or this
report misleading.
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GROUP STRUCTURE
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Kong Shum Union Property Management

(Holding) Limited

BARBAYEREER (EBR) ARAR

100%

Kong Shum Union Property Management

Group Limited
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Kong Shum Union .
Pro e%t Management Q&v K-King
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Incorporations: Nature of Services
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Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited Cayman Islands Investment holding
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Kong Shum Property Management Group Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding
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Kong Shum Union Property Management Company Limited Hong Kong Provision of property management services

BABEMEBERARA B R R ERIRTS

Q & V Security Company Limited Hong Kong Provision of security services

GREGHEER AR 0 RERZ RB

K-King Cleaning Services Limited Hong Kong Provision of cleaning services by subcontracting
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of Kong Shum
Union Property Management (Holding) Limited (the “Company”),
| hereby present the annual report of the Company and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2016.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group’s principal
activity was provision of property management services.

During the year under review, the Group continued its
development efforts to stay competitive in the market. Under our
property management portfolio, we have been awarded 21
management contracts in residential and commercial projects
mainly including Grander Gardens with 624 units, Western
Garden with 435 units, One Terminal with 300 units and Ko Nga
Court with 229 units.

During the year under review, we witnessed a gradual and orderly
shift in the business direction of the Group. The Group has been
providing property management services in Hong Kong since its
establishment in 1984. Riding on the rapid E-Commerce
development, the Group has also started to explore opportunities
in the E-Commerce sector actively. On 21 June 2015, the
Company entered into a Subscription and Shareholders’
Agreement with All Profit Alliance Limited (“All Profit”) in jointly
developing the mobile application, namely, “Yes Master!”. The
mobile application is a virtual concierge providing all-rounded
personal and household services to users. The investment was
completed on 30 June 2015. “Yes Master!” was officially
launched in August 2015 and All Profit has been generating
revenue.

CHAIRMAN'’S STA'[EMENT
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QHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FEHRE

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2016, revenue of the Group was
approximately HK$374.0 million (2015: approximately HK$339.7
million), representing an increase of 10.1% as compared with last
year. Consolidated gross profit of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2016 was approximately HK$78.3 million (2015:
approximately HK$70.4 million), representing an increase of
approximately 11.1% as compared with last year. The percentage
on profit attributable to owners decreased by approximately 0.7
percentage point approximately from 1.5% for the year ended 31
March 2015 to 0.8% for year ended 31 March 2016.

The earnings per share for the year ended 31 March 2016 was
HK$0.006 (2015: HK$0.012).

The Group would like to share more details of the Group’s
performance, financial position and operation in the year
2015/2016 with shareholders in the following section of
management discussion and analysis.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The number of property in Hong Kong market is expanding.
Public opinion voices concern over housing stock production and
the speeding up of the issue of housing completion in the near
future is expected to solve the issue of heavy demand on housing.
It is envisaged that the property management business will
expand simultaneously.

In the near future, we will continue to expand our management
portfolio by capturing the continuing outsourcing activities
implemented by private residential owners, corporations and
government institutions. We are currently exploring suitable
business opportunities to commence and there are two major
growth opportunities for the Company. The first one is growth of
the existing property management business. Since we started
property management business in 1984, giving our customers the
best service has always been our goal. Over the years, we have
grown into one of the largest property management companies in
Hong Kong. Leveraging on our experience and scale of business,
we are seeking acquisition opportunities to expand the current
property management business, since acquisition will produce
economy of scale and synergy. At the time of writing, the
Company has entered into agreement for the acquisition of
another property management company. We shall continue to
seek acquisition opportunities in the coming years to achieve
growth in the current business.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited

BRBEYFEEE (ZR)ERQF

L %
_e

EHOE (&)

HE201643A31BItFEE  AEBEK
#® % /374,000,000 JT(20154F © #
339,700,000/ 7T) * REF £F10.1%
B E2016F3A31BIEFE  AEEEL
& EMH 578,300,000 7T (2015 4F : 4
70,400,000 7T ) ® & F £ H B
11.1% - B AEAE 2T B EZE 2015 3
A31BIEEEXL5% FTEKL0.7EE »H
BEHE2016F3A31HILFER0.8% °

BZE2016F3 A3 HIFE  EREMNE
0.006787T (20154 - 0.012/&7T) °

REBENRTXEREN RO —6
R D ZEE ZAEB 20152016 F E
HIRIE - BIFSAR R N B RIS ©

R A=

BMEDHNMEBETEZN - 2R
mFF%&@Ei A IR AR TR A TR
KM ARATERTLAE - RERXR
o MREBRXBRRASER -

RARKR - RAGEERBILELALR
TEX  ABRBARBETNREINE
EBARREMNEREMAS - RFMBATE
REFAREFNEERS  MARRNE
METEERKS F-EARERREYD
FEBER - BB 1984 FHERMFEE
X% G TEPRERBASEMANRE -
REZF BRACBERKEBEZSAVEE
BRAZ—  HRNKRBHEERREER
Tmﬂxﬁlf IR IE RS B R X RAR
SHhkEge WHRAAMEEER
e MAREBH ARRERKES—
B EEIE QBT LI o RFHPIAGHAE
ESRWERS  BRAXBEMEER -



LN

N—

Expansion of our property management business is also in line
with current government policy. The government is going ahead
with licensing property management companies as well as
practitioners. This may bring about higher operation costs, and
not all property management companies are willing or able to
compete at that level. With our solid track record, highly trained
staff and effective cost-control measures, we may be able to
capture growth opportunities under such licensing policy by
carrying out acquisition.

Enhancing our service is always our goal. With the rapid growth of
communication technology, we are looking at opportunities to
combine technology with our existing property management
service at various levels. E-commerce is one of the possible areas
where the Company has already ventured into. We are also
looking into other areas where technology will beef up our
property management capabilities as well as bringing added value
to our business.

Another growth opportunity is in property development. Over the
many years we have built up a long-term relationship with many
of our customers, whose needs change over time. As their
buildings age, they are looking for more than simple property
management, such as major retrofitting to prolong the usable life
of buildings, or redevelopment of their buildings to enhance
property value. To accommodate our customers’ needs, we have
devised plans to expand our business into property assembly,
redevelopment, and/or property investment of aged buildings
whether under our management or not.

Redeveloping and retrofitting old buildings is a growing business
in Hong Kong as the number of old buildings keeps on increasing,
outgrowing the pace of redevelopment. We are in an
advantageous position to develop this business since we have
developed and are maintaining an extensive network with our
customers, many of whom are also owners of these old buildings.
We are setting up a property development team for this new
business, engaging both new and existing staff; and are planning
to expand our equity base to provide necessary capital for the
business. We are also actively seeking business partners to
produce synergy, leveraging on our relationship with our
customers and expertise of our partners. At the time of writing, we
have signed a Strategic Partnership Framework Agreement with a
property developer to increase the pace of this business
expansion as well as to control business risks.

CHAIRMAN'’S STA'[EMENT
FEHRE
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFHRE

We are confident that the property development business will
bring added value to our shareholders and investors.
Redevelopment of old buildings is a growing business, and we are
in an advantageous position to capture such business
opportunities. Acquisition of property management companies
and property development business will be twin-prong direction
for expansion of the Company in the coming years.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my warmest
gratitude to the management and our staff for their significant
contributions. | would like to extend my sincere gratitude to all our
shareholders and investors for their endless support. With the
solid business base and the effort of all our staff, the Group will
endeavor to open a new chapter in the future.

Yan Chi Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 June 2016

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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OVERVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of property
management services in Hong Kong primarily targeting residential
properties. The Group operates under the brand name of “Kong
Shum” and provides a range of management services including
security, repair and maintenance, cleaning, finance management,
administrative and legal support. Under an established functional
structure with various departments, the Group has dedicated
teams to carry out the aforementioned management services. The
Group also employs a team of security staff to provide security
services as part of the services provided under property
management contracts or under stand-alone security services
contracts. For the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group
provided property security services for 12 properties under stand-
alone security services contracts. The operating arm of the
Group’s security services is mainly Q & V Security Company
Limited (“Q&V"). The Group hires its own security staff to provide
property security services. The Group also employs registered
technicians to provide basic repair and maintenance services to
its customers if required. In relation to the cleaning services, the
Group subcontracts substantially all of its cleaning services to
third-party contractors.

During the period under review and riding on the rapid
e-commerce development, the Group has started to explore
opportunities in the e-commerce sector actively. This allows the
Group to provide value-added services to its customers and seek
new revenue streams. On 21 June 2015, the Company entered
into a Subscription and Shareholders’ Agreement with All Profit
Alliance Limited (“All Profit”) in jointly developing the mobile
application, namely, “Yes Master!”. The mobile application is a
virtual concierge providing all-rounded personal and household
services to users. The Group believes that the investment in All
Profit is in line with its objective to provide value-added services
to over 400 properties and around 90,000 households under its
management, and ultimately to every resident in Hong Kong. The
investment was completed on 30 June 2015. “Yes Master!” was
officially launched in August 2015 and All Profit has been
generating revenue.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DM

OVERVIEW (continued)

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated
10 July 2015 and 24 July 2015 in relation to the non-legally
binding letters of intent (the “LOIs”) entered into between (i) the
Company and IMC International Manufacturing Corporation
Limited (“IMC”) on 10 July 2015 in respect of the proposed
subscription(s) of new shares and/or convertible notes which are
convertible into new shares in IMC and (ii) the Company and
Shenzhen Yun Xin Hui Tong Financial Information Services Co.,
Ltd (“Yun Xin Hui Tong”) on 24 July 2015 in respect of the
proposed investment in Yun Xin Hui Tong (collectively, the
“Proposed Investments”). The LOls have been lapsed as at the
date of this report and the Company has decided not to proceed
with the Proposed Investments under the LOls.

R

EHOE (&)

ZIRM A AR BEIR2015F7H10R &
20157 H24 BRI - RBEBBAO) AR
Al EZIMC International Manufacturing
Corporation Limited ([IMCJ) 7220154 7 A
10 B 3t 2823 3R B8 IMC RO 37 % &3k ] 34 #2
7% IMC 37 AR 7 B #2 I =48 K (if) AR A &) B R
NEFEBRERESERBEERAR(ESR
B3 )R 2015F 7 A 24 B A EEERA
EERE(GEIEZERE DIV TAER
HARINERE(ERE] - RARER
H BREEXRM NABDRETETE
MEE THERRE -

FINANCIAL REVIEW Bt 7% = B&
Summary Financial Performance MEREME
2016 2015
2016 20154
HK$'000 HK$’000 Change
FHET FET p=iEY)
Revenue Yo &= 374,024 339,722 10.1%
Cost of services AR A AN (295,756) (269,280) 9.8%
Gross Profit EF 78,268 70,442 11.1%
Gross profit margin ER=E 20.9% 20.7% n/a -1~ iE A
Other revenue =g 1,494 349 328.1%
Administrative expenses TR Z (53,823) (44,122) 22.0%
Other operating expenses H b EE A (18,991) (18,717) 1.5%
Finance costs B &R (992) (658) 50.8%
Profit before tax B Bz A 5,956 7,294 -18.3%
Income tax expense Fristim s (3,141) (2,320) 35.4%
Profit attributable to owners ARARHEE AERGEF
of the Company 2,815 4974 -43.4%
Net profit margin #F = 0.8% 1.5% n/a N3 A

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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REVENUE

For the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2016, all of the Group’s
revenue was derived from its operation in Hong Kong. The Group
derived revenue of approximately HK$20.1 million and HK$20.2
million respectively from stand-alone security services contracts
for the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2016 respectively,
representing approximately 5.9% and 5.4% of its total revenue.
The following table sets out the Group’s revenue by contract type
for the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2016:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFNWR DM

Log

%2¢2015¢&2016$3H31E|¢¢F5
AEBMBEWREHEREEETEHNEE - 5t
%&2015%&2016@3)%315&%?
REERBBILIREREEHHUES R
# 5201088 TM20208 5T KNEE
KEEBRETRFEE DD BMEEBKEL
5.9% K 54%  TRIZGHE\EREIEH =
2015F K 20163 A31H It FEAEE
o

2016 2015
2016 & 20154
HK$ million percentage HK$ million percentage
BEBBT FEESH BEAT FEBS
Property management  #EEBRES L
services contracts 353.8 94.6% 319.6 94.1%
Property security YERERIEE L)
services contracts 20.2 5.4% 20.1 5.9%
374.0 100% 339.7 100%

The Group’s revenue improved by approximately 10.1% from
approximately HK$339.7 million for the year ended 31 March
2015 to approximately HK$374.0 million for the year ended 31
March 2016. The increase was primarily attributable to the growth
of revenue generated from property management services
contracts, increasing by approximately 10.7% to approximately
HK$353.8 million for the year ended 31 March 2016. The
increase in revenue was mainly due to adjustment of service
income after the increase in statutory minimum wage in Hong
Kong from HK$30.0 per hour to HK$32.5 per hour effective from
1 May 2015. During the year, the number of management service
contracts obtained by the Group had been increased by 3 from
419 during the year ended 31 March 2015 to 422 for the year
ended 31 March 2016. Revenue generated from security services
contracts recorded a slightly increase of approximately 0.5% to
approximately HK$20.2 million for the year ended 31 March
2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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REVENUE (continued) Yz (48)
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COST OF SERVICES PR 7% B <

The total cost of services amounted to approximately HK$269.3
million and HK$295.8 million for the years ended 31 March 2015
and 2016 respectively, representing approximately 79.3% and
79.1% respectively of the Group’s revenue. The increase of the
cost of services during the year of approximately 9.8% was mainly
due to the increase on the average salaries of the Group’s front-
line staff by the revision of statutory minimum wages from HK$30
to HK$32.5 with effective from 1 May 2015.

GROSS PROFIT

The gross profit of the Group increased by approximately 11.1%
from approximately HK$70.4 million for the year ended 31 March
2015 to approximately HK$78.3 million for the year ended 31
March 2016. The gross profit margin was approximately 20.7%
and 20.9% for years ended 31 March 2015 and 2016
respectively. The Group negotiated and adjusted the service fees
in order to reflect the increase in costs and to maintain a growth
on the gross profit margin.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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GROSS PROFIT (continued)

The following graph sets out the gross profit for the years ended
31 March 2014, 2015 and 2016.

EF
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

The profit attributable to owners was decreased by approximately
43.4% from approximately HK$4.97 million for the year ended 31
March 2015 to approximately HK$2.82 million for the year ended
31 March 2016, and the net profit margin decreased by
approximately 0.7 percentage point from approximately from
1.5% to 0.8% for the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2016
respectively.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The Group’s administrative expenses for the year ended 31
March 2016 were approximately HK$53.8 million (2015:
approximately HK$44.1 million), representing an increase of
approximately 22.0% compared to the corresponding period in
2015. This was mainly attributable to the increase in staff cost
including staff salaries, bonus, Directors’ emoluments rentals and
administrative service fee incurred during the year.

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

The Group’s other operating expenses for the year ended 31
March 2016 were approximately HK$19.0 million (2015:
approximately HK$18.7 million), representing a slightly increase
of approximately 1.5% compared to the corresponding period in
2015. The decrease was mainly due to the increase in share
option expenses and decrease in insurance, legal and
professional fee and public relation expenses incurred during the
year.

2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DM

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE
YEAR

The investment in All Profit was accounted for as available-for-
sale financial asset in the Group’s financial statements. During
the year ended 31 March 2016, the carrying amount of such
investment was reduced by approximately HK$8.7 million due to

nl 4
FRHEMEEBA

FAI Profit I ER AN KRB FmEF A
RARUHLESREE - BilE2016F3 A
JIRLFE ARAREEZES - U IER
EEmMERLH8708E T BEE—

changes in fair value. Please refer to the section “Major

investment, acquisitions and disposals” for further details. & o

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

THBBRL2HERRE BARLE] —

RBES  MBERRELRER

For the year ended/
as at 31 March
BE3A31HLEE/

M3A31H
2016 2015
2016 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Financial position B AR R
Current assets mENEE 126,888 86,735
Current liabilities nBBE 56,226 61,145
Net current assets MENEEFE 70,663 25,590
Total assets MEE 144,871 100,563
Bank borrowings and obligations IRITEE M & ERIE
under finance lease 9,175 17,145
Bank balances and cash RITEB LIRS 64,773 34,576
Total equity RS 88,342 39,287
Key ratios FEL R
Return on equity (1) AR AN B3R (1) 4.4% 10.7%
Return on assets (2) BEBWE(2) 2.3% 4.6%
Current ratio (3) MENEEE (3) 2.26 timesf%  1.42 times &
Gearing ratio (4) BEBAGELE®Y) 10.4% 43.6%
Net Debt to equity ratio (5) FEEHEREE(5) 0% 0%
Debtors turnover day (6) JE W AR SR A E B 2 (6) 45.1daysH  48.6 days H
Creditors turnover day (7) JE AR TR B B 8(7) 24.7daysH  26.2 days A

1 6 Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited

BRBEYFEEE (ZR)ERQF
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE (continued)

Notes:

1. Return on equity is calculated as the profit for the year divided by average
total equity.

2. Return on assets is calculated as the profit for the year divided by average

total assets.
3. Current ratio is calculated as the current assets divided by current liabilities.

4. Gearing ratio is calculated as the total debt divided by total equity. For the
avoidance of doubt, total debt represents bank borrowing and finance lease
obligation.

5. Net debt to equity ratio is calculated as the total debt net of cash and bank
balances and divided by total equity. For the avoidance of doubt, total debt
represents bank borrowing and finance lease obligation.

6. Debtors’ turnover day is calculated as average trade receivables divided by
revenue times number of days in the period.

7. Creditors’ turnover day is calculated as average trade payables divided by
cost of services times number of days in the period.

The Group maintained sufficient working capital as at 31 March
2016 with bank balances and cash of approximately HK$64.8
million (2015: approximately HK$34.6 million).

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had bank borrowings and
obligations under finance lease of approximately HK$9.2 million
(2015: approximately HK$17.1 million).

As at 31 March 2016, the Group’s net current assets amounted
to approximately HK$70.7 million (2015: approximately HK$25.6
million). The Group’s operations are financed principally by
revenue generated from its business operations, available cash
and bank balances and bank borrowings.

RETURN ON EQUITY

The return on equity dropped from approximately 10.7% for the
year ended 31 March 2015 to approximately 4.4% for the year
ended 31 March 2016, mainly due to the increase on average
total equity after the issuance of share upon on conversion of
convertible note and placing of shares which enlarged the
Company'’s equity during the year.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DM

RETURN ON ASSETS

The return on assets was decreased from approximately 4.6% for
the year ended 31 March 2015 to approximately 2.3% for the
year ended 31 March 2016, mainly due to the increase on
average total equity after issuance of share upon conversion of
convertible note and placing of shares which enlarged the
Company’s equity during the year.

CURRENT RATIO

The Group’s current ratio increase from approximately 1.42 times
as at 31 March 2015 to approximately 2.26 times as at 31 March
2016 mainly due to the receipt of net proceed from placing of
share during the year which enlarged the Company’s asset.

GEARING RATIO

The Group’s gearing ratio, defined as the total debt (i.e. bank
borrowing and finance lease obligation) divided by total equity, as
at 31 March 2016 is approximately 10.4% (2015: approximately
43.6%). The total bank borrowings decreased from approximately
HK$16.7 million as at 31 March 2015 to approximately HK$8.6
million as at 31 March 2016 as the Group settled the bank loan
during the reporting period. On the other hand, the Group’s total
equity increased significantly during the year ended 31 March
2016 due to issuance of share upon conversion of convertible
note and placing of shares during the year.

NET DEBT TO EQUITY RATIO

The Group’s net debt to equity ratio was 0% as at 31 March 2015
and 31 March 2016 which indicates that the Group’s has
sufficient cash and bank balances for debts repayment.

DEBTORS’ TURNOVER DAY

The debtors’ turnover day decreased from approximately 48.6
days for the year ended 31 March 2015 to approximately 45.1
days for the year ended 31 March 2016 under the monitor of the
recoverability on trade debtors.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
BRBEYEER (ZR)ERAH
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CREDITORS’ TURNOVER DAY

The creditors’ turnover day was slightly decreased from
approximately 26.2 days for the year ended 31 March 2015 to
approximately 24.7 days for the year ended 31 March 2016. The
decrease was due to the early settlement to some creditors.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2016 (2015: Nil).

OPERATION REVIEW
Outlook

The property market in the Hong Kong is expanding. Public
opinion voices concern over the housing stock production and the
speeding up of the completion of construction of properties in the
near future is expected to solve the heavy demand on housing. It
is envisaged that the property management business will expand
simultaneously. On the other hand, even though strong
competition and soaring cost resulting from statutory minimum
wage revision and inflation are unavoidable, the Directors are
confident that the Group is now on an appropriate stage to
increase its market share after the listing of the Company’s shares
on the GEM and believe that the Group will be benefited from the
listing.

We are currently exploring suitable opportunities to commence
and develop business of property development in Hong Kong,
which may include, but not limited to, (i) carrying out schemes for
property consolidation, assembly and redevelopments; and (ii)
property trading and/or investment (the ““Potential New
Business”). The Board intends to develop the Potential New
Business through selfdevelopment of the subsidiaries, and/or
investment(s) in suitable targets/assets, and/or through co-
operation by way of joint venture(s) with other parties.

Our Board has been actively exploring other business
opportunities in order to diversify the existing business of the
Group and to explore new markets with significant growth
potential.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DM

OPERATION REVIEW (continued)
Outlook (continued)

Notwithstanding the Group’s intention to explore the Potential
New Business, the existing principal business of the Group in the
provision of property management services in Hong Kong,
primarily targeting residential properties, will continue to be the
core business of the Group. The Board expects that the Potential
New Business will enable the Group to expand its business
portfolio, diversify its income source and possibly enhance its
financial performance.

Human resources

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had a total of 2,087 employees
(as at 31 March 2015: 2,109 employees). The Group’s staff costs
for the year ended 31 March 2016 amounted to approximately
HK$323.9 million (2015: HK$290.7 million). To ensure that the
Group is able to attract and retain staff capable of attaining the
best performance levels, remuneration packages are reviewed on
a regular basis. In addition, discretionary bonus is offered to
eligible employees by reference to the Group’s results and
individual performance.

Services contracts

Due to well-established team and project planning, during the
year ended 31 March 2016, 5 facility management service
contract for non-domestic property management segment which
included 3 shopping complex, 1 carpark area and 1 shop empty
bay was awarded to the Group. The success in securing the
contract gave the Group confidence to expand the property
management portfolio continuously.

As at 31 March 2016, there were in total 422 service contracts
(covering around 90,000 households) comprising 394 property
management service contracts, 13 stand-alone security service
contracts and 15 facility management service contracts.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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OPERATION REVIEW (continued)
Contract renewal complying with procedural requirements

A service contract which does not comply with the procedural
requirements for contract renewal as stipulated in section 20A of
the Building Management Ordinance (Chapter 344 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) may be cancelled by the owners’ corporation.
Included in 422 contracts in force as at 31 March 2016, 82
service contracts are not in strict compliance with the said
contract renewal requirements, hence, termination notices were
served on clients involving in these contracts. All of the remaining
340 valid contracts as at 31 March 2016 are in compliance with
the said procedural requirements or not applicable under the
Building Management Ordinance. The senior management
adopts a tight control system to monitor the full compliance of the
procedural requirements. All newly signed contracts during the
year ended 31 March 2016 included the mandatory term
requiring the client to follow the said procedural requirements, if
applicable.

Client accounts

As at 31 March 2016, the Group held 63 (as at 31 March 2015:
52 clients) client accounts amounting to approximately HK$32.4
million (as at 31 March 2015: approximately HK$21.1 million) on
trust for and on behalf of customers. These client accounts are
opened in the names of the Group and the relevant properties.
The management fees received from the tenants or owners of the
properties were deposited into these client accounts and the
expenditure of these customers was paid from these client
accounts.

Performance bond

As at 31 March 2016, the banks issued 10 (as at 31 March 2015:
13) bond certificates amounting to approximately HK$17.5 million
(as at 31 March 2015: approximately HK$18.2 million) on behalf
of the Group to the clients as required in the service contracts.

Capital expenditure

The Group purchased property, plant and equipment amounting
to approximately HK$0.9 million for the year ended 31 March
2016 (2015: approximately HK$3.2 million).

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DM

OPERATION REVIEW (continued)
Capital commitments

The Group did not have any significant capital commitments as at
31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.

Contingent liabilities

Details of contingent liabilities of the Group are set out in note 37
to the consolidated financial statements.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s business operations were conducted in Hong Kong.
The transactions, monetary assets and liabilities of the Group
were mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollar. During the year
ended 31 March 2016, there was no material impact to the Group
arising from the fluctuation in the foreign exchange rates between
the currencies.

The Group did not engage in any derivatives arrangement and did
not commit to any financial instruments to hedge its foreign

exchange exposure during the year ended 31 March 2016.

Major investment, acquisitions and disposals

Acquisition of interest in All Profit

On 10 May 2015, the Company entered into a memorandum of
understanding with All Profit in relation to a proposed business
cooperation in jointly (i) developing a mobile application, namely,
“Yes Master!”, which aims to provide one-stop household support
to its users to gain access to a number of value-added services
surrounding their households, in the areas of market place, social
networking, resident bulletin and community services; and (ii)
setting up a two-way communication Internet platform among the
property management companies, incorporated owners, service
providers and its users in any building or property estates in Hong
Kong.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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OPERATION REVIEW (continued)
Major investment, acquisitions and disposals (continued)
Acquisition of interest in All Profit (continued)

On 21 June 2015, the Company, All Profit and Capital Creation
(BVI) Limited (“Capital Creation”), as the shareholder of All Profit
after the reorganisation including (i) transfer of one share of All
Profit from the sole shareholder to Capital Creation; and (ii) the
issue and allotment of 89 new shares of All Profit to Capital
Creation at par (the “Reorganisation”), entered into the
Subscription and Shareholders’ Agreement, pursuant to which All
Profit has agreed to issue, and the Company has agreed to
subscribe for 10 new shares of All Profit at an aggregated
subscription price of HK$13 million (the “Subscription Shares”),
representing 10% of the issued share capital of All Profit as
enlarged by the allotment and issue of Subscription Shares (the
“Share Subscription”).

The Share Subscription was completed on 30 June 2015. Details
of the Share Subscription are disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 22 June 2015 and 3 July 2015
respectively.

The mobile application of “Yes Master!” was officially launched in
August 2015 and All Profit has been generating revenue.

The investment in All Profit was accounted for as available-for-
sale financial asset in the Group’s financial statements. During
the year ended 31 March 2016, the carrying amount of such
investment was reduced by approximately HK$8.7 million due to
changes in fair value. The fair value of investment in All Profit as
at 31 March 2016 was calculated based on asset approach by
Peak Vision Appraisals Limited, an independent valuer appointed
by the Company. As at 31 March 2016 the carrying amount of
such available-for-sale financial asset was approximately HK$4.3
million.

The losses arising from changes in fair value of these investments
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the investment revaluation reserve, until the investments are
disposed of or there is objective evidence that the investments are
impaired, at which time the cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified from
equity to profit or loss. Interest calculated using the effective
interest method and dividends on available-for-sale equity
investments are recognised in profit or loss.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFNWR DM

oA ()
BEERE BAREE(E)
W k% All Profit f£35 (4&)

M 2015F 6 A21H + A2 & All Profit &
R E A & K AAI Profitit 8 A Capital
Creation (BVI) Limited ([ Capital Creation /)
IR ﬁﬁ&ﬂx%ﬁ% B 0 All Profit[F &
BITMAR =288 10 B All Profit 3 A%
Tﬁ(f%’dﬁ%ﬁﬁfﬁj 15 Al Profit £ fid 3% 2 %17
RIBRMNBEARAE ZITIRA10%) - BRE
EAR13008B (KRB EIE]) - EA
B3 4% (i) ME — P& 3R [7) Capital Creation #3 3% —
A% All Profit % 7 : K (ii) [A] Capital Creation
REEEETT R BCEE 8 MK AI Profit ¥ A7 ([ 2=
#l) o

D REBEED N 20156 A 30 BEA °
BHOREBEENFBESINARRIBEA
20156 422 A K2015E7 B3A M A

mENEATRER [Yes Master!] 7201548 A
ExXHEE - Al Profit 2 EA IS -

FAI Profit I ER AN E B EHREF A
RINABAHEESHEE - Bl220165F3
A31BLFE ARAREZD WA
KEMBREERDH8708 B T o RAIl
Profitfy 3% & 72016 £3 A31 HW A R &
MARRZANBYHEMSETEER
NERBERTERSE - 1201643 A31
H @A EHEESREENRERELNA
430 8% T ©

ZERENDAELHELENEENH
fil 2 E WA PRI Rt ARE S H#
B EERENHEAERBREERR TR
EHIBERL - EREAEEME2EK
ATERNRFTBESHESENIEE
B o MAERNEEFE MﬂQ&TM
HERARIRE IR BN B R AR

Annual Report 2015/16
2015/16 F 3]

23



24

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DM

OPERATION REVIEW (continued)

Major investment, acquisitions and disposals (continued)
Acquisition of interest in All Profit (continued)

The valuation

The value of inputs used in preparing the valuation of All Profit
include the financial figures of All Profit (including its net asset
value), a market determined minority interest discount of 26.8%
and discount rate of 14.10%. The basis and assumptions of the
valuation of All Profit include:

° There will be no material changes in the business strategy of
All Profit and its operating structure;

° The unaudited financial statements of All Profit as supplied
to the valuer have been prepared in a manner which truly
and accurately reflect the financial position of All Profit as at
the respective balance sheet dates;

° Key management, competent personnel and technical staff
will all be retained to support the ongoing operations of All
Profit;

o Market trends and conditions where All Profit operates will
not deviate significantly from the economic forecasts in
general;

° Interest rates and exchange rates in the localities for the
operation of All Profit will not differ materially from those
presently prevailing;

° All relevant approvals, business certificates, licenses or other
legislative or administrative authority from any local,
provincial or national government, or private entity or
organization required to operate in the localities where All
Profit operates or intends to operate will be officially obtained
and renewable upon expiry unless otherwise stated; and

° There will be no major changes in the political, legal,
economic or financial conditions and taxation laws in the
localities in which All Profit operates or intends to operate,
which would adversely affect the revenues and profits
attributable to All Profit.
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OPERATION REVIEW (continued)

Major investment, acquisitions and disposals (continued)
Acquisition of interest in All Profit (continued)

The valuation (continued)

The valuer has adopted a combination of the asset approach to
determine the value of the Company’s equity interest in All Profit,
and the Income Approach to determine the value of
compensation in accordance with the profit guarantee of the
Company’s investment.

The asset approach is adopted because the Income Approach
would involve long-term forecasts that are not available and would
involve a high level of uncertainty in estimates and underlying
assumptions, especially since All Profit has no track record of
profitability. Since All Profit has no track record of profitability and
is still in a preliminary stage of development, the Market Approach
is not appropriate as there are no identifiable comparable
transactions or guideline public companies to form our opinion of
value.

Under the Asset Approach, the value of the equity interest is
derived by (i) assessing the market value of individual assets and
liabilities and (ii) subtracting the market value of the total liabilities
from the market value of total assets, which represents the
residual claim on the value of the business. The Asset Approach
is commonly applied in the valuation of startup businesses and
businesses in a preliminary stage of development such as All
Profit.

The Income Approach is used to determine the value of the
compensation in accordance with the profit guarantee of the
Company’s investment, since such cash flows can be reasonable
estimated.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DM

OPERATION REVIEW (continued)

Major investment, acquisitions and disposals (continued)
Acquisition of interest in All Profit (continued)

Profit Guarantee

Pursuant to the Subscription and Shareholders’ Agreement, All
Profit guarantees to the Company that the net profits of All Profit
after tax (“2016 After-Tax Profits”) for the period from 20 March
2015 (date of incorporation of All Profit) to 30 June 2016 shall
not be less than HK$10,000,000 (the “Guaranteed Profits
Amount”). If the 2016 After-Tax Profit of All Profit falls below the
Guaranteed Profits Amount, All Profit shall allot and issue to the
Company such number of new All Profit Shares representing 10%
of the then issued share capital of All Profit enlarged by the
allotment and issue of new Shares and the Guarantee Profit
Amount shall be extended for a further 12 months to the year
ending 30 June 2017 (the “Extended Profit Guarantee”). If the
net profit of the Company after tax for the year ended 30 June
2017 (“2017 After-Tax Profits”) is less than that Extended Profit
Guarantee, All Profit shall compensate the Company for the
shortfall (the “Compensation”) calculated as follows:

The difference between the 2017 After-Tax Profit and the
Extended Profit Guarantee x 13 x 20%.

For the avoidance of doubt, if the 2017 After-Tax Profit is zero or
a negative amount, the following formula will be adopted in
calculating the amount of the Compensation:

HK$10,000,000.00 x 13 x 20%

Notwithstanding the above, the Company shall have the absolute
right to request All Profit to issue and allot to the Company such
number of additional new All Profit Shares representing 5% of the
then issued share capital of the of All Profit as enlarged by the
allotment and issue of such new Shares in lieu of the
Compensation.

The Company has also entered into a sale and purchase
agreement for the acquisition of a property management
business. For details, please refer to the paragraphs headed
“Acquisition of Property Management Business” in this section.

Save for the above, the Group did not have any major investment,
acquisition or disposal during the year ended 31 March 2016

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
BRBEYEER (ZR)ERAH

< ¥y

R mpE (&)

EERE BARHKE (E)
Y B8 Al Profit 25 (48)

o TR

RIE RIS M AR ER %  All Profit 12K A &) 4
££ + All Profit 8 20154 3 A 20 B (All Profit
SMAK BER) 2016456 A30 B B
B BAR ([ 2016 FHREZER ) BT
#10,000,000/8 7T ([ &R G F S5 ]) 4
All Profit #2016 4F Bk %1 1% 4 FIME 7 B R &
FI€ %8 + All Profit ZE M) A2 R B 3 R 31T
13 BB M E A Profit 4 Bt 2% R 31T IR
MBERKEBEHE R EITRALI0% M FAI
Profit it fn » RIEREFSERE TR
12fE AR EH=2017F6 308 EFE([1E
RO M ER 1) o Al ProfitE 22017 F6
A30H IEFEMBRMBAF ([2017 FRH
&mF D IERERZFIER - All Profit M)
ARARBERB(HE]  2BEUTH

2017 SRR B &5 A B A RO M E RO Z 7R
X 13%x20% °

R ERME - M2017 FRBERF AT
BHEERE  AIRAATANGEBEDRE

10,000,000.0078 7T % 13X 20%

BE LA - AAR)EEAR ZKAI Profit[A]
RN BIEETT REE IR0 B 2B 8 E 7 All Profit
AL EE RBITH RO IEREHE DT
P& 7K 5% &Y 8 4N # All Profit B 15 89 48 %t 42
F o AR E -

ZN/NCIDNSNE G E S=BEE ] VA
Wik - BRRHISR2HAR [WEME
X5l —Be

—
=

B

mp Wl

B FitESN - B E2016FE3A318IEFE -
AEFBTETMEBRE - BASHE -



LN

N—

OPERATION REVIEW (continued)
Charges over assets of the Group

As at 31 March 2016, certain bank deposits of approximately
HK$7.6 million (as at 31 March 2015: approximately HK$5
million) and the deposits placed for life insurance policies of
approximately HK$8.0 million (as at 31 March 2015:
approximately HK$7.7 million) were pledged to a bank to secure
banking facilities granted to the Group. Besides, the Group had
certain motor vehicles acquired under finance lease. The carrying
value of motor vehicles under finance lease amounted to
approximately HK$0.7 million and HK$0.8 million as at 31 March
2016 and 31 March 2015 respectively.

The deposits placed for life insurance policies are denominated in
United States dollars, a currency other than the functional
currency of the Group.

Change of Controlling Shareholders

On 28 August 2015, the Board informed the shareholders of the
Company that based on the information provided by Wiser Capital
Management Limited (“Wiser Capital”), a controlling shareholder
of the Company immediately before the Disposal (as defined
below) which is wholly owned by Mr. Liu Dan (“Mr. Liu”), the
former Chairman, an Executive Director and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company at that time, (i) as disclosed in the joint
announcement dated 27 November 2014 jointly issued by the
Company and Wiser Capital, Kingston Securities Limited
(“Kingston Securities”) granted a standby facility to Wiser Capital,
pursuant to which Wiser Capital agreed to pledge 300,000,000
Shares (the “Pledged Shares”) to Kingston Securities for the said
facility; and (ii) on 28 August 2015, Wiser Capital initiated the
disposal of 200,000,000 Pledge Shares to the market (the
“Disposal”), representing 50.0% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of the Disposal, to settle the outstanding
loans granted to Wiser Capital pursuant to the said facility. Before
the Disposal, Wiser Capital was interested in 297,760,000 Shares,
representing 74.4% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of the Disposal. After the Disposal, Wiser Capital
ceased to be a controlling shareholder of the Company.

On 2 September 2015 and 9 September 2015, Mr. Liu disposed
of 10,000,000 and 87,760,000 shares of the Company on the
market respectively. Such disposals represented approximately
2.50% and 21.14% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of the respective disposal. Subsequent to the said
disposals of shares, Mr. Liu ceased to be a shareholder of the
Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DM

OPERATION REVIEW (continued)

Proposed Open Offer and the Proposed Change in Board
Lot Size

On 3 December 2015, the Board announced that the Company
proposed to raise not less than approximately HK $178.3 million
and not more than approximately HK$185.5 million (before
expenses) by way of an open offer of not less than 1,485,454,545
Offer Shares and not more than 1,545,454 545 Offer Shares at a
subscription price of HK$0.12 per Offer Share on the basis of
three (3) Offer Shares for every one (1) existing Share held on the
Record Date (the “Proposed Open Offer”).

The Board also proposed, subject to the passing of all the
necessary resolution(s) by the Independent Shareholders at an
extraordinary general meeting to approve the Open Offer and the
transactions contemplated thereunder, to change the board lot
size for trading of the Shares from 8,000 Shares to 16,000 Shares
(“Proposed Change in Board Lot Size”).

Details of the Proposed Open Offer and Proposed Change in
Board Lot Size are disclosed in the Company’s announcements
dated 3 December 2015, 11 January 2016 and 5 February 2016.

Termination of the Proposed Open Offer and the Proposed
Change in Board Lot Size

In view of the then recent volatile market conditions, the Company
and the underwriter to the Proposed Open Offer (the
“Underwriter”) considered that it would be inexpedient or
inadvisable to proceed with the Proposed Open Offer and have
therefore mutually agreed to terminate the underwriting
agreement in respect of the Proposed Open Offer (the
“Underwriting Agreement”). As such, the Company and the
Underwriter entered into a termination agreement (the
“Termination Agreement”) on 21 April 2016 (after trading hours)
to terminate the Underwriting Agreement by mutual consent with
immediate effect. Pursuant to the Termination Agreement, all
rights and obligations of the parties under the Underwriting
Agreement shall cease to have any effect except that the
termination will not affect any accrued rights and obligations of
the parties prior to the date of the Termination Agreement and
each party has no claim against each other in connection with the
Underwriting Agreement save for any antecedent breaches.
Accordingly, the Proposed Open Offer did not proceed.
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OPERATION REVIEW (continued)

Termination of the Proposed Open Offer and the Proposed
Change in Board Lot Size (continued)

Taking into consideration the termination of the Proposed Open
Offer, the Shares will remain to be traded in the existing board lot
size of 8,000 Shares each and the Proposed Change in Board Lot
Size had not been made.

Details of the termination of the Proposed Open Offer and
Proposed Change in Board Lot Size are disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 21 April 2016.

Proposed Acquisition of Property Cleaning Business

On 5 February 2016 (after trading hours), the Board announced
that the Company, as potential purchaser, entered into a non-
legally binding memorandum of understanding (the “MOU") with
potential vendors (the “Potential Vendors”). Pursuant to the MOU,
the Company intends to acquire, and the Potential Vendors intend
to dispose of, the entire issued share capital in a company that is
principally engaged in the business of providing property cleaning
services (the “Proposed Acquisition”). As at the date of the MOU,
the Potential Vendors collectively hold the entire issued share
capital in the target company.

Up to 21 March 2016, no formal agreement has been entered
into between the Company and the Potential Vendors, nor have
the Company and the Potential Vendors reached any agreement
to extend the exclusivity period stated in the MOU. As such, the
MOU lapsed on 21 March 2016 and the Company were released
from all obligations thereunder, save for any liability arising out of
any antecedent breaches.

Detail of these announcements are disclosed in the Company’s
announcements dated 5 February 2016 and 21 March 2016.

As at the date of this report, the Company has decided not to
pursue any further discussion with the Potential Vendors in
respect of the aforesaid acquisition.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DM

OPERATION REVIEW (continued)

Acquisition of Property Management Business

On 3 March 2016, the Company entered into a non-legally
binding memorandum of understanding, pursuant to which, the
Company intends to acquire the entire issued share capital in a
company (the “Target Company”) that is principally engaged in
the business of providing property management services in Hong
Kong.

On 26 May 2016, Kong Shum Union Property Management
Group Limited (the “Purchaser”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a sale and purchase agreement (the
“Agreement”) with independent third parties (the “Vendors”),
pursuant to which the Vendors have agreed to sell, and the
Purchaser has agreed to purchase, the entire issued share capital
of the Target Group at a total consideration of HK$2,500,000,
payable by cash (the “Acquisition”).

Completion of the Acquisition is subject to the fulfillment of all the
conditions precedent in the Agreement. Upon completion of the
Acquisition, the Purchaser will own 100% of the issued share
capital and the Target Company will become an indirect wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company. As such, the financial results
of the Target Company will be consolidated into the accounts of
the Group.

Detail of the memorandum of understanding and the Agreement
are disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 3 March
2016 and 26 May 2016. Up to the date of this report, this
acquisition has not been completed.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OPERATION REVIEW (continued)

Comparison of business objectives with actual business

progress

An analysis comparing the business objectives as set out in the
prospectus of the Company dated 30 September 2013 (the
“Prospectus”) for the period from 20 September 2013, being the
latest practicable date as defined in the Prospectus (“LPD"), to
31 March 2016 (the “Review Period”) with the Group’s actual

business progress for the Review Period is set out as follows:

Business objectives stated in
the Prospectus
BRERAALELBE
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Actual business progress

Expansion of the
property management
portfolio
RYXEEAS

Hire additional professional as
maintenance surveyors and
building services engineers;
EEEZEEATEETRENE
A 2 2 EE AR 75 TAZAD

Establish a new property
management team with one
property manager, one executive
manager and two administrative
staff;
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Prepare promotional materials;

RES B

commence provision of
management services to sixteenth
new non-residential properties;
FisR TR IEETET
REEER

During the period, one Property and Facility
Management Division Surveyor was hired and
some engineers will join the working group in
future.
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Subsequent to the formation of the working
group comprising of different professionals,
such as the Registered Housing Managers and
the Chartered Surveyors, the Group has taken
part in tendering of various non-domestic
property management contracts including
carparks, shopping complex, government office
building and educational institute, etc.
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During the period, the Group has commenced
provision of management services to sixteenth
new non-residential properties.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERE W R DM

OPERATION REVIEW (continued)

Comparison of business objectives with actual business

progress (continued)

Business objectives stated in
the Prospectus
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Actual business progress

- Purchase additional equipment

such as car park control

equipment and elevated working

platforms for the expanded
customer portfolio;
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The success in acquiring the above-mentioned
contracts is encouraging and has proved our
efforts for the past year. The Group has great
confidence in exploring and expanding the
Company’s pre-determined goal of facilities
management portfolio continuously in the
future.
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Purchase of additional equipment has yet to be
made. In order to provide better services,
additional equipment will be provided to the
expanded customer portfolio after further
investigation on the demand and cost.
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To attract potential carpark clients, the Group
has formulated business plans on operation,
demand and supply, cost effectiveness, energy-
saving, equipment and promotional strategy etc.
Most of these plans are being reviewed by the
potential clients.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OPERATION REVIEW (continued)

Comparison of business objectives with actual business

progress (continued)

Business objectives stated in
the Prospectus

ERERAMAXE RS

BEEFNWR DM

REmE (&)
EBEERERIBEELE (R)

Actual business progress

—  continue to take part in tendering
of various non-residential property
management contracts; and
BE2NZBIEETYXER
BANEZE &

To further expand our property management
portfolio, staff of the marketing team will
continue to take part in tendering of various
non-residential property management contracts
which include:
RE—TERZMANMEEEES  MBEE
BB TREE2EBEREEIETYEE
BEeH  EReRE:

—  Chai Wan Industrial Centre

— XEFLIXKE

— New East Sun Industrial Building

— FeEIXXE

— Southorn Commercial Building

— PBEEERE

— Kai Fuk Industrial Centre (Kowloon Bay)
— NEEMBIZEHRL

—  Wang Lung Industrial Building (Tsuen Wan)
— RELEIXKE

— The Jade Plaza (Jordan)

— hHERES

—  Kwun Tong Industrial Centre

— EEIZEFRDL

— Wah Tat Industrial Centre

— EETEHD

—  The Capital

— BHES
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DM

OPERATION REVIEW (continued)

Comparison of business objectives with actual business
progress (continued)

Business objectives stated in
the Prospectus

ERERAMAXE RS

< ¥y

REmE (&)
EBEERERIBEELE (R)

Actual business progress

—  evaluate the business plan
performance.

BEEE IR PoE

In the past two years, the Group always strives
to expand the customer based by putting more
resources into management of non-residential
properties. We had been awarded totally 16
facilities management service contracts which
include different segments such as, shopping
complexes, educational institutes, empty bay,
car park and shop. Benefited from the award of
these contracts, the Group succeeded in
developing and growing its property
management portfolio in Hong Kong.
RIBEMTF - AEE—BRIEBRAFEEEY
¥ ERRMELZERBEARTPR - KFEES
HAROBRREBRBEL  RETR S -
YR BAEKE 20 FESRE
JE o REERTEHNZHN - REEXNNEE
FMEREREMEEERMAS -

Our strategy of expanding the property
management portfolio has achieved good growth
of the Group’s revenue. The Group’s revenue
reported an increase of approximately 10.1%
during the year ended 31 March 2016 as
compared with same period of last year and the
total number of service contracts were increased
from 411 to 422 since Date of Listing.
BIEAYEERESHNERD AAEE K
HIFRIFIER - AEEREZ 201653 A31
HIEFE 2 MH R B EF R HG ML

10.1% - lRFGE W@ 8 T AMREH411HD

EZS AP )

The Group will continue to develop and expand
its property management portfolio in Hong
Kong.
REBKEENTERELRBAEYEER

ERI

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited

BRBEYFEEE (ZR)ERQF
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OPERATION REVIEW (continued)

Implementation of the old district property management
scheme

A group of old tenement buildings in To Kwa Wan, which were
renovated a few years ago, were found having structural damages
in August 2013. The Buildings Department officials inspected the
buildings immediately and promptly declared the buildings
dangerous. Occupants were ordered to vacate the buildings
within a relatively short period of time. Community concerns were
widely reported by the mass media. In December 2013, the
Urban Renewal Authority voluntarily involved and speedily
implemented the renewal project for the buildings with lucrative
compensation packages for the owners. Old building owners
understand the minor repairs will improve the buildings to an
acceptable standard but the old buildings constructed at the then
outdated building standard may impose potential danger resulted
from aging, climate changes and environmental factors. Also,
after this incident, it was envisaged the Urban Renewal Authority
may step in to redevelop the old buildings so as to avoid adverse
criticism, if they are condemned unsafe.

Since then, the old district property management scheme
gradually encountered unfavorable responses and determent in
the past years. Many old building owners now wait for their flats
to be acquired and redeveloped. It is apparent the market has
been changing drastically recently. Though efforts were
endeavored to promote the scheme in the targeted old districts,
unfortunately, they were in vain. For cost effectiveness, the
establishment of one property management team for the year
ended 31 March 2016 was restrained and no expenditure related
to the scheme for the said period was incurred. During that period
of time, the Company continued to assign senior staff and their
subordinates to promote the scheme and research the property
market. The recent developments and observations are
summarized as below:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFNWR DM
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EREEYREES

BEFERECETENBCENLINEEFE
B N2013F8AMBIRAEBEE - E
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/T - N2013F 128 mREEZBEME
NA - ARAZEFERBIIER - B
FTRHSERE EEEF THE - A
BIEBAISKEEEEEIKE  HE
BREEKERR AR El  RirEE
MIRBREMBEXBELER - 1IN EE
INEEER - WEESMHARLE  BHME
EERARNAER  UWHEEREIT -

Btz RNiBEk—F ERVFEERE
EIRERHEARTE  FZERETR
FEFEEMERBRER -BATSA
H—EE2H2 - BERMER IR BE
ERHTHE - BRAEIREGRRE - BLK
Ay zEmME - BE201653A31H IFEE -
R MEETBEEBRIERS] - MZHHEA
WEEEEBTENMAS - RZEBERN -
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EIRETYET SR - R RER
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DM

OPERATION REVIEW (continued)

Implementation of the old district property management
scheme (continued)

1.

Persistently high real estate prices

Inspite of the government’s determination to curb the
soaring real estate prices and the levy of Double Stamp
Duty, real estate prices remained high in 2015. Prevailing
long term planning aiming to solve the problem takes years
to increase the housing stocks. The Directors perceive that
most of the owners of the old buildings speculate the values
of their properties are most favorable from now to a couple
of years later or till the tension of land supply is relieved. As
such, they incline to dispose of their properties rather than
revitalizing them for better and safe living condition.

Scarcity of land supply

In 2015 and the first quarter of 2016, a major land resumption
plan in the New Territories by the Hong Kong government
faced strong opposition and saw a major setback. While the
government encounters formidable opposition and obstruction
in acquiring land for development, relaxing and promoting the
redevelopment of old buildings including factory and other non-
residential buildings are advocated. Consequently, it is
expected that there will be strong demand for redevelopment
of old buildings. The heavy demand on acquisition of these
types of buildings further discourages the old building owners
to improve their buildings with the hope for early
redevelopment.

Community support

The old buildings are owned by individual owners and do
not have incorporated owners establishment at large. The
Group’s planning to promote and implement the old building
management scheme is influenced by the views and support
of the local leaders. Though their responses were favorable
and promising initially before the Company was listed on 11
October 2013, there was less support from those social
leaders in recent years. The Directors believe the change in
attitude is attributable to the reasons explained above and
the recent social and political atmosphere in Hong Kong.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
BRBEYEER (ZR)ERAH
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OPERATION REVIEW (continued)

Implementation of the old district property management
scheme (continued)

In view of the above, the management anticipates that the
scheme will continue to face great difficulties. Though much
effort such as communicating or connecting with council
members, awaring the trend of government policy, promoting the
scheme and continuing to research the market for exploring the
targeted or other possible buildings, the scheme implementation
has been hindered as explained in the aforesaid. The
management will continue to closely monitor the market
development in this regard and will continue to review and
evaluate the scheme.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties in Implementation of the
Business Plan

There is no assurance that the Group’s future business plans will
materialize, or result in the conclusion or execution of any
property management agreement within the planned time frame.
The Group’s future business plans may be hindered by other
factors beyond its control.

The Group will also be exposed to profitability risk, liquidity risk
and credit risk when implementing the old district property
management scheme. Under this scheme, the sub-contracting
costs for renovation of properties will first be borne by the Group.
There is no assurance that the Group’s operation under this
scheme will remain as profitable as the Directors currently
estimate. Furthermore, as the amounts due from customers are
payable by instalments, such amounts will not be recovered
within the normal operating cycle, hence, additional financial
resources will be needed in maintaining the Group’s operation
under the scheme. The Group will also be subject to credit risk if
the customer defaults on installment payments. In view of the
recent developments and observation regarding implementation
of the scheme as explained above, the management will continue
to closely monitor the market development in this regard and will
continue to review and evaluate the scheme.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS sr

EEENwWR DT -

> f’V
OPERATION REVIEW (continued) KEmE(E)
Fund raising activities £EEH

In order to meet the needs of business development, the Group AENEEEREEZE  KAEFREBEEE
successfully completed a number of equity fund raising activities  FKIITEA ZEIRAEE ) FE) - FBEWOT -
during the year under review, as detailed below:

Date of initial Intended use Actual use of proceeds as at
announcement Event Net proceeds of proceeds the date of this annual report
BALEAE = FEREFE FrigRUARE AR FERERTERAANER AR
9 June 2015 Issue of zero-coupon Approximately (i) Investing in project(s)  The net proceeds have been fully
(completed on convertible notes at the HK$19.8 million related to the development  utilised as intended, of which (i)
19 June 2015 and principal amount of 419808 % T of mobile application and  approximately HK$13.0 million was
the convertible HK$20 million convertible two-way communication  used for the subscription of 10% of

notes were fully into Shares within 3
converted on months from date of issue
8 September 2015)  at the conversion price of

201566 A9A HK$1.32 per Share under
(201568198  general mandate

ok MABRER RE-RRERTAEE

BAR2015F9/  B2000&EET - TAR

SREZHEHR)  BTAMEMIEAAANR
EHESRL2ETES
BUE S
THRRE

platform targeted for
property management
companies, incorporated
owners, service providers
for residential properties in
Hong Kong and the
residents therein: and (ii)
general working capital of
the Group

() RERFEEREEMREL

ARREBEENERL
MEEELA FITUR
EE - R REERLR
RZzANERBET A
BAAMIER : R(i)A%E
W—REELS

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited

BRBEYFEEE (ZR)ERQF

the issued share capital of All Profit
which is principally engaged in (a)
developing a mobile application that
aims to provide one-stop household
support to its users; and (b) setting
up a two-way communication internet
platform between the property
management and its residents in any
building or property estates in Hong
Kong (please refer to the
announcement of the Company
dated 22 June 2015 for further
details); (ii) approximately HK$2.8
million was utilised for salary
expenses; (iii) approximately HK$1.9
million was utilised for professional
fees; (iv) approximately HK$1.3
million was utilised for rental and
administrative expenses; and (v)
approximately HK$0.8 million was
utilised for operating expenses
FrigEFRR RREREREBA -
Ef ()% 1,300 8B TRIEREAI
Profit 2 #1TIRA 10% * ZAREE
*E@RERIEREL  BER
HERPRE—ARESE  R(b)
REBTMETANMEEER LY
FERBRHER ZANEMRES
#Ia(E—FFBR2HARAA
#A2015%F6 22 BRAH) : (i)
#2808 B TR RIEHEF : (i)
M10ERTEREERER : (v)
M1308ETEAEEE RITHHA
§  RWABEBTE AIEZER
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

. EEENWERDN
OPERATION REVIEW (continued) KO REE (&)
Fund raising activities (continued) EEETH (8)
Date of initial Intended use Actual use of proceeds as at
announcement Event Net proceeds of proceeds the date of this annual report
BRAMAR = P8 RIA RS P8 RURRE AR FERERTERAANER AR
17 September 2015 Placing of 80,000,000 new  Approximately HK$31.2 ~ General working capital of ~ Approximately HK$6.04 million has
(completed on ordinary shares of million (net proceeds  the Group been utilised as intended of which
6 October 2015) HK$0.01 each under raised per Share was  AEE—REEE S approximately HK$1.69 million was
2015%9R17H general mandate at the approximately utilised for salary expenses,
(R2015%10A6H  placing price of HK$0.40 HK$0.39 per Share) approximately HK$3.05 million was
=) per Share to not less than 473,120 &8 T utilised for professional fees,
six placees who are (BRBHEER approximately HK$1.3 million was
independent professional,  FTSHIEFEA A utilised for operating expenses and
institutional or other FR%0.39%7T) the remaining net proceeds will be

investors (closing price of
the Share as quoted on
the Stock Exchange on the
date of the placing
agreement is HK$0.425)

BRE-REEATIRAZ

BEVEE  MESEM
REENARANZRER
FR040B T (RHNE
EhE AREB TR
WmEE045ET)E
£80,000,000 REHREE
0.01 BT L@

used for the general working capital
of the Group, including salary
expenses, professional fees,
marketing expenses and
maintenance of the Group's
information technology system. Such
remaining net proceeds are expected
to be utilised during the year ending
31 March 2017
NeaBETERAREERE -
N19EETERIEHEHAT - )
SBATCRIEEXER - 41130
ERTCRESERS - BRFE
FEFERAEARE—REEE
- BRFHeRx  BXER 2
HEX MREFEERN AR Z
o REERMETERERER
REZ201763A31BILEEEHA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DM

OPERATION REVIEW (continued)
Use of proceeds from the Listing

The actual net proceeds from the issue of new shares of the
Company under the Placing as set out in the Prospectus were
approximately HK$17.5 million, which was different from the
estimated net proceeds of approximately HK$24.4 million
(estimated on the assumption that the placing price would be the
mid-point of the stated range as stated in the Prospectus). For the
period from 20 September 2013 until 31 March 2016, the Group
has applied the net proceeds as follows:

< ¥y

REmE (&)
LR ERERR

BRIBEBRERMAHBEEARARREITHRG
HMERFIGHRIEFENAL 7088 TT B
RIPAMEET TS FIRF R 2,440 88 7L (IR
BREMEEBBRBREEZMYEZERS
BEw P EHE) o BE2013F9HA20HE
£2016F3 A31 HIEHMAE - AEEE RN
THARERSFIEFEEE

Net proceeds (HK$ million)
FREREFE(EEART)

Available Utilised Unutilised

o A 28A KEA

Repayment of bank loans BBIBTTER 7.5 7.5 -
Implementation of old district EERYEEIETE

property management scheme 4.3 - 4.3

Expansion of the property HEMEEEES
management portfolio 5.7 5.7 -
17.5 13.2 4.3

The unutilised balance of the net proceeds will be applied in the
manner consistent with that mentioned in the Prospectus.

RISKS RELATING TO THE GROUP AND ITS
BUSINESS

The Group faces intense competition which may adversely affect
its market share and profitability. The property management
industry in Hong Kong is competitive and the competition may
exert some pressure on the service fees of property management
companies. The Group may therefore be required to reduce its
fees or maintain low service fees in view of the market pressure
so0 as to retain customers or pursue new business opportunities.
The Group’s revenue stream and profitability may also be
adversely affected if the customers terminate the services
contracts with the Group, whether by serving written notice or for
the reason of breach or material breach of the terms or conditions
thereunder, prior to the expiry date.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
BRBEYEER (ZR)ERAH
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yan Chi Ming has been appointed as the Chairman of the
Board and an Executive Director with effect from 17 December
2015.

Mr. Yan, aged 61, has over 35 years of experience in
construction, property development and investment in Hong Kong
and mainland China. He has been the chief executive officer of
Gateway Development & Investment Limited since June 2011.
Prior to that, Mr. Yan held senior positions of a number of
companies listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), including MTR
Corporation Limited, COSCO International Holdings Limited and
SOCAM Development Limited, a member of Shui On Group.

Mr. Yan is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors, a fellow
of the Hong Kong Institute of Real Estate Administrators, a
member of the Institution of Civil Engineers of the United
Kingdom (the “UK”), a member of the Institution of Structural
Engineers of the UK, a member of the Hong Kong Institution of
Engineers and a Registered Professional Engineer in Hong Kong.

Mr. Yan obtained a Bachelor degree of Science in engineering
and a Master degree of Business Administration from the
University of Hong Kong and a Master degree of Science in
economics from the University of London in the UK.

GRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREEEBE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Ho Ying Choi, aged 56, is an Executive Director of the
Company. He is responsible for business operation, finance
management and sales and marketing. He is also a member of

the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of
the Company. Mr. Ho Ying Choi has resigned as the Chief

Executive Officer of the Group due to reassignment of functions of

the Directors with effect from 30 April 2015.

Mr. Ho Ying Choi holds a Bachelor’s degree of science from the
Memorial University of Newfoundland, Canada.

Mr. Ho Ying Choi is the brother of Mr. Ho Ying Cheung, member
of the Group’s senior management. Mr. Lau Ping Kwai, a member
of the Group’s senior management, is the spouse of Mr. Ho Ying
Choi’s cousin. Save as disclosed, Mr. Ho Ying Choi is not
connected with any other Directors, member of the senior
management, Substantial Shareholders or controlling
shareholders of the Company.

Ms. Wu Yilin has been appointed as an Executive Director with
effect from 19 October 2015.

Ms. Wu, aged 39, obtained a certificate of financial accounting

from Fujian Supplies School* (& & 4& ¥ & £4%) in July 1996.

She has over 15 years of experience in financial management.

Ms. Wu has been the financial controller of Baoyuan Creation
Company Limited* (ZJR&I3ZB R A7) since March 2006. Prior
to that, she was finance manager of Prestige Plaza Development
Company Limited from February 1999 to March 2006.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Wong Kui Shing, Danny has been appointed as a Non-
executive Director with effect from 19 October 2015.

Mr. Wong, aged 57, holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from the
University of Hong Kong. He has extensive exposure in the
financial and investment fields for over 20 years and is well
experienced in the international investment market.

Mr. Wong has been appointed as non-executive director of HL
Technology Group Limited (a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 1087) since September
2015. He has also been appointed as an executive director and
an executive committee member of Ceneric (Holdings) Limited (a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 542) since August 2015. He has also been an executive
director of China Information Technology Development Limited
(“China Information”) (a company listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 8178) since March 2015 and appointed
as the chairman of China Information since July 2015.

Mr. Wong was an executive director and managing director of See
Corporation Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 491) from December 2009 to
January 2015. In addition, Mr. Wong was an executive director of
SMI Holdings Group Limited (formerly known as SMI Corporation
Limited) (stock code: 198) from November 2011 to June 2014
and China Qil and Gas Group Limited (“China Oil and Gas
Group”) (stock code: 603) from September 2004 to August 2006,
both companies are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Pursuant to the listing enforcement notice/announcement of the
Stock Exchange dated 16 October 2008, Mr. Wong, together with
another former director of China Oil and Gas Group, had admitted
breaching the directors’ declaration, undertaking and
acknowledgement with regard to directors given by each of them
to the Stock Exchange in the form set out in Appendix 5B to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”) in failing to use their best endeavors to
procure China Oil and Gas Group’s compliance with the Listing
Rules in relation to the failure of China Oil and Gas Group to
publish its annual results and annual report for the year ended 31
July 2005 by 30 November 2005 and the interim results and
interim report for the six months ended 31 January 2006 by 30
April 2006. Accordingly, the Listing Committee of the Stock
Exchange publicly criticized Mr. Wong and another former
director of China Oil and Gas Group for their respective breaches
mentioned above.

GRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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EENEREEEBE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tso Siu Lun, Alan has been appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director, a member of each of the Audit Committee
and the Remuneration Committee of the Company and the
chairman of the Nomination Committee of the Company with
effect from 6 February 2015.

Mr. Alan Tso, aged 33, graduated from the Cambridge University
with a bachelor's and a master’'s degrees in Land Economy,
majoring in real estate finance and property law. Mr. Tso is the
founder of the Foresea Capital Group Limited (“FCG”) and the
China Mini Storage Limited (“CMS”). Prior to establishing FCG
and CMS, based in Beijing, Mr. Tso worked as an investment
director of the Everbright Ashmore China Real Estate Fund, a joint
venture offshore real estate fund sponsored by the China
Everbright Limited (stock code: 165) and the Ashmore Group PLC
(London Stock Exchange stock code: ASHM). Previously, based
in Hong Kong, Mr. Tso also worked at Merrill Lynch’s Global
Commercial Real Estate team where he was principally involved
in the firm’s principal investing activities in Asian real estate. He
also worked at the HSBC’s Global Capital Markets — ABS &
Structured Bonds Team where he was principally involved in the
bank’s securitisation business. As for public services, Mr. Tso has
been invited to become the 10th session member of the Beijing
Youth Federation (HKSAR), the 3rd session member of the
Beijing Overseas Friendship Association (HKSAR) and the Beijing
Group Convener of China Real Estate Chamber of Commerce
(“CRECC”) Hong Kong Chapter. Also, he has been appointed as
a part-time lecturer for the Asia-Pacific Commercial Real Estate
Academy (“APCREA”), an educational institution sponsored by
the CRECC’s China Commercial Real Estate Commission.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Mr. Lam Kai Yeung has been appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director, chairman of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee, member of the Nomination Committee
of the Company.

Mr. Lam, aged 46, is a fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lam obtained a bachelor
degree in accounting from the Xiamen University in July 1990
and a master degree in business administration from the Oxford
Brookes University in the United Kingdom in July 2010.

Mr. Lam was the company secretary and qualified accountant of
Hunan Nonferrous Metals Corporation Limited, a company which
was listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange with its then
stock code of 2626 and had delisted from the Stock Exchange in
March 2015, from July 2006 to August 2013. Mr. Lam was an
independent non-executive director of Northeast Tiger
Pharmaceutical Company Limited (a company listed on the GEM
of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 8197) from August 2008 to
June 2015 and a non-executive director of Ping Shan Tea Group
Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 364) from December 2014 to May 2015.
Mr. Lam has been an independent non-executive director of
Silverman Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1616) since June 2012; an
independent non- executive director of Highlight China loT
International Limited (formerly known as Ford Glory Group
Holdings Limited) (a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 1682) since August 2014; an
independent non-executive director of Sunway International
Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 58) since May 2015; an
independent non-executive director of Finsoft Financial
Investment Holdings Limited (a company listed on GEM of the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 8018) since June 2015; and an
independent non-executive director of Holly Futures (a company
listed on Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 3678)
since June 2015.

Mr. Lam is a licensed person for type 4 (advising on securities)
and type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under the
SFO.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Mr. Lo Chi Ho, Richard has been appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director, a member of each of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee

with effect from 17 December 2015.

Mr. Lo, aged 48, has over 25 years of experience in the
investment and real estate industry. He is currently the chief
executive officer of Fulldiamond Limited, an investment and
consulting company specializing in real estate, finance, securities,
project and fundraising.

Mr. Lo is the vice president cum chairman of commercial liaison
of The Hong Kong Real Property Federation. He is also a
committee member of Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference — Jiangxi.

Mr. Lo obtained his Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from

the University of California, Los Angeles in the United States,

Master of Business Administration (Investment and Finance)
degree from Hull University in the UK and an executive program
certificate from Stanford University in the United States.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Ho Ying Cheung, aged 63, one of the founders of the Group.
He was appointed as a director of Kong Shum Union Property
Management Company Limited (The “KSU”) in August 1984. He
was then appointed as an Executive Director on 15 August 2012
and was responsible for the Group’s overall business
development. Mr. Ho Ying Cheung has resigned as the Chairman
of the Board, an Executive Director and the Chairman of the
Nomination Committee of the Group with effect from 6 February
2015. Mr. Ho Ying Cheung remains a Director of KSU.

Mr. Ho Ying Cheung is the brother of Mr. Ho Ying Choi, an
Executive Director. Mr. Lau Ping Kwai, a member of the Group’s
senior management, is the spouse of Mr. Ho Ying Cheung’s
cousin. Save as disclosed, Mr. Ho Ying Cheung is not connected
with any other Directors or member of senior management,
Substantial Shareholders or Controlling Shareholders of the
Company.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. Lau Ping Kwai, aged 65, is an associate director of KSU (note).
He has been working in KSU for more than fifteen years. He
joined KSU as a property management officer in September 1996
and was promoted to this position in April 2008. He is responsible
for supervising property managers and advising on the
improvement of the Group’s overall standard. He is also
responsible for marketing in the private sector.

Mr. Lau obtained a Certificate in Housing Practice at the School
of Professional and Continuing Education of The University of
Hong Kong (“HKUSPACE”) in August 2000 and was awarded a
Diploma in Housing Management by the same institute in
September 2002. He was elected a corporate member of the
Chartered Institute of Housing (“CIH") in October 2002 and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Housing in November
2002. In April 2003, he registered as a Professional Housing
Manager at the Housing Managers Registration Board.

Note: The position “associate director” is a corporate title only and not a

“director” within the meaning of the Companies Ordinance and the GEM
Listing Rules. An associate director named herein is principally
responsible for (i) the supervision of property management of the Group
or its staff; (ii) supervision of the Group’s administration or overall
standard; and (iii) the Group’s customer relations.

Mr. Lau is the spouse of the cousin of Mr. Ho Ying Cheung, a
director of KSU, and Mr. Ho Ying Choi, an Executive Director.
Save as disclosed, Mr. Lau is not connected with any other
Directors, member of the senior management, Substantial
Shareholders or controlling shareholders of the Company.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. Fong Shek Hung, aged 57, is an associate director of KSU
(note). He is mainly responsible for supervision of property
management, customer relations and administration.

Mr. Fong worked for the Hong Kong Government from 1978 to
2001. He joined the Housing Department in October 1987 and
was promoted to the position of housing officer in October 1989.
He resigned in August 2001 and subsequently served as property
manager in Synergis Management Services Limited. He was the
district general manager before he left the company in February
2011 and joined KSU in May 2011 as senior property manager.
He was promoted to the position of associate director of KSU
(note) in February 2012.

Mr. Fong has awarded a Diploma in Housing Management by
HKUSPACE in September 1997. He was elected as a corporate
member of the CIH in June 1999 and a member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Housing in June 2001. In May 2001, he
registered as a Professional Housing Manager at the Housing
Managers Registration Board.

Note: The position “associate director” is a corporate title only and not a

“director” within the meaning of the Companies Ordinance and the GEM
Listing Rules. An associate director named herein is principally
responsible for (i) the supervision of property management of the Group
or its staff; (ii) supervision of the Group’s administration or overall
standard; and (iii) the Group’s customer relations.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. Cheng Kam Hung, aged 49, is a financial controller of KSU. He
has been working in KSU for about 14 years. He holds an MBA
from the University of South Australia, Adelaide, South Australia.
He is responsible for accounting and financial management of the
Group’s operation.

Mr. Cheng started working in Li, Tang, Chen & Company in the
auditing field in February 1989 and was promoted to the post of
audit supervisor in April 1993. He joined Guangnan (KK)
Supermarket Limited as accounting manager in January 1995.
He was later promoted to assistant financial controller in August
2000 as his last position. He joined KSU as an assistant
accounting manager in October 2001 and promoted to the
position of financial controller.

Mr. Yeung Pui Hung, aged 67, is a senior property manager of
KSU. He has already worked in KSU for 18 years and was
promoted to this position in April 2003. He is mainly responsible
for supervision of property management and customer relations.

For the period from September 1975 to January 1998, Mr. Yeung
worked in the Cathay Pacific Airways Limited. He joined KSU as
administration manager in February 1998.

He was awarded a Diploma in Management Studies jointly by the
Hong Kong Polytechnic and the Hong Kong Management
Association in September 1992.

Mr. Mo Kin Keung, aged 53, is a chief facility and property
manager of KSU. He is mainly responsible for daily operation and
management of major customers.

Mr. Mo was employed by the PCCW Group from December 1986
to August 2004. He was an assistant facilities manager of the
Pacific Century Premium Developments Limited, the
infrastructure division spun off in May 2004 before his departure.
He then served as a property manager in Vigers Property
Management Service (Hong Kong) Limited from October 2004 to
July 2008 and afterwards worked as an assistant property
manager in ISS Facility Services Limited from October 2008 to
June 2009. He joined KSU as a property manager in April 2010
and later promoted to the position of chief facility and property
manager.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. Mo was awarded a Continuing Education Diploma in Property
Management by the City University of Hong Kong in November
2002 and was elected as a corporate member of the CIH in
September 2006. In November 2006, he registered as a
Professional Housing Manager at the Housing Managers
Registration Board and obtained a Bachelor's degree of Art
(Honours) in Housing Studies in November 2006. In November
2011, he was elected as a professional member of The Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors. He was awarded the
designation of the member of International Professional Security
Association in June 2010. After one year, he obtained a Master’s
degree in Facilities Management by the University of Greenwich,
United Kingdom through a long distance learning course in June
2011.

Mr. So Sui Shan, aged 62, is a senior property manager of KSU.
He has already worked in KSU for more than seven years. He is
mainly responsible for supervision of property management and
customer relations.

Mr. So had served as a civil servant of the Hong Kong
Government since 1973. He was promoted as a housing manager
of the Housing Authority in January 1996. He served as a senior
property estate manager in Urban Property Management Limited
from August 2001 until September 2005. He was a senior
property manager of Shui On Properties Management Services
Limited from October 2005 to December 2007. He then joined
KSU as senior property manager in July 2008.

Mr. So obtained a Certificate in Housing Practice at the
Department of Extra-Mural Studies of HKU (now known as
HKUSPACE) in August 1981. He was awarded a graduate grade
of membership of The Institution of Fire Engineers of United
Kingdom in March 1986. He then pursued his studies in legal
field and obtained a bachelor’s degree of Laws from the University
of London as an external student in August 1992. He registered
as a Professional Housing Manager at the Housing Managers
Registration Board and was awarded a Certificate in Building
Services Engineering by the Hong Kong Institute of Vocational
Education in March 2001 and July 2001 respectively.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

He was elected as a corporate member of the CIH and a fellow of
the Hong Kong Institute of Housing in 2002 and passed the
qualifying examination for estate agents of the Estate Agents
Authority in July 2007.

Mr. Ng Wai Kee, Ricky, aged 43, is a senior property manager of
KSU. He has already worked in KSU more than 2 years and was
promoted to this position in January 2015. He is mainly
responsible for supervision of property management and
customer relations.

During the year 2006, Mr. Ng joined the Synergis Management
Services Limited as assistant property manager and during the
period from year 2008 to 2012, he joined Oasis Well Management
Services Ltd and was finally promoted to the position of managing
director.

Mr. Ng obtained a Master’s degree in Business Administration
from the University of Management and Technology, USA through
a long distance learning course in 2011.
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Pursuant to Rule 18.44 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Board is
pleased to present this corporate governance report for the year
ended 31 March 2016.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board and the management of the Group are committed to
upholding high standards of corporate governance. The Board
considers that enhanced public accountability and corporate
governance are beneficial for the healthy growth of the Group,
improving customer and supplier confidence and safeguarding
the interests of shareholders of the Company.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules.
The principles adopted by the Company emphasize a quality
Board, sound internal controls, transparency and accountability
to all shareholders. The Company engaged a third-party
professional firm to conduct an internal control review for the year
ended 31 March 2016. In the opinion of the Board, save as
deviation of code provision A.2.1 disclosed under the paragraph
“Chairman and Chief Executive Officer” on page 56 of the annual
report, the Company had complied with the CG Code for the year
ended 31 March 2016.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group adopted the required standard of dealings set out in
Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as the code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions in securities
of the Company. The Company also had made specific enquiry of
all Directors and the Company was not aware of any non-
compliance with the required standard of dealings and its code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors during the
year ended 31 March 2016.
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy since 11
October 2013. The policy sets out the approach to achieve
diversity in the Board that should have a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Group’s business and compliance with
policies. The composition and diversity policies of the Board are
reviewed annually and regularly. The Board should ensure that its
changes in composition will not result in any undue interference.
The Board members should possess appropriate professionalism,
experience and trustworthiness in performing duties and
functions. The Board would diversify its members according to
the Company’s situations and needs. While participating in
nomination and recommendation of director candidates during
the year, each member of the Board may consider a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, or professional experience
in achieving diversity for the benefit of the Company’s various
business development and management. The Board is to review
the policy concerning diversity of Board members, and to disclose
the policy or a summary of the policy in the corporate governance
report, including any quantitative targets and standards and its
progress with policy implementation.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Board had reviewed
the diversity of the Board and considered the Board composition
and diversity policy appropriate.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for the Group’s affair
under the Board’s direction and supervision. All the Directors
should make decision objectively in the interests of the Company.
The overall responsibilities of the Board include considering and
making decisions on setting the cooperate goals of the Group and
formulating the Group’s strategy and monitoring the
implementation; diversification and extension of activities into new
business area; approving the annual, half year and quarterly
results; dividend policy; material acquisitions and disposal;
reviewing and monitoring the Group’s internal control systems;
and monitoring the performance of the Management.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Responsibilities (continued)

The Board delegates the day-to-day management, administration
and operation of the Group to the Management. The delegated
functions are reviewed by the Board periodically to ensure they
remain appropriate to the needs of the Group. The Board gives
clear directions to the management as to the matters that must
be approved by the Board before discussions are made on behalf
of the Group by the Management. All the Directors carry out their
duties in good faith and in compliance with applicable laws and
regulations, taking decisions objectively and acting in the interests
of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

Composition

The Board currently comprises 7 Directors, including 3 Executive
Directors, 1 Non-executive Director and 3 Independent Non-
executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. Yan Chi Ming (Chairman)
(appointed on 17 December 2015)
Mr. Ho Ying Choi
Ms. Wu Yilin (appointed on 19 October 2015)

Non-executive Directors

Mr.Wong Kui Shing, Danny (appointed on 19 October 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tso Siu Lun, Alan (appointed on 6 February 2015)
Mr. Lam Kai Yeung (appointed on 19 October 2015)
Mr. Lo Chi Ho, Richard (appointed on 17 December 2015)

Details of backgrounds and qualifications of all Directors are set
out in the “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management”
section of this annual report. All Directors have given sufficient
time and attention to the affairs of the Group. Each Executive
Director has sufficient experience, knowledge and execution
ability to hold the position so as to carry out his duties effectively
and efficiently.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The Board has assumed the responsibility to consider the
appointment, re-election and removal of the directors of the
Company. The Board set up a Nomination Committee to
recommend the appointment, re-election and removal of the
directors of the Company.

All Executive Directors namely, Mr. Yan Chi Ming, Ms. Wu Yilin
and Mr. Ho Ying Choi, have respectively entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of 3 years unless terminated
by not less than 1 to 3 months’ notice in writing served by either
part on the other. Executive Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting (“AGM”) in
accordance with the Articles.

All the Independent Non-executive Directors namely, Mr. Lam Kai
Yeung, Mr. Lo Chi Ho, Richard and Mr. Tso Siu Lun, Alan and the
Non-executive Director, Mr. Wong Kui Shing, Danny, have
respectively entered into a service contract with the Company for
a term of 3 years unless terminated by not less than 2 months’
notice in writing served by either part on the other. The
Independent Non-executive Directors and the Non-executive
Director are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
the AGM in accordance with the Articles.

At the forthcoming AGM, all Directors will retire from office and
are eligible for re-election. At each following AGM, one-third of the
Directors are required to retire from office. Each Directors shall
retire from office once every 3 years. The Directors to retire in
every year shall be those appointed by the Board during the year
and those who have been longest in office since their last election
or re-election. New Directors appointed by the Board during the
year shall retire and may submit themselves for re-election at the
AGM immediately following their appointments.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has made an
annual confirmation in writing of his independence pursuant to
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and the Company considers
that all the Independent Non-executive Directors were
independent during the year.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Biographies of Directors
and Senior Management” in this annual report, there is no
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship
among the members of the Board.

MANAGEMENT

The daily management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the Chairman, the Executive Directors
and senior management (the “Management”). The delegated
functions and assignments are periodically reviewed. Approval
has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by the above mentioned officers.

The overall responsibilities of the Management include
considering and making decisions on implementing the Group’s
policy and strategies as set by the Board; strategic planning of
different business and functions; closely monitoring operational
and financial results in accordance with plans and budgets;
putting adequate operational, planning and financial control
systems in place; and managing the Group’s day to day business.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual, and the division of
responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive should
be clearly established and set out in writing. During the year
under review, the Company deviated from code provision A.2.1 of
the CG Code, details of which are as follows:

Following Mr. Ho Ying Cheung’s resignation on 6 February 2015
and up until the appointment of Mr. Liu Dan as the chairman of
the Company with effect from 30 April 2015, no individual was
appointed as chairman of the Company, and the role of the
chairman had been performed collectively by all Executive
Directors.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
(continued)

During the period from 30 April 2015 up to Mr. Liu Dan’s
resignation on 8 September 2015, Mr. Liu Dan acted as the
chairman and chief executive officer of the Company. The Board
believed that vesting the roles of both the chairman and the chief
executive officer in the same person had the benefit of ensuring
consistent leadership within the Group and enabled more
effective and efficient overall strategic planning for the Group. The
Board believed that the balance of power and authority for the
present arrangement would not be impaired and was adequately
ensured by the Board which comprised experienced and high
calibre individuals with sufficient number thereof being
Independent Non-executive Directors.

Following Mr. Liu Dan’s resignation on 8 September 2015 and up
until the appointment of Mr. Yan Chi Ming as the chairman of the
Company with effect from 17 December 2015, no individual was
appointed as chairman or chief executive officer of the Company,
and the roles of the chairman and chief executive officer have
been performed collectively by all Executive Directors.

With effect from 17 December 2015, Mr. Yan Chi Ming has been
appointed as the chairman of the Company, while the position of
chief executive officer of the Company remains vacant. Daily
operation and management of the Company is monitored by the
Executive Directors as well as the senior management. The Board
is of the view that although there is no chief executive officer of
the Company, the balance of power and authority is ensured by
the operation of the Board, which comprises experienced
individuals and meet from time to time to discuss issues affecting
the operations of the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board fulfilled the requirement of appointing at least three
Independent Non-executive Directors and they represented at
least one-third of the Board as stipulated by the GEM Listing
Rules. It met requirement of having at least one of the
Independent Non-executive Directors with appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The Independent Non-executive Directors
have appropriate and sufficient experience and qualification to
carry out their duties so as to fully represent the interests of the
shareholders.
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BOARD MEETING, GENERAL MEETING AND EZESR REASRESER
PROCEDURES
Directors’ attendance record of Board, Committee and General HE2016F3A3lBLFE EELHFE
Meetings during the year ended 31 March 2016 are as follows: Ee . LEeNREAS 7SO
Meetings attended/Eligible to attend
e/ AERLEeR
Annual

Audit Remuneration  Nomination General
Directors Note Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
B M EXe ENRZEE FHZER REEZES® RREFA®
Executive Directors: HITEE:
Yan Chi Ming HFH 1 3/3 nfa na nla nfa
Ho Ying Choi A Bt 8/10 na 212 212 mn
Wu Yilin RLAT 2 717 na nfa nla nfa
Liu Dan Liu Dan 3 1/4 na 0/1 0/1 01
Shen Ka Yip, Timothy LEE 4 10/10 n/a n/a n/a 17
Lai Sze Yau, Vivien REMK 4 10/10 n/a n/a n/a 171
Non-executive Directors: FHTER:
Wong Kui Shing, Danny TR, 2 6/7 n/a na n/a n/a
Shum Lok To S 4= 5 1012 nfa n/a n/a 0/1
Independent Non-executive BUFHTES:

Directors:

Tso Siu Lun, Alan By 8/12 4/5 4/4 212 on
Lam Kai Yeung Al 2 717 22 33 1 nla
Lo Chi Ho, Richard BER 6 33 171 212 111 nfa
Bai Jin Rong HE8R 5 7112 3/5 3/4 12 0n
Chow Siu Lui #& 7 3/5 33 0/1 01 mn
Notes: Mt
n/a:  not applicable nfa:  ANEH

1. Mr. Yan Chi Ming was appointed as the Chairman of the Board and an 1. @I¥Eﬂ7ﬁ$5§§@7/%§$§1ﬁ%$ﬂﬁ§$ '
Executive Director with effect from 17 December 2015. B2015F 12 A 17 HfRAERR -

2. Ms. Wu Yilin was appointed as an Executive Director, Mr. Wong Kui Shing 2.~ RUMEZLTEZERHITES - TEMEER

was appointed as an Non-executive Director and Mr. Lam Kai Yeung was ZERIFNITE S RS T L EZFRE L
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director with effect from 19 JEHITESE 20154 10 A 19 HBAER -
October 2015.

3. Mr. Liu Dan resigned as the Chairman of the Board, an Executive Director ~ 3. Liu Dan EABHEEREL/F . HITESFFITH
and a Chief Executive Officer with effect from 8 September 2015. #®E > A2015F9 A8 AMAR -

4. Mr. Shen Ka Yip and Ms. Lai Sze Yau, Vivien resigned as an Executive 4 iI;aE%%E&?ﬁﬁ&@z\ﬁi%‘?{{iﬂﬁ%% =
Directors with effect from 22 January 2016. 20164 1 H22 ARBAERL -
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BOARD MEETING, GENERAL MEETING AND
PROCEDURES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

o8 Mr. Shum Lok To resigned as an Non-executive Director and Mr. Bai Jin
Rong was resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director with effect
on 8 March 2016.

6. Mr. Lo Chi Ho was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
with effect from 17 December 2015.

7. Mr. Chow Siu Lui resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director with
effect from 19 October 2015.

Board members were provided with complete, adequate and
timely information to allow them to fulfill their duties properly.

Draft agenda of each Board meeting is sent to all Directors in
advance. Notice of at least fourteen days is given for a regular
Board meeting. For other Board and committees meetings,
reasonable notice is generally given. Board papers together with
all appropriate, complete and reliable information are dispatched
to all Directors at least three days before each regular Board
meeting to ensure that the Directors have sufficient time to review
the related documents and be adequately prepared for the
meeting.

The Company Secretary is responsible to keep minutes of all
Board meetings and committees meetings. Draft minutes are
normally circulated to all Directors for comments within a
reasonable time after each meeting and the final versions are
open for Director’s inspection.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

All Directors, including Non-executive Director and Independent
Non-executive Directors, should keep abreast of their collective
responsibilities as Directors and of the business and activities of
the Group.

All Directors confirmed that they had complied with code
provision A.6.5 of the Code during the year ended 31 March
2016, that all Directors had participated in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME (continued)

A summary of training received by the Directors for the year
ended 31 March 2016 according to the records provided by the

Directors as follows:

Tr
=

L 2

EEREERRETE(E)

RESEFRT2EE  EFNEE2016
F3A3IAIFEMERZ ZBIIBRNT

Attending seminars,
conferences or

Reading newspapers,
to obtain update
relating to economy,
accounting, rules,

Reading materials
relevant to
directors’ duties

forums law or regulation, etc. and responsibilities
BEEE 05
B a5t MEREEN
ZMHHE Rl EESR BEREER
Directors EE SRARE  EREBRFER BEOMH
Executive Directors: HITES:
Yan Chi Ming BFH
(appointed on 17 December 2015) (R2015F 12 A 17 HEZIT) v v /
Ho Ying Choi fel pEEA v/ / /
Wu Yilin RUATH
(appointed on 19 October 2015) (R2015% 108 19BEZT) v / /
Liu Dan Liu Dan
(resigned on 8 September 2015) (201569 A8 HEHT) v v/ v/
Shen Ka Yip, Timothy TR
(resigned on 22 January 2016) (R2016% 1 A 22 HEHE) v v/ v/
Lai Sze Yau, Vivien REM
(resigned on 22 January 2016) (20161 A 22 HEHE) v v/ /
Non-executive Directors: FYTES:
Wong Kui Shing, Danny FEK
(appointed on 19 October 2015) (R2015F 10 A 19REZRT) v v/ v/
Shum Lok To BEE
(resigned on 8 March 2016) (FA20164 3 A8HET) v v/ v/
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME (continued)

EEERRE

EEREERRETE(E)

Reading newspapers,
to obtain update ~ Reading materials
Attending seminars, relating to economy, relevant to
conferences or  accounting, rules, directors’ duties

forums law or regulation, etc. and responsibilities
FMERE 08

om . 't MEEESMN
SmmHE RBI - RS BERER
Directors = BEIME LREEFER BENA R
Independent non-executive Directors: BIEHTES:
Tso Siu Lun, Alan R v v v/
Lam Kai Yeung AL
(appointed on 19 October 2015) (2015108 19BEZT) v / /
Lo Chi Ho, Richard BER
(appointed on 17 December 2015) (R2015F 12717 REZE) v v/ /
Bai Jin Rong He&
(resigned on 8 March 2016) (R2016 3 A8 HEHT) v v/ v/
Chow Siu Lui N
(resigned on 19 October 2015) (FA2015% 10 B 19 BEHT) v / /
AUDIT COMMITTEE ERERS

The Company has established an Audit Committee with written KA T2 RIEAIFER iR Bk 37 2= 4%

compliance with the GEM Listing Rules. The Audit Committee is @] AN T B - EXEESIHEHS

=

==

terms of reference, available on the Company’s website, in & - WIAEmM|AEEESE  ERE
ANy :

(=

B

currently composed of all the Independent Non-executive S/ IEE(TE S A - BIMRES 4 4 (
Directors, namely Mr. Lam Kai Yeung (chairman), Mr. Tso Siu  [F) - Bt E NELT S LA ©

Lun, Alan and Mr. Lo Chi Ho, Richard.

The Audit Committee held 5 meetings during the year ended 31  EZ 20163 A3l HIEE @  BEEES
March 2016 and reviewed the Company’s audited annual results B #4758/ €% WO EBH AL T EHE
for the year ended 31 March 2015 and the unaudited quarterly 20153 A31 HIFFERNKELFEEE

and interim results during the year ended 31 March 2016.

AREZ 201693 A 31 HILFEHNREE
BFEERTHES
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The function of the Audit Committee includes the following:

(i)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Relationship with the Company’s auditors:

to be primarily responsible for make recommendation
to the Board on the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the external auditor and to approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditor, and any questions of resignation or dismissal;

to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectively and the effectiveness of
the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards. The Audit Committee should discuss with
the auditor the nature and scope of the audit and
reporting obligations before the audit commences;

to develop and implement policy on engaging and
external auditor to supply non-audit services. For this
purpose, “external auditor’ includes any entity that is
under common control, ownership or management
with the audit firm or any entity that a reasonable and
informed third party knowing all relevant information
would reasonably conclude to be part of the audit firm
nationally or internationally. The Audit Committee
should report to the Board, identifying and making
recommendations on ay matters where action or
improvement is needed.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

(i) Review of the Company’s financial information:

(a) to monitor the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and annual report and accounts, half-year
report and/or quarterly reports, and to review significant
financial reporting judgments contained in them before
submission to the Board, focusing particularly on:

(1) any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(2) maijor judgmental areas;
(3) significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

(4) the going concern assumptions and any
qualifications;

(5) compliance with accounting standards; and

(6) compliance with GEM Listing Rules and legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting.

(iii) Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting system and
internal control procedures:

(a) to review the Company’s financial controls, internal
control and risk management systems.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection and appointment of the external
auditors for the year ended 31 March 2016. The Audit Committee
has reviewed the audited financial statements of the Group for the
year and recommended approval to the Board.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference, available on the Company’s website, in
compliance with GEM Listing Rules. The Remuneration
Committee is currently composed of 1 Executive Directors,
namely Mr. Ho Ying Choi and 3 Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Lam Kai Yeung (chairman), Mr. Tso Siu
Lun, Alan and Mr. Lo Chi Ho, Richard.

During the year under review, 4 Remuneration Committee
meetings were held to review the remuneration package of the
Directors and senior management of the Group.

The Remuneration Committee’s principal duties are the
determination of specific remuneration packages of all Executive
Directors, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, any compensation payable for loss or
termination of their office or appointment, and making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-
executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee should
consider factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities.

The Remuneration Committee meets regularly to determine the
policy for the remuneration of Directors and assess the
performance of Executive Directors and certain senior
management of the Group.

Remuneration of Directors

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualification and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

The Directors’ fees and all other emoluments paid or payable to
the Directors during the year are set out on an individual and
named basis in note 16(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

Remuneration of Senior Management

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the
remuneration of the senior management by band for the year
ended 31 March 2016 is set out below:
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Further details of the remuneration of the Directors and the 5
highest paid employees are set out in note 15(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company set up a Nomination Committee with written terms
of reference, available on the Company’s website, in compliance
with the GEM Listing Rules. At the date of this annual report, the
Nomination Committee consists of 4 members, of which the
majority are Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Tso Siu Lun, Alan (chairman), Mr. Lam Kai Yeung, Mr. Lo Chi Ho,
Richard and an Executive Director, namely Mr. Ho Ying Choi.

During the year under review, 2 meetings of the Nomination
Committee were held.

The duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge,
experience and diversity of perspectives) of the Board at least
annually; making recommendations on any proposed changes to
the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become the Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on
selection of individuals nominated for directorships of the
Company; assessing the independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors; reviewing and recommending the
appointment of new Directors; identifying the competences
required to enable the Board to fulfill its responsibilities; and
reviewing the Board Diversity Policy established for implementing
diversity on the Board periodically.
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COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

The Compliance Committee is a committee under the Company’s
Audit Committee and is chaired by Mr. Ho Ying Choi, an
Executive Director, and comprises Mr. Lau Ping Kwai, the
associate director (note), Mr. Fong Shek Hung, the associate
director (note) and Mr. Cheng Kam Hung, the financial controller.
The Group’s legal adviser, Y.C. Lee, Pang, Kwok & Ip Solicitors, is
procured to provide legal advices and to attend the committee
meeting on a needed basis. For the year ended 31 March 2016,
12 meetings were held and the legal adviser had participated in 1
meetings. The minutes of the meetings were distributed to the
legal adviser, Y.C. Lee, Pang, Kwok & Ip Solicitors, and the Audit
Committee members for scrutiny and comment. The Committee
addresses the matters concerning the compliance of law and
regulations, contract terms and litigation cases of the Group.

Note:  The position “associate director” is a corporate title only and not a
“director” within the meaning of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622
of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the GEM Listing Rules. An associate
director named herein is principally responsible for (i) the supervision of
property management of the Group or its staff; (ii) supervision of the
Group'’s administration or overall standard; and (iii) the Group’s customer

relations.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the remuneration for audit
and non-audit services are summarized below:

_e

A

i
il

S

e |

BHREBERAARAEZZES TH—E
ZEg APTESMAEMEEEER
REBIEMEES (M) RELE - B
FEEE (MaE) 7 855 5 4 R BT 15 48 B B 5%
A E o REBEMEEBRZFETE - 2R
18 BE - BERREMEHAAERETE
ZEeREIEABERANESERTHFELE
2% c HE2016F3A31HILFEE - £
BEEBRITTI2RERE  MEREMLRE
HP1IXAgZ ZESNERLHOY X
A EEEETE 2iRE - BE - B2
REMEBANEZEZESELZE TUEMH
MERER  ZECRENETEREASE
EHERAEFIME R - B HIERFEFA

ES

=
=

i3S

m m

\

Hiat . [MEES] ERATRML  WEFBENE
622 RAMGPI R AIER EHARAIPAIE &
Z AXRENBEEEIZAEOEREA
SEREBTHYEERE  WEEAKEMN
TR B BT % (i) REE M B PRER

BTN =

BE2016F3 A3 ALFE  BRRIER
RS RF BT

2016
2016
HK$
BT
Audit services EZARTE 550,000
Non-audit services: IEEZIRTS
— Service fees for reviewing quarterly and interim — BHAEREZE NP HTBEER
financial information of the Group < RI%E 200,000
— Fee for professional services rendered on the — BARRIEELAABE G REHEE
Company’s Proposed Open Offer Document fR7% 2 & A 100,000
Total =1 850,000

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
BRBEYEER (ZR)ERAH

60



LN

N—

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the financial statements of the Group and ensure that the
financial statements are prepared in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Directors
also ensure the timely publication of the financial statements of
the Group.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, they
are not aware of any matters uncertainly relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibilities for the Group’s
internal control system and its effectiveness to ensure that the
internal control measures are in place to safeguard the Group’s
assets and to comply with relevant regulations and best practices.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company improves its business and operational activities by
identifying the areas of significant business risks via a regular
review and taking appropriate measures to control and mitigate
these risks. The Management of the Company reviews all
significant control policies and procedures and highlights all
significant matters to the Board and Audit Committee.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engages Mr. Yuen Poi Lam, William (“Mr. Yuen”),
representative of Proficient Skill Limited, as its company secretary.
His primary corporate contact person at the Company is Mr.
Cheng Kam Hung, the financial controller.

In compliance with Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules, Mr. Yuen
has undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the year ended 31 March 2016.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT TO CONVENE
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles, the Board may, whenever it

thinks fit, convene an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”).

EGM shall also be convened on the requisition of one or more
shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not
less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having

the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be

made in writing to the Board or the secretary for the purpose of
requiring an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of

any business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be

held within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If

within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to

convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

PROCEDURES FOR DIRECTING
SHAREHOLDERS’ ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders and other stakeholders can make any enquiry in
respect of the Company in writing to our Head Office at Units
2201-03, 22/F., Tai Tung Building, 8 Fleming Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PUT
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS’
MEETINGS

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to move new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Companies Law
(Revised) of Cayman Islands. However, pursuant to the Articles,
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may by means of
requisition convene an EGM following the procedures set out
above.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
BRBEYEER (ZR)ERAH

L
R

BRERERGRMRRFBI RS HER

REZRMBZARNESSK  EFGAHE
HRBABERARBRERIAS ([IRERR
BIRKE]) - RRFHIAREAE —BHA L
RERXRFFEARFBEERNBERAGHRE
MARBHRBANDR D2 —HRR
EXTER - BHERANEERNEES
SIARWERL  ARBREZTSARK
REBHREANRERKAFT AN EME
H o ZREAMNMEHZEREMEARNA
Fil o NEREKRIZ2IEAN - EFEAKREA
ARZAE  AERXBERALABITIAR
BAABRAE MEZERATRHES
SREARKEMELNAA S ERXE
RARBIRZRAEHER -

MESERHRREANERF

REREMAZEBETUEREARE
PIEY B B IR (Hhht A H B E (T IEMAFES
BRAR AKE22182201-03 %) IR BB AN
NAMERER WHEABTHRAEES -

BRRABRRASREZZBZNESF

RERSBESRRDA(KEFT) » BHEBKX
HWERRRERASHAEFRAR - A
m REZERAH  AEHBRERAOK
RANKE LdEFRIZEEIZRETA
ARBREFRIAE °



k CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

N—

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2016, there is no significant change
in its constitutional documents.

CONTINUOUS CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
ENHANCEMENT

The Board is committed to continuous corporate governance
enhancement including giving closer attention to any regulatory
changes with a view to maintaining a corporate culture built on
ethics and integrity and increasing shareholders value as a whole.
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The Directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding)

Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance and its financial position
are provided in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” in this annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year end 31 March 2016 and the
state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2016 are set out on
pages 86 to 88.

The state of affairs of the Company is set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2016.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The Group did not make any charitable donation for the year
ended 31 March 2016.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past five financial years, as extracted from the
audited financial statements, is set out on page 172 of this annual
report. This summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2016 and a review of its future development is set out in the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this
annual report.
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RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group have been
addressed in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section
in this annual report.

In addition, various financial risks have been disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

AN ANALYSIS USING FINANCIAL KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The relevant financial key performance indicators relating to the
business of the Group are set out under the paragraphs headed
“Financial Review” in the “Management Discussion and Analysis”
section and the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group recognises its responsibility to protect the environment
from its business activities. The Group continually seeks to
identify and manage environmental impacts attributable to its
operational activities in order to minimise these impacts if
possible. The Group aims to maximise energy conservation in its
offices by promoting efficient use of resources and adopting green
technologies. For instance, the Group seeks to upgrade
equipment such as lighting and air-conditioning systems in order
to increase overall operating efficiency. To identify energy
efficiency opportunities, the Group measures and records the
energy consumption intensity from time to time.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND OTHER
STAKEHOLDERS

The Group ensures all staff is reasonably remunerated and
regularly reviews the employment policies on remuneration and
other benefits.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers and
suppliers. The Group maintains close contacts with the customers
and has regular review of requirements of customers and
complaints. The Group will conduct appraisal of the performance
of suppliers on regular basis.

The Board believes effective communication and accurate and
timely information disclosure builds the Shareholders’ and
investors’ confidence, and also facilities the flow of constructive
feedback and ideas that are beneficial for investor relations and
future corporate development. For details, please refer to the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 68.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and risks of non-compliance with such
requirements. The Group has on-going review the newly enacted
laws and regulations affecting the operations of the Group. The
Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the laws
and regulations that have significant impact on the business of
the Group.

SHARES ISSUED IN THE YEAR

Details of the shares issued in the year ended 31 March 2016 are
set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES

Details of the fund raising activities of the Group during the year
under review are set out in the paragraphs under “Fund raising
activities” in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 March 2016.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out on page 89 and in note 32
to the consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2016,
calculated under the Cayman Islands Companies Law, amounted
to HK$54,338,400 (2015: HK$26,663,033) including share
premium of HK$74,982,817, accumulated losses of
HK$20,533,525, option reserve of HK$3,872,000, contributed
surplus of HK$4,750,108 and investment revaluation deficit of
HK$8,733,000.

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS

(GY)

(b)

Convertible notes

Pursuant to a subscription agreement dated 9 June 2015
entered into between the Company and Madam Lau, Anna
Siu Fun, an independent third party, the Company issued
convertible notes with principal value of HK$20,000,000
(“CNs”). The CNs mature 3 months from the issue date at
their principal value of HK$20,000,000, or the holder of
CNs is entitled to convert the CNs in whole or in part of the
principal amount into new ordinary shares of the Company
in amounts of not less than a whole multiple of
HK$1,000,000 at conversion price of HK$1.32 per share at
any time between the date of issue of CNs and 19
September 2015. The CNs bears no interest. The net
proceeds received from the issuance of CNs was HK$19.8
million. The reason for issuance of the convertible bonds is
for (i) investing in project(s) related to the development of
mobile application and two-way communication platform
targeted for property management companies, incorporated
owners, service providers for residential properties in Hong
Kong and the residents therein; and (ii) general working
capital of the Group.

The Group did not receive further consideration when the
holder converted the CNs into 15,151,515 ordinary shares
of the Company on 19 September 2015. Details of the CNs
are disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 9
June 2015 and 19 June 2015 respectively.

Share options

Details of the share options granted are set out in Note 36 to
the consolidated financial statements. No share options
were granted during the year ended 31 March 2016.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EXERE

o] 73 Tk fe 468

R2016FE3 A31H ' RERESHSARE
FHE - AR A A] 9K 7 A 54,338,400
7 7T (2015 4 : 26,663,033 7% 7T ) B 7 M {0
m (B74982817% 7w+ & i B 1B
20,533,525 8 7T - i i i R 1 3,872,000 7%
T - BEEA# 4,750,108 T MR E E L E
418,733,000 7T °

B R 88 177
() TRREE

BEARB BB E=ZFRKS L+
Fral 2 HERA201546 A9OBMRE
WE ARREBEBTASES
20,000,000 % 7T &9 o] # fs =45 ([ 7] #2
REE]) o A& ¥ & 20,000,000% 7T
WA R EE N B 1T B ST 3 ([
AEH - AR ERFEEABER
AR EEEITA B E 201549 A 19
HEIE BERZERETR1I2E
T B E BRI ASEEBRK AR
AmETEKR 2B AELR
1,000,000 702 SERE(E & - A[ R E
BT E - BT R EIRFTS B
FREA1,9808 BT o BT MR E
BHRAANKREEBAZREER
BAREMEBTAMER BERA
BETEYENYEETERR - XX
VEEE - RBHEEEREPER
RNVEAEB —REEESHE -

A AR2015F9 A19H # 1] # j%
EpwEiank 15,151 515 AR F) T @
WE  AEBEREWRESZNRE - 7]
R E RIS A D R B E A 2015 4
6 98 K2015F6 A19B M AMA

(b) B

ROBBENFBEN G U HRE
MisE36° B 2201653 A31H IEF
JE B AT B AR -

Annual Report 2015/16
2015/16 F 3]

/3



/4

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to date of
this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yan Chi Ming (Chairman)
(appointed on 17 December 2015)
Mr. Ho Ying Choi
Ms. Wu Yilin (appointed on 19 October 2015)
Mr. Liu Dan (resigned on 8 September 2015)
Mr. Shen Ka Yip, Timothy (resigned on 22 January 2016)
Ms. Lai Sze Yau, Vivien (resigned on 22 January 2016)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Kui Shing, Danny (appointed on 19 October 2015)
Mr. Shum Lok To (resigned on 8 March 2016)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tso Siu Lun, Alan

Mr. Lam Kai Yeung (appointed on 19 October 2015)

Mr. Lo Chi Ho, Richard (appointed on 17 December 2015)
Mr. Bai Jin Rong (resigned on 8 March 2016)

Mr. Chow Siu Lui (resigned on 19 October 2015)

Mr. Liu Dan (“Mr. Liu”) resigned on 8 September 2015 as an
executive Director. Mr. Liu confirmed that there is no
disagreement between him and the Board and there are no
matters relating to his resignation which need to be brought to the
attention of the shareholders of the Company.

Mr. Shen Ka Yip, Timothy (“Mr. Shen”) and Ms. Lai Sze Yau,
Vivien (“Ms. Lai”) resigned on 22 January 2016 as an executive
Directors. Mr. Shen and Ms. Lai confirmed that they have no
disagreement with the Board and there are no matters relating to
their resignations which need to be brought to the attention of the
shareholders of the Company.

Mr. Chow Siu Liu (“Mr. Chow”) resigned on 19 October 2015 as
an independent executive Director. Mr. Chow confirmed that
there is no disagreement between him and the Board and there
are no matters relating to his resignation which need to be
brought to the attention of the shareholders of the Company.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Shum Lok To (“Mr. Shum”) and Mr. Bai Jin Rong (“Mr. Bai")
resigned on 8 March 2016 as an non-executive Director and
independent non-executive Director. Mr. Shum and Mr. Bai
confirmed that they have no disagreement with the Board and
there are no matters relating to their resignation which needs to
be brought to the attention of the shareholders of the Company.

In accordance with articles of association of the Company, one-
third of the Directors will retire and being eligible offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming AGM. Moreover, any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
until the first annual general meeting after his/her appointment
and be subject to re-election at such meeting. Accordingly, Mr.
Yan Chi Ming, Ms. Wu Yilin, Mr. Wong Kui Shing, Danny, Mr. Tso
Siu Lun, Alan, Mr. Lam Kai Yeung and Mr. Lo Chi Ho, Richard
shall hold office until the next following AGM of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on page 41 to 51 of
the annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, a
permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors is
currently in force and was in force throughout the financial year.
The Company has purchased the Directors’ and Officers’ Liability
Insurance to provide protection against claims arising from the
lawful discharge of duties by the Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EEERE

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors is appointed for

an initial term of three year commencing from their respective

dates of appointment and shall continue thereafter from year to

year until terminated by two month’s notice in writing served by

either party on the other party.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the

forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the Company which

is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN

TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENT AND

CONTRACTS

Save for the respective director service contracts with each
Director, and save as disclosed under the paragraph “Connected

Transactions” on page 79 of the annual report, no transactions,
arrangements and contracts of significance in relation to the

Group’s business to which the Company’s subsidiaries, fellow
subsidiaries or its parent company was a party in which a director
of the Company and the director’s connected party had a material
interest whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the

year or at any time during the year under review.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at
general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the

Board with reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group as well as the
recommendation of the Remuneration Committee. Further details
of the Company’s Remuneration Committee are set out in the
corporate governance report on page 64 of the annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument of the employees of the Group is determined by
the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying employees employed.
The MPF scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme,
the Group and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000. Contributions to the MPF scheme vest immediately.

The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group, in fund under the control of trustees. During the year
ended 31 March 2016, total contributions paid or payable to the
MPF scheme by the Group amounted to approximately HK$9.4
million (2015: approximately HK$9.1 million) which had been
recognized as expenses and included in staff costs in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF
THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2016, none of the Directors and chief executive
of the Company had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
required standard of dealings by directors of listed issuers as
referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its subsidiaries, its
fellow subsidiaries, its parent company or its other associated
corporations a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
and chief executive of the Company (including their spouse and
children under 18 years of age) to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares or underlying shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or its specified undertakings or other associated
corporation.
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REFERPERGATEENR
RREMATHERZRRKXE

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER PERSONS
DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO

So far is known to the Directors, as at 31 March 2016,
shareholders who had interests or short positions in the securities
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
who were deemed to be directly and indirectly interested in 5% or
more of the issued share capital of the Company, or which were
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO and the Hong Kong

MEBERA - N2016F3 8318 RARQ
AEFR A AREES RHEEAIEXV
HE2 RFEIDFIEX AN R EEA S
KRB KR AEELNEEEEAAT
BEITARAND% sk A _ERORERS - SEARIEE
5 R HAE K05 336 1 R BB R Al gD (5
622 F ) il SR E AR RIFAF B Bt A4
WA B RARERT ¢

/8

Companies Ordinance, (Cap 622) were as follows:

Number of
Name of shares/ Approximate
Nature of controlling underlying percentage of
Name interests shareholder shares held shareholding
ERRE s, BAER
=L ERftE na/ a8 HEROHE B
Kingston Securities Limited Other (Note) Galaxy Sky 1,545,454 545 75%
(“Kingston Securities”)
EMEBHFERAT Hof (P ) Galaxy Sky 1,545,454,545 75%
e ES:E23)
Galaxy Sky Investments Interest in controlled Kingston 1,545,454 545 75%
Limited (“Galaxy Sky”) corporation Capital
Galaxy Sky Investments Limited TS EEE S Kingston 1,545,454,545 75%
([Galaxy Sky ) Capital
Kingston Capital Asia Limited Interest in controlled Kingston 1,545,454 545 75%
(“Kingston Capital”) corporation Financial
Kingston Capital Asia Limited TS EEE S THETR 1,545,454,545 75%
([Kingston Capital |)
Kingston Financial Group Interest in controlled Active Dynamic 1,545,454 545 75%
Limited (“Kingston Financial”) corporation
ENEEREEFRAA R EE# S Active Dynamic 1,545,454,545 75%
(l&fges])
Active Dynamic Limited Interest in controlled Chu Yuet Wah 1,545,454 545 75%
(“Active Dynamic”) corporation (“Madam Chu")
Active Dynamic Limited TG EEE S ZRE([RKAK]) 1,545,454,545 75%
([ Active Dynamic )
Interest in controlled - 1,545,454 545 75%
corporation
REEE# S - 1,545,454,545 75%

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
BRBEYEER (ZR)ERAH
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER PERSONS
DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO (continued)

Note: 1,545,454,545 shares represent the number of Offer Shares underwritten
by Kingston Securities in respect of the Proposed Open Offer, details of
which are set out in the paragraphs head “Proposed Open Offer and the
Proposed Change in Board Lot Size” in the section headed
“MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS” of this annual report.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016, no other interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO.

INTERESTS OF THE COMPLIANCE ADVISER

As notified by the Compliance Adviser of the Company, Ample
Capital Limited, as at 31 March 2016, except for the compliance
adviser agreement entered into between the Company and Ample
Capital Limited dated 27 September 2013, neither Ample Capital
Limited or its directors, employees or close associates had any
interest in relation to the Group.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Particulars of the Company’s share option schemes are set out in
note 36 to the consolidated financial statement. The total number
of shares available for issue under the share option scheme is
40,000,000 shares, which represented approximately 8.08% of
the issued shares of the Company as at the date of this report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

A summary of the related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 March 2016 is set out in note 34
to the consolidated financial statements.

The following transactions between certain connected persons (as
defined in the Listing Rules) and the Company have been entered
into or are ongoing for which relevant announcement, if
necessary, had been made by the company in accordance with
Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions

On 28 February 2014, More Rise Investment Limited (“More
Rise”), as the owner of the Tuen Mun office and storage property
in Hong Kong, and KSU entered into a rental agreement (the
“Tuen Mun Office Lease Agreement”) under which the Tuen Mun
office and storage property in Hong Kong is leased to KSU for a
term of one year from 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 at a
monthly rental of HK$28,000. For each of the years ended 31
March 2016 and 2015, the aggregate rent paid by KSU to More
Rise in respect of the Tuen Mun office and storage property were
HK$336,000 and HK$276,000 respectively. More Rise is jointly
owned by Mr. Ho Ying Choi and Mr. Ho Ying Cheung, Directors of
the Company (Mr. Ho Ying Cheung resigned as an executive
Director of the Company on 6 February 2015 and remain as a
director of KSU).

On 1 August 2015, Kong Shum Union (China) Limited (“KSU
China”), as the owner of the motor vehicle in Hong Kong, and
KSU entered into a rental agreement (the “Motor Vehicle Rental
Agreement”) under which the motor vehicle in Hong Kong is
leased to KSU for a term of one year from 1 August 2015 to 31
July 2016 at a monthly rental of HK$46,000. For each of the
years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015, the aggregate rent paid
by KSU to KSU China in respect of the motor vehicle were
HK$368,000 and nil respectively. KSU China is owned by Super
Potent Limited, a company owned by both Mr. Ho Yip Choi and
his spouse.

Pursuant to Rule 20.74(1) of the GEM Listing Rules, the
transactions under the Tuen Mun Office Lease Agreement and
the Motor Vehicle Rental Agreement, when considered in
aggregate, are exempted from the shareholders’ approval, annual
review and all disclosure requirements under Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the
requirements in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules in respect
of the transactions under the Tuen Mun Office Lease Agreement
and the Motor Vehicle Rental Agreement.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

As at 31 March 2015 and 2016, Mr. Ho Ying Choi, an Executive
Director and Mr. Ho Ying Cheung, who resigned as an Executive
Director on 6 February 2015 and remained as a Director of KSU
had provided joint and several unlimited personal guarantees in
favour of banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries within
the Group for nil consideration. At 31 March 2015 and 2016,
More Rise and Fortune Trend Investment Limited, two companies
controlled by Mr. Ho Ying Choi and Mr. Ho Ying Cheung, had
provided unlimited guarantees and pledged their properties to
secure banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries within the
Group for nil consideration.

Pursuant to Rule 20.88 of the GEM Listing Rules, these
transactions are exempted from shareholders’ approval, annual
review and all disclosure requirements under Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the
requirements in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules in respect
of the above financial assistance received.

Save as disclosed above, none of the related party transactions
set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statement
constitutes connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s revenue and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively

during the year are as follows:

| %2
R

TERFRHER

AEBNEIERPRHEEHEGEANFER
mREBOERIT -

Purchases

and

cleaning

Revenue subcontracting

W BERESE

HK$ HK$

BIT BT

The largest customer ST 15,455,224 N/A i F
Five largest customers in aggregate AREFPEET 58,192,378 N/A 713 A
The largest supplier AR N/A 738 5,767,645
Five largest suppliers in aggregate hAREEEER N/A i@ 12,935,214

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the aggregate percentage of
purchase attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers is
approximately 73.5% of the total purchases of the Group and the
largest supplier included therein amounted to approximately
32.8%.

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the aggregate percentage of
sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers is
approximately 14.6% of the total sales of the Group and the
largest customer included therein amounted to approximately
3.9%.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of
the Company’s issued shares) had any interest in the Group’s five
largest customers or suppliers.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the controlling shareholders or Directors and their
respective close associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules)
is interested in any business apart from the business operated by
the Group which competes or is likely to compete, directly or
indirectly, with the Group’s business.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that
there is sufficient public float of at least 25% of the Company’s
issued share as at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of
the annual report.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Details of events after the reporting period of the Group are set
out in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance report is set out on pages
52 to 69 of the annual report.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
World Link CPA Limited who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Yan Chi Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong
20 June 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B B AR E

Warnld Link CPA Limited

To the shareholders of
Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kong
Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 86 to 171, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2016,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2016 and of the Group’s financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

World Link CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Fung Tze Wa

Practising Certificate Number — PO1138

Hong Kong, 20 June 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEBEEKAEMEE KSR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZ 201643 A31 HiFF/E

nl 4

2016 2015
2016 & 20154
Notes HK$ HK$
Kiat BT BT

Revenue Yoz 10 374,024,102 339,721,845
Cost of services AR T B AR (295,755,913) (269,280,141)
Gross profit EF 78,268,189 70,441,704
Other revenue E e 11 1,493,796 349,850
Administrative expenses THHX (53,823,218) (44,121,824)
Other operating expenses HEmE @R (18,991,473) (18,717,508)
Finance costs & KA 12 (991,742) (658,207)
Profit before tax BRBE AR 13 5,955,552 7,294,015
Income tax expense PR1S T X 14 (3,140,684)  (2,319,591)
Profit for the year attributable to KAREE AEML

owners of the Company FRmA 2,814,868 4,974,424
Other comprehensive income FREMZEKRA > 2108 :

for the year, net of tax:
Item that may be reclassified to AlREEF D R E e BB

profit or oss:
Fair value changes of available-for-sale AJft HE & B EERN A E

financial asset b=k 21 (8,733,000) -
Total comprehensive income ERAREEAEBLEER

for the year attributable to ZHEHBALEE

the owners of the Company (5,918,132) 4,974,424
Earnings per share BEREBF

— Basic — EK 15 0.006 0.012

— Diluted — g 15 0.006 0.012

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited

BRBEYFEEE (ZR)ERQF




k CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e RN &R
N— At 31 March 2016 R201643 531 8
2016 2015
2016 & 20154
Notes HK$ HK$
k23 BT BT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BEM&E 18 3,452,658 4,024,459
Deposits placed for life insurance MAERBREFEANIES
policies 20 7,955,915 7,746,484
Available-for-sale financial asset AHHESRERE 21 4,267,000 -
Deferred tax assets EEFIAEE 22 2,306,791 2,056,504
17,982,364 13,827,447
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 K E M EFIE 23 54,519,563 46,504,347
Pledged bank deposits EEARITIFR 24 7,595,971 4,962,271
Income tax refundable AR B TS HR - 692,172
Cash and bank balances He MIRITE 24 64,772,631 34,576,349
126,888,165 86,735,139
Current liabilities REBaE
Trade and other payables B 5 KA R FRIE 25 46,101,883 42,473,654
Amount due to former ultimate [ AREIRS T3 /NEIE /S
holding company 26 - 1,657,151
Obligations under finance lease & T E 27 289,043 302,931
Bank borrowings — secured RITEE —FEM 28 8,582,888 16,711,730
Current tax liabilities BIEAfHIE & & 1,251,769 -
56,225,583 61,145,466
Net current assets REBEEFE 70,662,582 25,589,673
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERABERE 88,644,946 39,417,120
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Obligations under finance lease B A FH & EE 27 303,150 130,217
Net assets BEEFE 88,341,796 39,286,903

Annual Report 2015/16
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e PR &

At 31 March 2016 201643 /531 H

< ¥y

2016 2015
2016 & 20154
Notes HK$ HK$
BiaF BT BT

Capital and reserves IR R {48
Share capital [N 30 4,951,515 4,000,000
Reserves ] 32 83,390,281 35,286,903
Total equity REHSBERE 88,341,796 39,286,903

The consolidated financial statements on pages 86 to 171 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
20 June 2016 and were signed on its behalf by:

Yan Chi Ming
B BH
Director

EFE

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
BRBEYEER (ZR)ERAH

FCOEI/IENGAVBUMREHEES
7201646 A 20 B#t/#E MIRETE - Wl
ATFATRERE

Ho Ying Choi
1a] i B
Director

EFE



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REEREER

\r/ For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z 201643 431 HIFF/E
Share Investment Convertible
Share Share option Merger revaluation notes Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Reserve Total
(note 32(b)(i))  (note 32(b)ii))  (note 32(b)ii)  (note 32(b)(v))  (note 32(b)(vi)
TRREE
RA RBBE  BRERE ARE REEHREE e REER afE Aif
(Ba32m))  (Wa32m)i) (WE32m)) (E320))  (FE32)w)
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
iy BT AT o BT AT BT AT iy
At 1 April 2014 R201454A18 4000000 24,087,947 - 4750,108 - - 0720064 49567119 53567,119
2014 final dividends paid B 2014 R8RS - - - - - - (20,000,000)  (20,000,000)  (20,000,000)

Recognition of share-based ARG %708
payments - - 745,360 - - - - 745,360 745,360

Profit and total comprehensive  EREFIRZERA

income for the year b - - - - - - 4,974,424 4,974 424 4,974,424
Changes in equity for the year  FREHZEF - - 745,360 - - - (15025,576)  (14,280,216)  (14,280,216)
At 31 March 2015 and R2015E3A31HR

1 April 2015 01564 71H 4,000,000 24,087,947 745,360 4,750,108 - - 5,703,488 35,286,903 39,286,903

Recognition of share-ased ~ BERLLRHRAMEE
payments - - 3,126,640 - - - - 3,126,640 3,126,640

Issue of convertible notes BTERES

(note 29) (Hist29) - - - - - 640,000 - 640,000 640,000
Issue of shares upon conversion BRTBREHEH

of convertible notes Bk 151515 20,488,485 - - - (640,000) - 19,848,485 20,000,000
Placing of shares (note 30(2) BERR (4 3002) 800,000 30,406,385 - - - - - 30406385 31,206,385
Profit and total comprehensive  ERERR2ERA

income for the year @ - - - - (8,733,000) - 2,814,868 (5,918,132)  (5,918,132)
Changes in equity for the year FREZEH 951,515 50,894,870 3,126,640 - (8,733,000) - 2,814,868 48,103,378 49,054,893
At 31 March 2016 1201653531 H 4951515 74,982,817 3,872,000 4,750,108 (8,733,000) - 8,518,356 83,390,281  88,341,7%

Annual Report 2015/16
2015/16 F 3]

39



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZ 201643 A31 HiFF/E

R

2016 2015
2016 20154
Notes HK$ HK$
Kat BT BT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHMEBRAERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax B 152 B A 5,955,552 7,294,015
Adjustments for: ML TANZIBEL A
Interest income FBEWA (288,731) (291,100)
Depreciation of property, M - BEMERETE
plant and equipment 1,445,965 1,214,263
Premium charged on life ASRBIREFTBEURE
insurance policies 75,073 69,294
Finance costs BRE R 991,742 658,207
Gain on waiver of amount due to NP TEN SRR A 7]
ultimate holding company HIER U (1,205,065) -
Equity-settled share-based 1R AR A5 B AR D A B9
payments I8 3,126,640 745,360
Operating profits before working EEESEBATNREER
capital changes 10,101,176 9,690,039
Movement in working capital BRI EEE)
elements:
(Increase)/decrease in trade and E 5 & H MW FIE
other receivables (g, @ (8,015,216) 5,865,957
Increase in trade and other B 5 N H b B~ RIS 0
payables 3,628,229 863,520
(Decrease)/increase in amount FERT B AR YRR A R FR IR
due to ultimate holding R,/ 40
company (452,086) 1,657,151
Cash generated from operations KREEE RS 5,262,103 18,076,667
Interest paid 2RFE (328,872) (629,040)
Finance lease charges paid ENMERELH (22,870) (29,167)
Income tax paid ETFTEH (1,447,030) (3,761,006)
Net cash from operating activities RETEABRSFHR 3,463,331 13,657,454
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZBHAEBHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and BEWE - WENMEHE
equipment (314,614) (2,869,996)
Payment for investment of REFAHEELESHEE
available-for-sale financial asset EOKNEN (13,000,000) -
(Increase)/decrease in pledged DHIRRITER
bank deposits (H) F (2,633,700) 10,933,752
Interest received BUF B 4,227 1,390
Net cash (used in)/from investing RETE (FrA), B8R e
activities R (15,944,087) 8,065,146

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited

BRBEYFEEE (ZR)ERQF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z 201643531 HIFF/E

2016 2015
2016 F 20154
Notes HK$ HK$
Kat BT ABIT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RMETBHRESRESRE
ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid BT E - (20,000,000)
Repayments of bank loans BIZBRITE (7,738,029) (3,525,744)
Proceeds from placing of shares @E’Eﬂxfﬁﬁﬁ 31,206,385 -
Proceed from issue of convertible T}@HxK%Fﬁfr
notes 20,000,000 -
Repayments of obligations under EEMEHE
finance lease (400,505) (424,190)
Net cash from/(used in) financing BMEEEE (TR BES
activities FE 43,067,851 (23,949,934)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN ReRESEEY
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B CRd) BE 30,587,095 (2,227,334)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FHNRERRLEEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 32,540,102 34,767,436
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRASRRESEEY
END OF THE YEAR 63,127,197 32,540,102
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH HeRBEESEEYWIN
EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances R MIRITE 24 64,772,631 34,576,349
Bank overdrafts RITHEZ 28 (1,645,434)  (2,036,247)
63,127,197 32,540,102

Annual Report 2015/16
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS HRAR L

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z= 201643 31 HIFF/E

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
15 August 2012 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.
The address of its registered office is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman lIslands and its principal place of business is
located at Units 2201-3, 22/F., Tai Tung Building, 8
Fleming Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (the “GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 11 October 2013.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Group are provision of property
management services. The details and particulars of the
Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 19 to the
financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), which in collective term includes
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards; Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”); and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”). These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange (“GEM Listing Rules”) and
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
BRBEYEER (ZR)ERAH
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
AND REQUIREMENTS

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a basis consistent with the accounting policies adopted
in the 2015 consolidated financial statements. The adoption
of the new and revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the
Group and effective for its accounting year beginning on 1
April 2015 had no significant effects on the results and
financial position of the Group for the current and prior
years.

(@

Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The following standards have been adopted by the
Group for the first time for its accounting year
beginning 1 April 2015:

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions

Amendments to
HKAS 19

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.

3.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ERAR oL

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ## 201643431 HIFF/E

BRANFTE] RASIERT B R M B
HEARRE

IR A M HRER B RIZE 2015 F 47
B BHERARMNO S ETER — B8
EEGR RKMEXAXEEEBALER
201541 BRGNS FEENR
HFTE] RSB E] B A B IS £ RH
REBRAFERBTIFENEER
BRI mMERTE -

(@ EAHIREETERMBRE
R3]

AEER2015F4 71 BHKBH
SR EED B R MR

BEMBREES BEMBREER
)

CCHES 2010FE 20124
Bf FRME
BEMBREES BEMBREER
CCHES) 2011 FE 20134
Bf FRME
BREGHERNEION RERMEHE:
SHES) BEH#

RAFE R MEEFTER
MHREENHRNEERANER
FMOBEFEMHTBRIR LARR
/R EERE B RRAER
BEMUTEEATE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS HRAR L

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z= 201643 31 HIFF/E

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
AND REQUIREMENTS (continued)

(@

Application of new and revised HKFRSs
(continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012
Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012
Cycle include a number of amendments to various
HKFRSs, which are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 2 (i) change the
definitions of “vesting condition” and “market
condition”; and (ii) add definitions for “performance
condition” and “service condition” which were
previously included within the definition of “vesting
condition”. The amendments to HKFRS 2 are effective
for share-based payment transactions for which the
grant date is on or after 1 July 2014.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability
should be measured at fair value at each reporting
date, irrespective of whether the contingent
consideration is a financial instrument within the scope
of HKFRS 9 or HKAS 39 or a non-financial asset or
liability. Changes in fair value (other than measurement
period adjustments) should be recognised in profit and
loss. The amendments to HKFRS 3 are effective for
business combinations for which the acquisition date
is on or after 1 July 2014.

The amendments to HKFRS 8 (i) require an entity to
disclose the judgements made by management in
applying the aggregation criteria to operating segments,
including a description of the operating segments
aggregated and the economic indicators assessed in
determining whether the operating segments have
“similar economic characteristics”; and (ii) clarify that
a reconciliation of the total of the reportable segments’
assets to the entity’s assets should only be provided if
the segment assets are regularly provided to the chief
operating decision-maker.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
BRBEYEER (ZR)ERAH
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
AND REQUIREMENTS (continued)

(@

Application of new and revised HKFRSs
(continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012
Cycle (continued)

The amendments to the basis for conclusions of
HKFRS 13 clarify that the issue of HKFRS 13 and
consequential amendments to HKAS 39 and HKFRS 9
did not remove the ability to measure short-term
receivables and payables with no stated interest rate at
their invoice amounts without discounting, if the effect
of discounting is immaterial.

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 remove
perceived inconsistencies in the accounting for
accumulated depreciation/amortisation when an item
of property, plant and equipment or an intangible asset
is revalued. The amended standards clarify that the
gross carrying amount is adjusted in a manner
consistent with the revaluation of the carrying amount
of the asset and that accumulated depreciation/
amortisation is the difference between the gross
carrying amount and the carrying amount after taking
into account accumulated impairment losses.

The amendments to HKAS 24 clarify that a
management entity providing key management
personnel services to a reporting entity is a related
party of the reporting entity. Consequently, the
reporting entity should disclose as related party
transactions the amounts incurred for the service paid
or payable to the management entity for the provision
of key management personnel services. However,
disclosure of the components of such compensation is
not required.

The Directors consider that the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle has had no
material impact in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ERAR oL

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ## 201643431 HIFF/E
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS HRAR L

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z= 201643 31 HIFF/E

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
AND REQUIREMENTS (continued)

(@

Application of new and revised HKFRSs
(continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013
Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013
Cycle include a number of amendments to various
HKFRSs, which are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that the standard
does not apply to the accounting for the formation of
all types of joint arrangement in the financial
statements of the joint arrangement itself.

The amendments to HKFRS 13 clarify that the scope
of the portfolio exception for measuring the fair value of
a group of financial assets and financial liabilities on a
net basis includes all contracts that are within the
scope of, and accounted for in accordance with, HKAS
39 or HKFRS 9, even if those contracts do not meet
the definitions of financial assets or financial liabilities
within HKAS 32.

The amendments to HKAS 40 clarify that HKAS 40
and HKFRS 3 are not mutually exclusive and
application of both standards may be required.
Consequently, an entity acquiring investment property
must determine whether:

(a) the property meets the definition of investment
property in terms of HKAS 40; and

(b) the transaction meets the definition of a business
combination under HKFRS 3.

The amendments are applied prospectively. The
Directors consider that the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle has had no
material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
BRBEYEER (ZR)ERAH
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
AND REQUIREMENTS (continued)

(@

(b)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions

The amendments to HKAS 19 simplify the accounting
for contributions that are independent of the number
of years of employee service, for example, employee
contributions that are calculated according to a fixed
percentage of salary. Specifically, contributions that
are linked to services are attributed to periods of
services as a negative benefit. The amendments to
HKAS 19 specifies that such negative benefit are
attributed in the same way as the gross benefit, i.e.
attribute to periods of services under the plan’s
contribution formula or on a straight-line basis.

Besides, the amendments also states that if the
contributions are independent of the number of years
of employee service, such contributions may be
recognised as a reduction of the service cost as they
fall due.

The Directors consider that the application of the
amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions has had no material impact on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective
for the financial year beginning 1 April 2015. The
directors anticipate that the new and revised HKFRSs
will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements when they become effective. The Group is
in the process of assessing, where applicable, the
potential effect of all new and revised HKFRSs that will
be effective in future periods but is not yet in a position
to state whether these new and revised HKFRSs would
have a material impact on its financial performance
and financial position.

3.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS HRAR L

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z= 201643 31 HIFF/E

™
BRI RSB BB T K ®
HFEARRE (&)

& BB o R 4 AR RT R AR S
I BB B REZER (&)

B R AME B R R HT AT R

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs 3.
AND REQUIREMENTS (continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet (b)
effective (continued)

List of new and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective: RIEAUBHRELELRE
HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments? BATKREES SR T A2
F95:(2014%)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with BRI RS EL BEA 42
Customers? F15%
HKFRS 16 Leases* BB RE LA e
£16%
Amendments to Annual Improvements to EBMERELR BERBREED
HKFRSs HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle! (BETA) 2012F22014%F
B FELGE!
Amendments to Disclosure Initiative! EROHENELR BEHR!
HKAS 1 SEHES)

Amendments to Clarification of Acceptable BEGENF R BEUTERXZ
HKAS 16 and Methods of Depreciation REAEHER| WEREERE!
HKAS 38 and Amortisation? £33 (BFTA)

Amendments to Agriculture: Bearer Plants! HEOENS 6% 2¥:ELEEM
HKAS 16 and LB £
HKAS 41 F415(BFTR)

Amendments to Equity Method in Separate ey ]| By RREY
HKAS 27 Financial Statements! B 275 (BE]TR) Bk

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets BRI RS EL REEFHEKE
HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and F10HREES  DAHAELE
HKAS 28 its Associate or Joint ERIFEBH(BIAR) ZHEHHNEELE

Venture? FTE3

Amendments to Investment Entities: Applying BRI RS EL REER ER
HKFRS 10, the Consolidation Exception? F£10%  BEHH A NBRABIN
HKFRS 12 and RELAE 125K R
HKAS 28 BB LR

E 285 (BFTA)

Amendments to Accounting for Acquisitions of EHEB RS UrBs A & g ¢
HKFRS 11 Interests in Joint Operations? F11% (BFIAX) gHE!

Amendments to Disclosure initiative BEQHENETR BEAIR
HKAS 7°

Amendments to Recognition of deferred tax EREHENFE 129 HAEREBEER
HKAS 12° assets for unrealised losses ELEREEE

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 1 MW2016F 1 81 sk 2 B8HBHE

2016, with earlier application permitted. EHRAER - TAFFIRERER -
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 W2018F 1 A1 Az BFRMBHIF
2018, with earlier application permitted. EHEER  WAFIREER -

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be 3 REFETHES 2 BRENFE

determined. Early adoption is permitted. B WA FFIRTEEM -

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 4 W2019F 1 A1 sk 2 8HBHE

2019, with earlier application permitted. EHRAER - WAFFIRERER -
5 Effective for annual periods on or after 1 January 2017. 5 R2017F1 A1 Bk Z1BRFEH

Bk ’7& °©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS ERAR oL

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ## 201643431 HIFF/E

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs 3. BAMFFIRLIETERBIBEIR

AND REQUIREMENTS (continued)
(c) Amendments to the GEM Listing Rules

The Company has adopted the amendments to
Chapter 18 of the GEM Listing Rules in relation to the
disclosure of financial information with reference to the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) during
the current year. The main impact on the financial
statements is on the presentation and disclosures of
certain information in the consolidated financial
statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, unless mentioned
otherwise in the accounting policies below (e.g. available-
for-sale financial assets that are measured at fair value).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(@) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 March. The financial
statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting year as that of the Company.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group. Subsidiaries are entities
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group has power over an entity when the
Group has existing rights that give it the current ability
to direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities that
significantly affect the entity’s returns.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS HRAR L

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z= 201643 31 HIFF/E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(@

Consolidation (continued)

When assessing control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential voting rights
held by other parties, to determine whether it has
control. A potential voting right is considered only if the
holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
the Group obtain and continue to be consolidated until
the date when such control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the
sale plus the fair value of any investment retained in
that subsidiary determined on the date when control is
lost; and (ii) the carrying amount of the Company’s
share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus any
remaining goodwill relating to that subsidiary and any
related accumulated amounts in other comprehensive
income.

All Intragroup transactions, balances, income and
expenses and profits and losses are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred.

In the Company’s statement of financial position the
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses. The carrying amount of the
investment is reduced to its recoverable amount on an
individual basis, if it is higher than the recoverable
amount. The results of a subsidiary are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividends received
and receivable.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b) Foreign currencies

(i)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Groups’ entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"),
which is the Group’s and the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency on initial recognition
using the exchange rates prevailing on the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
in foreign currencies are translated at the
exchange rates at the end of each reporting
period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
values in foreign currencies are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates when the fair
values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income.
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in profit or loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS HRAR L

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z= 201643 31 HIFF/E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b)

Foreign currencies (continued)

(ii) Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different
from the Company’s presentation currency are
translated into the Company’s presentation
currency as follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

— Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates for the period
(unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the exchange rates on the
transaction dates); and

— All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the foreign currency
translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of monetary items that part of
the net investment in foreign entities are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the foreign currency translation
reserve. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are reclassified to
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or
loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in the profit or loss during the period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their costs less
accumulated impairment losses from the date on
which they are available for use and after taking
account their residual value over the estimated useful
lives on a straight-line basis. The principal residual
value and useful lives are as follows:

Leasehold improvement 20%
Furniture and fixture 10%
Motor vehicle 30%
Office equipment 25%

The residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. The gain or loss on disposal
of property, plant and equipment is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in the
profit or loss in the year in which the asset is
derecognised.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS HRAR L

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z= 201643 31 HIFF/E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d)

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets except available-for-sale financial asset and
receivables to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the assets is estimated in order
to determine the extent of any impairment loss. Where
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-
generating unit is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-
generating unit is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation increase.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e)

(f)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the statement of financial position when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the assets; or the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the assets but has not retained
control on the assets. On derecognition of a financial
asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised
in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised
in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis where the purchase or sale of an
financial asset is under a contract whose terms require
delivery of the financial assets within the timeframe
established by the market concerned, and are initially
measured at fair value, plus directly attributable
transaction costs except in the case of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS HRAR L

For the year ended 31 March 2016 &% 201643 A31 H I F/E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(f)

Financial assets (continued)

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: loans and receivables and available-for-
sale. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.

(i)

(ii)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. These assets
are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method (except for short-term receivables
where interest is immaterial) minus any reduction
for impairment or uncollectibility. Typically trade
and other receivables, cash and bank balances
are classified in this category.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivative financial assets that are not classified
as loans and receivables, held-to-maturity
investments or financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. Available-for-sale financial
assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value
of these investments are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve, until the
investments are disposed of or there is objective
evidence that the investments are impaired, at
which time the cumulative gains or losses
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified from equity to profit or
loss. Interest calculated using the effective
interest method and dividends on available-for-
sale equity investments are recognised in profit or
loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(9)

(h)

Convertible notes

Convertible notes which entitle the holder to convert
the notes into a fixed number of equity instruments at
a fixed conversion price are regarded as compound
instruments consisting of a liability and an equity
component. At the date of issue, the fair value of the
liability component is estimated using the prevailing
market interest rate for similar non-convertible debt.
The difference between the proceeds of issue of the
convertible notes and the fair value assigned to the
liability component, representing the embedded option
for the holder to convert the notes into equity of the
Group, is included in equity as convertible notes
reserve. The liability component is carried as a liability
at amortised cost using the effective interest method
until extinguished on conversion or redemption.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability
and equity components of the convertible notes based
on their relative carrying amounts at the date of issue.
The portion related to the equity component is charged
directly to equity.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument under
HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group
after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting
policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and
equity instruments are set out below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS HRAR L

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z= 201643 31 HIFF/E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(i

0

(k)

Financial guarantee contract liabilities

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured
initially at their fair values and are subsequently
measured at the higher of:

the amount of the obligations under the contracts,
as determined in accordance with HKAS 37
“Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets”; and

the amount initially recognised less cumulative
amortisation recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the terms of the guarantee
contracts.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change in
value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of
cash and cash equivalents.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less, they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented
as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less allowance
for impairment.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

(m)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterially, in which case they
are stated at cost.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in the profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Fee paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the drawn-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn-down, the fee is capitalised as a
prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over
the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the reporting period.

o

(m)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS HRAR L

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z= 201643 31 HIFF/E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(n)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and
used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset,
the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation
is determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the
expenditure on that asset. The capitalisation rate is the
weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to
the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made
specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS ERAR oL

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ## 201643431 HIFF/E

)
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

4. BEXEFEEE)

(o) Taxation FiE

(0)

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in
profit or loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused tax
losses or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interest in joint
arrangement, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS HRAR L

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z= 201643 31 HIFF/E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(o) Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised
in profit or loss, except when it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model of the Group whose
business objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time, rather than through sale. If the
presumption is rebutted, deferred tax for such
investment properties are measured based on the
expected manner as to how the properties will be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(P)
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Employee benefits

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up to
the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Bonus plans

The expected bonus payments are recognised as
a liability when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of
the obligation can be made. Liabilities for bonus
plans are expected to be settled within 12 months
and are measured at the amounts expected to be
paid when they are settled.

Defined contribution retirement benefit
scheme

The Group contributes to a defined contribution
retirement benefit scheme (“MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance, for all of its employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employee’s basic salaries. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in an independently administered
fund.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss as employees render services during
the year. The Group’s obligations under this plan
is limited to the fixed percentage contributions
payable.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS HRAR L

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z= 201643 31 HIFF/E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(P)

(a)

Employee benefits (continued)
(iv) Long service payments

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long
service payments under the Employment
Ordinance is the amounts of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their services
in the current and prior periods. The obligation is
calculated using the projected unit credit method
and discounted to its present value and after
deducting the fair value of any related assets,
including those retirement scheme benefits.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
BRBEYEER (ZR)ERAH

x> W

4. BEXEFEEE)

(o)}

(@

EEEF ()
(iv) REBRHBE

AEERBRRFERD 2 KB
RESEEFERREENK
HAR SR 1 ER R IR AR A% P
REZ KRB EHE - B
BETSAGAT EAEBUART
8 WEAREHRE - B
FRERAEEE (BRENK
AEEM) 2 AfE -

4]

AEBRADBHENFEHAAER
BEESERME  METEE
BRI ST EN SR L - WA
ERMATETSBNBERLT - R
HREEHAEEIEENRAE
MR - MESHEEEEAR A
BB B R ARNERRZ A
EXHMRESRE -

HBEZRLEENDEOEE T
R HEESBEEEASEMEE
AIEEIHBERIAEE  FRIF
AN 20 2 T REMERR K RI 55
TERlGR - BB 2 EEFEH
ARBRARBERREEHE—FR
HZREFMME - BRIFEER R
M Z AT REMEIRIE - BRIGLSR



s

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(r)

(s)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or
loss as follows:

(i)  Property management services income

Revenue from property management services are
recognised when services are rendered in
accordance with the terms of the agreements.
Revenue from the provision of other supporting
services for the management of the property is
recognised when the services are rendered.

(ii) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially
recognised as assets of the Group at their fair value at
the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as a
finance lease obligation.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS HRAR L

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z= 201643 31 HIFF/E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(s)

(t)

Leasing (continued)
The Group as lessee (continued)

Lease payments are apportioned between finance
expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so as to
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability. Finance expenses are
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless they
are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which
case they are capitalised in accordance with the
Group’s general policy on borrowing costs. Contingent
rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in
which they are incurred.

Operating leases payments (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to
the Group.

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the

Group.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

() Related parties (continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group. If
the Group is itself such a plan, the
sponsoring employers are also related to the
Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS HRAR L

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z= 201643 31 HIFF/E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(u)

(v)

Bank balances in client accounts

Certain bank accounts were opened and held in the
name of a subsidiary of the Group on behalf of some
customers. Such bank accounts are regarded as client
accounts held on behalf of third parties and are not
recognised as assets and associated liabilities in the
financial statements of the Group.

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled transactions

The Group’s employees, including directors, receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby the employees rendered services
in exchange for shares or rights over shares. The cost
of such transactions with employees is measured by
reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at
the grant date. The fair value of share options granted
to employees is recognised as an employee cost with a
corresponding increase in a reserve within equity. The
fair value is determined using the binomial model,
taking into account the terms and conditions of the
transactions, other than conditions linked to the price
of the shares of the Company (“market conditions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over
the years in which the vesting conditions are to be
fulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant
employees become fully entitled to the award (“vesting
date”). During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest ultimately is reviewed.
Any adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to profit or loss for
the year of the review, with a corresponding adjustment
to the reserve within equity.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 4 to the financial statements,
management is required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are based on
past experience, expectations of the future and other
information that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods of the revision affect both current
and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next reporting period.

(@) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

In applying the accounting policy on property, plant
and equipment with respect to depreciation,
management estimates the useful lives of various
categories of property, plant and equipment based on
the historical experience of the actual useful lives of
assets of similar nature and functions. The Group will
revise the depreciation charge where useful lives are
different to those previously estimated, or it will write-
off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS HRAR L

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z= 201643 31 HIFF/E

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(b)

()

(d)

Income tax

The Group is subject to income tax in Hong Kong.
Significant estimates are required in determining the
provision for income tax. There are certain transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Share-based payment expenses

The fair value of the share options granted to directors
and consultants are determined at the grant/
measurement date. In assessing the fair value of the
share option, the generally accepted option pricing
model was used. The option pricing model requires the
input of subjective assumptions, including the
expected dividend yield and expected life of option and
etc. Any changes in these assumptions can significant
affect the estimate of fair value of the share options.

Equity-settled share-based payments of HK$3,126,640
(2015: HK$745,360) had been recognised in profit or
loss for the year ended 31 March 2016.

Fair value of available-for-sale financial asset

In the absence of quoted market price in an active
market of the Group’s available-for-sale financial asset,
the Group appointed an independent professional
valuer to assess its fair value at the end of the reporting
period. In determining the fair value, the valuer has
utilised a method of valuation which involves certain
estimates. The directors have exercised their
judgement and are satisfied that the method of
valuation and inputs used are reflective of the current
market conditions.

The carrying amount of available-for-sale financial
asset as at 31 March 2016 was HK$4,267,000 (2015:
Nil).

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure the Group will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balances.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which
includes the obligations under finance lease and bank
borrowings as disclosed elsewhere in the financial
statements, net of cash and bank balances, and equity
attributable to owners of the Group, comprising issued share
capital, reserves and retained profits.

The management of the Company reviews the capital
structure periodically. The Company considers the cost of
capital and risk associated with each class of capital, and
will balance its overall capital structure through payment of
dividends, issuance of new shares as well as the raising of
new debts.

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for
the Group to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it
has to have a public float of at least 25% of the shares. The
Group receives reports from the share registrars regularly on
substantial share interests showing the non-public float and
it demonstrates continuing compliance with the 25% limit
since the Listing. As of 31 March 2016, all (2015: 25%) of
the Company’s shares are in public hands.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 &% 201643 A31 H I F/E

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, credit risk, interest rate risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance.

(@

(b)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency
risk as the Group’s deposits placed for life insurance
policies are denominated in United States dollar
(“US$").

The Group considers the risk exposure to foreign
currency fluctuation is limited as long as the HK$
remains pegged to the US$. This analysis is performed
on the same basis for 2015.

Credit risk

The carrying amounts of the trade and other
receivables, pledged bank deposits, bank balances
included in the consolidated statement of financial
position represents the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to the Group’s financial assets.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk. The Group has policies in place to ensure that
services rendered to customers with an appropriate
credit history.

The credit quality of the counterparties in respect of
trade and other receivables is assessed by taking into
account their financial position, credit history and other
factors. Given the constant repayment history, the
directors are of the opinion that the risk of default by
these counterparties is low.

The credit risk on pledged bank deposits and bank
balances is limited because the counterparties are
banks with high credit-ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
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Interest rate risk

The Group’s finance lease payables bear interests at
fixed interest rates and therefore are subject to fair
value interest rate risks.

The Group’s exposure to interest-rate risk arises from
its bank deposits and borrowings. These bank deposits
and borrowings bear interests at floating rates varied
with the then prevailing market condition.

It is estimated that a general increase/(decrease) of 50
basis points in interest rate, with all other variables
held constant, would have (decreased)/increased the
Group’s profit after tax for the year as follows:

()
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7. ©ETIA(E)

RS 1

A AR SRR AR
FlRE 8 - EMEHAR ERE
e o

e EEERTER R EEAE
ENFIRES - RERTERR
B R 5 TR LT B R R
g\o

EFEEBEBHERTENER
T fEEtF =R PR (T E)
SO fEIE R - AEBEMFARRBR
A AE Of ), G ERIT

Consolidated profit after tax
(decreased)/increased hy

BRI B AR SR T

CR2) /180
2016 2015
2016 20154
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Increase/(decrease) in interest rate by: FIZR F3 () :

50 basis points 50 &1 Z EBf (42,914) (83,559)
(50) basis points (50) 1EE 2L 42,914 83,559
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z= 201643 31 HIFF/E

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d) Liquidity risk

< ¥y

7. @R IAE)
(d) FEBELER
AEEBR AT A AR

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The maturity analysis based on contractual

RS ELFE K UHEREAE
RABETREE  AENREH

AEBIITESRABBERALOR

PANN ==

undiscounted cash flows of the Group’s non-derivative BLIRI S s NE o -
financial liabilities is as follows:
More than Total
On demand 1 year but Contractual
or within lessthan  Undiscounted Carrying
1 year 5 years cash flow Amount
REXS BBI1E ENRER
—FUR BINEE RERELE RE{E
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B BT BT BT
At 31 March 2016 R2016F3A31H
Trade and other payables ESREMENTE 46,101,883 - 46,101,883 46,101,883
Bank loans subject to WEERERERKER
a repayment on demand METERREX
clause and overdrafts 8,582,888 - 8,582,888 8,582,888
Finance lease payables EARERETE 306,936 311,306 618,242 592,193
54,991,707 311,306 55,303,013 55,276,964
More than Total
On demand 1 year but Contractual
or within lessthan  Undiscounted Carrying
1 year 5 years cash flow Amount
RERH il 1F BHIRE
—FIA BIRN5FE ReRELH AREE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
At 31 March 2015 M201543A31H
Trade and other payables B 5 & Ht e[ 0B 42,473,654 - 42,473,654 42,473,654
Amount due to ultimate JE T R AR B A B FUR
holding company 1,657,151 - 1,657,151 1,657,151
Bank loans subject to MEBRERET R
a repayment on demand MRTEFREX
clause and overdrafts 16,711,730 - 16,711,730 16,711,730
Finance lease payables ENRERETE 314,265 133,875 448,140 433,148
61,156,800 133,875 61,290,675 61,275,683

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z 201643531 HIFF/E

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 7. SRIA(E&)

(d) Liquidity risk (continued) (d) "BESRER(E)
Bank loans with repayment on demand clause are B ZRESCEFTIEXHIRITE R
included in the “on demand or less than 1 year” time HA B EA ST [ E sk
band of the above maturity analysis. As of 31 March —FEPAA | B9 EER o R 2016
2016, the aggregate undiscounted principal amount of F3HA31H  ZFRITEFHR
these bank loans amounted to HK$8,582,888. Taking BLIR 7R 4858 /528,582,888/B 7T ©
into account the Group’s financial position, the ZRINANEBOMBKEMRL  EF
directors do not believe that it is probable that the REBRITTIKAGEEITERENT
banks will exercise their discretionary rights to demand IEREERTBER - EEEE
immediate repayment. The directors believe that such EHABITEREBIRIEBEBERD
bank loans will be repaid in accordance with the ZRTEETEIEHEEESE o
scheduled repayment dates set out in relevant loan
agreements.
(e) Categories of financial instruments at 31 March (e) M3A3THMERMIARESR
2016 2015
2016 & 20154
HK$ HK$
BT m
Financial assets: THREE
Available-for-sale financial asset AHHESRERE 4,267,000 -
Loans and receivables (including ERMERFGIE(BERE R
cash and cash equivalents): ReFEY) -
Deposits placed for life HASREBREBIFEA
insurance policies iz & 7,955,915 7,746,484
Trade and other receivables 2 5 N E b W FRIE 52,864,288 45,518,979
Pledged bank deposits BEIRIRITFER 7,595,971 4,962,271
Cash and bank balances R e MIRTTH R 64,772,631 34,576,349
Financial liabilities: cHaE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: & # 5k AsHERN S R A & -
Trade and other payables B 5 N E MR FRIE 46,101,883 42,473,654
Amount due to ultimate holding B Bx 8545 AR X B FRIB
company - 1,657,151
Bank borrowings — secured RITEE -FEA 8,582,888 16,711,730
(f)  Fair value n 2RE

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated
financial position approximate their fair values as at 31
March 2016 and 2015.

AV BRATRBEANEES R
EXeHEENFAERES
B R 20164 & 201543 A31 H
BWARERE °
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 &% 201643 A31 H I F/E

8. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
following disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair
value hierarchy that categorises into three levels the inputs
to valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Group can access at the
measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices
included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and

transfers out of any of the three levels as of the date of the

event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

(@) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31

L %
_e

[AERE

NRERMS2EEEFERETZ
BEMFRZPHE -BEEMKREK
BE-RABMSINER - ATH
BRAREAEERANLEFTRE
Wl - BEAKSIKAUGTEARE
ERfMzEBABES R=F  F1EW
T

F—RBA  AKEAEGFEHBR
2R BZHREESXEE
HEIREMIS 2 RECK

RRE) -

FE-_RBA  BE-ATHREMA
2k S EP A B E
EERENBZEEN

BERARE -

F=_RBA BEIREZIEELER
2 R NBUE -

AEENBRENEHERBERNE
e EEBELER R =(ERRIE
EfEAREL -

(@) MIANBEMAABEBHRIIKE :

March:
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Description: it :
Recurring level 3 fair value KEME=F AN ETE
measurement:
Available-for-sale financial asset AtHESREE
— Unlisted equity investment —JEET™ Hx$?ﬁ 4,267,000 -

1 2 6Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z 201643531 HIFF/E

8. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 8. AREFE(E)
(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value b) UB=RAAEBEFEZEEY
based on level 3: BE :
Available for-sale financial asset
Unlisted equity investment
AHHESREE
FLETRERE
2016 2015
2016 ¢ 20154
HK$ HK$
BT m
Description: ot
At 1 April R4A1H - -
Addition during the year FRRE 13,000,000 -
Fair value changes recognised in REMEEWATERL
other comprehensive income NREEE (8,733,000) -
At 31 March M3 A31H 4,267,000 -

()

During the year, there was no asset transferred from
level 3 to other two levels of fair value hierarchy.

Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair
value measurements at 31 March:

The Group’s management is responsible for the fair
value measurements of assets required for financial
reporting purposes, including level 3 fair value
measurements. In respect of level 3 fair value
measurements, the Group normally engages external
valuation experts with relevant recognised
qualifications and experience to perform the valuations.
The management reviews the fair value measurements
once a year, which is in line with the Group’s reporting
dates. The valuation techniques used and the key
inputs to the level 3 fair value measurements are set
out below:

Description Valuation technique

Level 3: Unlisted equity
investment

Asset approach:
— Discount rate

(©

TR BEEEBQABERERS
BB E MM

AEEFRAGERFRGERM
URAREBEEFRA@ARE
MIAZNHZHE:

AEBEEREREEITHEBRR
BEEEAREFE  ETBRAE

FE=MANEFE - RBE=AR
REFEMS AEE—REZE
HERR Al & 18 K& B r S a1
BEHEFETHE BEEEFHE
BAAEFE R EARKER
WA - F=RLAENE
At R (E i 2 = 2 A BUR 1A
B

it R ERA
F=M kLW BEZE:
AR E — BAER X
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z= 201643 31 HIFF/E

8. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(c) (continued)

The information about the significant unobservable
inputs used in level 3 fair value measurement is set out

< ¥y

AREFTE ()
(c) (&)

E=RAREFEMAEARTH
BRBABBZEMIINNT

below.
Effect on fair value
Description Unobservable input Range for increase of input
B BRI
it FAERE AYE & E PREZEE
2016 2015
2016 20154
Unlisted equity investment Discount rate 14.1% N/A Decrease

FE LA E BhIE &

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group currently operates in one operating segment that
is property management services. A single management
team reports to the Group’s chief operating decision-maker
who allocates resources and assesses performance based
on the consolidated result for the year for the entire business
comprehensively. Accordingly, the Group does not present
separate segment information.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue from major services is
set out in note 10 below. No customer accounted for 10
percent or more of the total revenue for the years ended 31
March 2016 and 2015.

During the two years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015, all
revenue is derived from customers in Hong Kong and the
Group’s non-current assets as at 31 March 2016 and 2015
are all located in Hong Kong.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
BRBEYEER (ZR)ERAH
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10. REVENUE

11.

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of property
management services during the year. An analysis of the
Group’s revenue recognised during the years is as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS ERAR oL

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z 201643531 HIFF/E

AEERFRAETEXSRHEDEEE
RF - FARKENE R Wm0

2016 2015
2016 F 20154
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Provision of property management R HEE B RS
services 374,024,102 339,721,845
OTHER REVENUE 11. Hibls
2016 2015
2016 & 2015 4F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Bank interest income IRITH BUA 4,227 1,390
Interest income from deposits placed MASRBREFTANES
for life insurance policies B R E U A 284,504 289,710
Gain on waiver of amount due to NP EN B SR AR IR A Bl FTE
former ultimate holding company ol 1,205,065 -
Sundry income FETHIA - 58,750
1,493,796 349,850
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z= 201643 31 HIFF/E

< ¥y

12. FINANCE COSTS 12. @& R
2016 2015
2016 20154
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Interest on: T3 BB E
Bank borrowings wholly repayable RAEFRNEBSEENRITEE
within five years 328,872 629,040
Imputed interest on convertible notes AR E L % FI A 640,000 -
Finance lease charges BEHEER 22,870 29,167
991,742 658,207
13. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 13. BRBIADEF
Profit before tax is arrived at after charging the following: BRESEDE M T BRI HIIE R -
2016 2015
2016 &£ 20154
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Auditor’s remuneration ZHAD BN 5 550,000 500,000
Depreciation of property, plant and ME  WMENMEREITE
equipment (note 18) (Btat 18) 1,445,965 1,214,263
Equity-settled consultancy fees EREEENEREA 2,207,040 116,160
Legal and professional fees FENEEEHR 3,831,170 5,111,092
Operating lease rentals in respect of BAHEDENECERS
premises 3,147,400 2,727,837
Staff costs including directors’ BTRA(BIEEEEM)
remuneration (note 16) (HizF 16)
— salaries, wages and other benefits — e ITENMEMER 332,337,435 280,909,792
— equity-settled share-based — RSB AR 2 T
payments SN 919,600 629,200
— contributions to retirement — [MERREFE IR
benefit scheme 9,391,812 9,173,858

1 3 OKong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS ERAR oL

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z 201643531 HIFF/E

14.

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2015: 16.5%) based on the estimated assessable

FrEBiMAX

FR - FEMNNESHEBBEFANGHE
SR T % R 1% 16.5% (20154 : 16.5%)

profit for the year. VEL A o
2016 2015
2016 20154
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Current income tax BIHAFTIS A
Hong Kong Profits Tax BENEH
— Provision for the year — FNEE 3,447,352 2,191,964
— Over-provision in prior years — BEFEHBERE (56,381) (49,779)
3,390,971 2,142,185
Deferred tax assets (note 22) BERIBEE (F22)
— Origination and reversal of — R EEAN R LD
temporary differences (250,287) 150,226
— Under-provision in prior years — BAFEBRETR - 27,180
Total tax charge for the year NEEMIBRZ 25 3,140,684 2,319,591
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z= 201643 31 HIFF/E

| %

< ¥y

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 14. FTEFHBEX (&)

A reconciliation between the income tax expense and the
accounting profit, at applicable tax rate is set out below:

AEBIRERREFERNMBHRAX
SEDEFROE RSN

2016 2015

2016 &£ 20154

HK$ HK$

BT m

Profit before tax B 35 A& A 5,955,552 7,294,015
Notional tax on profit before tax, LEAIT R 16.5% T EH)
calculated at current tax rate of 16.5%  BREL A& M A BHETIE

(2015: 16.5%) (20154 : 16.5%) 982,666 1,203,512

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 7~ A] 1) 1 Sz #h ¢ 18 57 28 2,262,040 1,190,166

Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BEFRHRENRIETE (47,641) (51,488)

Over-provision in prior years BEFEBEERE (56,381) (49,779)

Temporary differences not recognised in I £ R 3B 1+ F € FERHY
prior years TSR - 27,180
Income tax expense FrS B 3,140,684 2,319,591

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
BRBEYEER (ZR)ERAH
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The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
following:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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15. BRER
SREARFER TEHETE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z 201643531 HIFF/E

2016 2015
2016 & 20154
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Earnings 27
Earnings for the purpose of calculating s+ & G AR E AR ZFIH 2 F
basic earnings per share 2,814,868 4. 974,424
Finance costs saving on conversion of  #E# 5k & [0 a] # IR 21505
convertible notes outstanding B A H R E P AN 640,000 -
Earnings for the purpose of calculating 5t E &R ESE R M B & F)
diluted earnings per share 3,454,868 4,974,424
2016 2015
2016 20154
Number of shares R&HE A
Issued ordinary shares at 1 April R4 1BEBITE R 400,000,000 400,000,000
Effect of conversion of convertible notes  #&#a T}ﬁHxK?gE’j%gﬂ 8,031,131 -
Effect of placing of shares Bl ERD R E 38,688,525 -
Weighted average number of ordinary 53 & i% E 2N 2 K| 8 & 8 A%
shares for the purpose of calculating DORE 15 &
basic earnings per share 446,719,656 400,000,000
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares r‘j’ﬂiﬁ@T}ﬁ REEFTES
arising from convertible note BHEEET AR E
outstanding 3,808,578 -
Weighted average number of ordinary HERES RN T EAR
shares for the purpose of calculating ﬂHTE$i9§5(
diluted earnings per share 450,528,234 400,000,000

The effects of the Company’s outstanding share options as
at 31 March 2016 and 2015 do not give rise to any dilution
effect to the earnings per share.

B 488
=

ANANF 201649 M 201553 A31H
e R TT 158 8 A R Y
MEEEFEEZE -

WESFRA
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZ 201643 A31 HiFF/E

16. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’

R

16. EEREEFHFM

EMOLUMENTS
(@) Directors’ remuneration (@) E=FH
Details of the emoluments paid or payable to each 2 ENMNAA RS ESHH
director of the Company are as follows: FEA=S(IN
2016 2016
Contributions
Salaries  Equity-settled to retirement
Directors’ and other share-hased henefits
fee henefits payments scheme Total
ERELE
HER kG mEKER
Eshe R XANEE HE At
Notes: HKS HKS$ HKS$ HKS HK$
B BT B Y BT AT
Executive directors: #i7ES.
Yan Chi Ming (v) 515 174,194 - - - 174,194
Ho Ying Choi MR - 4,294,829 - 18,000 4,312,829
Wu Yulin (iii) R 135,484 - - - 135,484
Liu Dan (i) Liu Dan - 1,053,333 - - 1,053,333
Shen Ka Yip, Timothy (ii) HEZ - 1,451,613 459,800 15,000 1,926,413
Lai Sze Yau, Vivien (il 2EK - 774,194 459,800 15,000 1,248,994
Non-executive directors: FHEE.
Waong Kui Shing, Danny (iii TER 54,194 - - - 54,194
Shum Lok To (vi) £33 101,032 - - - 101,032
Independent non-executive directors: BUFHTES:
Tso Si Lun, Alan E¥h 120,000 - - - 120,000
Lam Kai Yeung (i) Wi 54,193 - - - 54,193
Chow Siu Lui (iv) B E 65,806 - - - 65,806
Lo Chi Ho, Richard ) it 34,839 - - - 34,839
Bai Jin Rong (vi) Ag% 112,258 - - - 112,258
852,000 1,573,969 919,600 48,000 9,393,569
Notes: Biat
(i) Resigned on 8 September 2015 (i)  72015%F9 A8HEHE
(i) Resigned on 22 January 2016 (i)  F2016%F 1 A22 HEHE
(i) Appointed on 19 October 2015 (i) PM2015%F 10 19BEZ T
(iv)  Resigned on 19 October 2015 (iv) 720154 10 A 19 HEHE
(v)  Appointed on 17 December 2015 (v) FR2015F 128 17HEZF
(vi)  Resigned on 8 March 2016 (vi) 7201643 ASHET

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited

BRBEYFEEE (ZR)ERQF



k NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R M &
\l—" For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z 201643 431 HIFF/E
16. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 16. EEREEHN (E)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(@) Directors’ remuneration (continued) (a) EE=FHE(E)
2015 20154
Contributions
Salaries fo retirement
Directors' and other Share-based benefits
fee benefits payments scheme Total
#ek UG mRKER
Ezhg Hip @A XAMFE TR %
HKS HK$ HKS HKS HKS
o o BT BT BT
Executive directors: 01ES:
Ho Ying Choi frIfEss - 2,150,007 - 17500 2,167 507
Ho Ying Cheung R - 1,706,633 - 14768 1,721401
Liu Dan Liu Dan - 470,968 - - 470,968
Shen Ka Yip, Timothy HEL - 273214 314,600 3,000 590,814
Lai Sze Yau, Vivien BRK - 145,714 314,600 3000 463314
Non-executive directors: FHES:
Shum Lok To Bz 21322 94,613 - 4731 120,666
Kam Tak Yeung ¢RE 107,893 - - - 107,893
Independent non-executive directors: BUTES
Bai Jin Rong He&k 18214 - - - 18214
Chow Siu Lui Pz 18214 - - - 18214
Tso Siu Lun, Alan 2 18214 - - - 18214
Cheung Kwong Wai FHE 107,893 - - - 107,893
Tong Sze Chung Eop 129471 - - - 129471
Wong Tsz Ho 1% 107,893 - - - 107,893
Tso Ping Cheong Bl 47307 - - - 47307
So Chung Shing g 32,839 - - - 32839
609,260 4841149 629,200 42 999 6,122,608

Annual Report 2015/16
2015/16$$ﬁ1 3 5
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS HRAR L

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z= 201643 31 HIFF/E

16. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals’ remuneration

(b)

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included
three (2015: two) directors of the Company, detail of
whose emoluments are included in note 16(a) above.
The emoluments of the remaining two (2015: three)
highest paid individuals are as follows:

| %

< ¥y

16. EERESHM (&)

TfumREFHMA L HMN

AEEMNAL S TMALTEE
=—%((2015%F : MB)ARAE
EHEEWNFBERN LXMW
16(a) ° #% T M % (20164 : =
H)EEEHWMATHEHBNINT

2016 2015

2016 F 20154

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Salaries and other benefits He REMET 3,994,389 2,210,373
Discretionary or performance related ®1& sk R IFIBEIEAL

bonus 1,227,293 287,532
Contributions to retirement benefit AR T 5T 2t 3

scheme 34,500 48,000

5,256,182 2,545,905

The emoluments fell within the following band:

BN T T oIS E

Number of individuals

A

2016 2015

2016 FF 20154

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 % 7T - 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 &L E

1,500,000 7% 7T 1 -
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 BTE

4,500,000 % 7T 1 -

2 3

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
directors or the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. In addition, none of the
directors waived any emoluments during the reporting
period (2015: Nil).

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
BRBEYEER (ZR)ERAH

AABREFMEFNESHAMEK
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17. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

18.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ERAR oL

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z 201643531 HIFF/E

17.

The Group makes contribution to MPF Scheme under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s
contributions to the MPF Scheme are calculated at 5% of
the salaries and wages subject to a monthly maximum
amount of HK$1,500 per employee and vest fully with
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

RIKEFETE

AEERBEEBRIELTER IR
FIRMERENAERREERRES
FPEIER - REEH RS T SIAH
RBBEHFERITES% AE (A
IHAG&ELEAL00ET) - B#f
PRI TRESTER<2HEES
FTA -

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. ¥  BERRZHE
Leasehold  Furniture and Office Motor
improvement fixture equipment vehicle Total
HENMEHE GRREE BLERE RE &%
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Cost D%
At 1 April 2014 R2014%F4A1H 2,419,697 630,201 2,305,028 2,714,179 8,069,105
Additions HE 1,489,860 1,071,053 309,084 300,998 3,170,995
Disposals HE& - - - (128,809) (128,809)
At 31 March 2015 and R2015%F3A31HK
1 April 2015 20154 /1H 3,909,557 1,701,254 2,614,112 2,886,368 11,111,291
Additions nE 16,210 21,370 271,034 559,550 874,164
At 31 March 2016 R201653A31H 3,925,767 1,722,624 2,891,146 3,445,918 11,985,455
Accumulated depreciation  E:HiTE
At 1 April 2014 R2014%F4A1H 2145722 364,174 1,754,195 1,737,286 6,001,377
Charge for the year ERTIR 291,757 103,772 311,435 507,299 1,214,263
Written back on disposal ~ HHEEEE - - - (128,808) (128,808)
At 31 March 2015 and R2015%F3A31 8K
1 April 2015 2015%4A1H 2,437,479 467 946 2,065,630 2,115,777 7,086,832
Charge for the year FRM 420,052 155,382 283,981 586,550 1,445,965
At 31 March 2016 R201653A31H 2,857,531 623,328 2,349,611 2,702,327 8,532,797
Carrying amounts BREE
At 31 March 2016 M2016FE3A31H 1,068,236 1,099,296 541,535 743,591 3,452,658
At 31 March 2015 m2015F3A31H 1,472,078 1,233,308 548 482 770,591 4,024,459

As at 31 March 2016, the carrying amount of the Group’s
motor vehicles held under finance leases amounted to

HK$670,057 (2015: HK$770,591) (note 27).

MN2016F3 8310 - REERIERE
HEFAEMRENEEEAG70,057
7 T (20154 = 770,591 7t ) (Hf #F
27) e

Annual Report 2015/16
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL S
B RS HRAR L

TATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z= 201643 31 HIFF/E

19. SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries ar

Name

£#5

< ¥y

19. B AT

e as follows: MBAR BT :
Ownership
Place of Particulars of issued interest held by Principal activities and

incorporation and paid up capital  the Company place of operation

BIOR

AMA R EHRAFE

AREHEN
BEAERE IEXBREEHY

Kong Shum Union Property
Management Group Limited
(“KSG")

BRBEMEEEEE
BEAR(TKSG)

Kong Shum Union Property
Management Company Limited
(“KSU")

BRBEMEERERAT

(IEFRBE 1)

K-King Cleaning Services Limited
(“K'King”)
HYBRRBERAR ([HY])

Q&V Security Company Limited
(HQ&V”)
BREFERAR((B2))

20. DEPOSITS PLACED FOR LIFE INSURANCE

British Virgin 11 shares of
Islands US$1.00 each

ZERAEE 11REkEE

100% direct Investment holding

100% BE#% REER

1.00E TR D

Hong Kong HK$22,000,000

o 22,000,0007& 7T

Hong Kong HK$100

BB 10077
Hong Kong HK$2,100,000

B 2,100,000/ 7T

100% indirect  Provision of property
management services
in Hong Kong

100% fE# REMEERRY -
BB

100% indirect  Provision of cleaning
services in Hong Kong
100% fE# REBZRY - B

100% indirect  Provision of security
services in Hong Kong
100% i RERZRE - B

20. MASRBREFANES

POLICIES
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Deposits placed for life insurance policies ft ASRBREFANIZ S 7,955,915 7,746,484

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited

BRBEYFEEE (ZR)ERQF
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20. DEPOSITS PLACED FOR LIFE INSURANCE

POLICIES (continued)

In June 2012, KSU, a subsidiary of the Company entered
into a life insurance policy with an insurance company to
insure an executive director of the Company. Under the
policy, the beneficiary and policy holder is KSU and the total
insured sum is US$1,632,000 (approximately
HK$12,677,376). At inception of the policy, KSU is required
to pay an upfront deposit of US$510,000 (approximately
HK$3,961,680) including an expense charge amounted to
US$30,600 (approximately HK$237,701). KSU can
terminate the policy at any time and receive cash refund
based on the cash value of the policy at the date of
withdrawal, which is determined by the upfront payment of
US$510,000 plus accumulated interest earned and minus
the expense charged at inception, the accumulated
insurance charge and policy expense charge (“Cash
Value”). In addition, if withdrawal is made between the 1st
and 15th policy year, there is a specific amount of surrender
charge.

The insurance company will pay KSU an interest of 4.15%
per annum on the outstanding Cash Value of the policy for
the first year. Commencing on the second year, a minimum
guaranteed interest of 2.5% per annum is guaranteed by
the insurance company. As at 31 March 2016 and 2015,
this deposit placed for a life insurance policy was pledged to
a bank to secure bank facilities granted to the Group.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ERAR oL

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z 201643531 HIFF/E

20. RABSRRBRREFANES

(%)
M2012F6 A » ARARHKHE QR

R A HE— R AR — B AS
RBREANRBEARE —BNITE
= REZRE  ZHEARRERFEF
ABBERBE MBRRBEA
1,632,000 7T (4912,677,376/87C) °
REMIRER  BRBE AL FER
% ©510,000% JT( %73,961,680%
JT) B iE R X B 30,6003 T (4
237,701 8 7T) o BIREEE Al PRI B
RERIFFZRERBIERIRFZRE Y
ReBEKBRSRR  WIHIRETE
4 3£510,000 % 7T & BT B B 2 25 F
BERMAR I RES AN HYE
A RIARERMREBRAAR ([
BE])MEE ° o WARESE —
FEFTRAFER BERTSEE
BRRAX °

F—F RRARSRERGKZIRES
BERF B 4.15% T H& T 7 R
BB -FE  RERARKIRER
& REREFFER25%NHE e
20164 K 20153 A31H Bt A
SRERREFTANZSEEER A
EEGRTTR T AKERIRITHE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 &% 201643 A31 H I F/E
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20. DEPOSITS PLACED FOR LIFE INSURANCE 20. MAE

140

POLICIES (continued)

In July 2013, KSU entered into another life insurance policy
with an insurance company to insure the then executive
director of the Company and who remains in the capacity as
director of KSU. Under the policy, the beneficiary and policy
holder is KSU and the total insured sum is US$1,200,000
(approximately HK$9,324,000). At inception of the policy,
KSU is required to pay an upfront deposit of US$482,491
(approximately HK$3,748,955) including an expense
charged amounted to US$28,949 (approximately
HK$224,936). KSU can terminate the policy at any time and
receive cash refund based on the cash value of the policy at
the date of withdrawal, which is determined by the upfront
payment of US$482,491 plus accumulated interest earned
and minus the expense charged at inception, the
accumulated insurance charge and policy expense charge
(“2nd Cash Value”). In addition, if withdrawal is made
between the 1st and 18th policy year, there is a specific
amount of surrender charge.

The insurance company will pay KSU an interest of 3.6%
per annum on the outstanding 2nd Cash Value of the policy
for the first year. Commencing on the second year, a
minimum guaranteed interest of 2% per annum is
guaranteed by the insurance company. As at 31 March
2016, the deposit placed on this life insurance policy was
pledged to a bank to secure banking facilities granted to the
Group.

The above deposits placed for two life insurance policies are
denominated in US$, a currency other than the functional
currency of KSU and expose the Group to foreign currency
risk.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
BRBEYEER (ZR)ERAH

(&)

R2013%F7 A - BARE A H—RHRR
RNAFIM S — D ASREBIREMRE
AR ERRNITES KT B R
ABEEMAL RBREZRE  Z&HEA
MREBEBEABBRBS - MBIRIR
% /1,200,000 3 7T ( 499,324,000 7%
T) o AR IREERF - BREAS AL
T8 i 4% 4 482,491 35 7T ( #93,748,955
BIT) - BIEF S B 28,949 % T (4
2249368 7T) o BIREE S Al M (AT B
RERIEFZRERBIERREZRE Y
ReBEKBRSRR  WHIRETE
1 30482,491 £ 7T & PR BL 2 & &1 7
BEMBHAYRERINZAXYE
A 2REMEBRAAX(EZ
BHREEME] MEE ° I - MR
BE—FEFTNFER BERFT
%%ET/EF% RIRFISZ o

F—F RERARSRERBIE
RS BERFE3.6% X IHETE
R - E_FE - RRARHIR
HRE 2 REREF M ZE2% A
5 PR2016 3 A31 8 ' gt AR
fRiREF ARIRE CIEET - AR
RITETAKENRITHE

FHABRMBASZSRBREFTANRS
WETTAHE  ETRBRBATIRE
AN B - I {7 52 B /D SN I
Rz o
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21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSET

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ERAR oL

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z 201643531 HIFF/E

21. THtHETHEE

2016 2015

2016 F 20154

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Unlisted equity investment, at fair value 3Eimﬂx$& RN E 13,000,000 -
Changes in fair value NIEEE (8,733,000) -
4,267,000 -

The unlisted equity investment as at 31 March 2016
represents 10% equity interest of All Profit Alliance Limited
(“All Profit”) held by the Group, in connection with business
corporation by jointly (i) developing a mobile application,
namely “Yes Master!”, aims to provide one-stop household
support to the users of “Yes Master!” to gain access to a
number of value-added services surrounding their
households, in the areas of market place, social networking,
resident bulletin and community services; and (ii) setting up
a two-way communication internet platform among the
property management companies, incorporated owners,
service providers and its users in any building or property
estates in Hong Kong.

The fair value of investment in All Profit as at 31 March
2016 was calculated based on asset approach by Peak
Vision Appraisals Limited, an independent valuer appointed
by the Company. The carrying amount of the Group’s
available-for-sale financial asset is denominated in HK$.

M2016F3 A31H » ELETBRAKRE
57N 52 B 43 All Profit Alliance Limited
(fAII Profit]) 10% fx # - & B8 £ [ (i)
o2 R & e B E X BllYes
Master!] © & #E[A [ Yes Master!] F P
RE—IEXREZE  UEBREZIR
EHERENILERS  EFRED
SFe  HR@K - ERBHREMEE
R ZE4EE, « M (NREBEIETH
VMERERIMEEE NG ¥F
REE - RBREEEEAR ZHEH
EMRERRTaCEBEIE-

AARRENB L GEMEERTEE
R A RIR & ERFT E ANl ProfitiZ & 14
2016 F3 A31 AW ARIE - AEET
HHEESREENREENEITEE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &
B RS HRAR L '

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z 201643 A 31 HI1-/E M
S 4
22. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 22. ELEBREE
The following are the deferred tax assets/(liabilities) UTEAREEBEANELEHRESE
recognised by the Group: E/(afk):

Accelerated Decelerated

tax tax
depreciation depreciation  Provisions Total
MEBIE  OREBIE
e wE &% &t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
(Note)
(H1at)
At 1 April 2014 201464 A 1H (168,703) 255,744 2,146,869 2,233,910
Charged to profit or loss RERB B
for the year
— origination and reversal of — FR AR R
temporary differences B (Hat 14)
(note 14) (143,872) - (33,534)  (177,406)
At 31 March 2015 and M2015F3A318 K
1 April 2015 2015F4A1H (312,575) 265,744 2,113,335 2,056,504
Credited to profit or loss RERTTABE
for the year
— origination and reversal of —EREENRERRE
temporary differences (Hiat14)
(note 14) 282,813 (255,724) 223,198 250,287
At 31 March 2016 2016 F3 A31H (29,762) 20 2,336,533 2,306,791
Note:  Provisions represent the temporary differences of provision for Bizt : BEEANEESATBERERNETHX
certain expenses (including provisions for long service payments, BB (BEERARES - REHEME
unrealised annual leaves and bonuses) made in the consolidated BERIEABE) WSR2 HER
financial statements of the Group which would only be allowed for BRI NZEM B ENR -

tax deduction when these expenses were actually paid.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
BRBEYEER (ZR)ERAH
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DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (continued) 22, EEBRIBEEE (&)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS ERAR oL

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z 201643531 HIFF/E

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances BIRE MR R AIEIEF A 4565 (&
(after offset) for the consolidated statements of financial B ) DT -
position purpose:
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFRIBEE B (29,762) (312,575)
Deferred tax assets EEFIREE 2,336,553 2,369,079
2,306,791 2,056,504
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. EZREMEWFIE
2016 2015
2016 ¢ 20154
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Trade receivables 2 5 EWEIE 50,296,942 42,112,145
Deposits, prepayments and e BZER
other receivables H b JfE W I8 4,222,621 4,392,202
54,519,563 46,504,347

The Group’s trade receivables, deposits, prepayments and
other receivables are denominated in HK$.

The Group does not grant credit terms to its customers
(2015: Nil). The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed
by the directors regularly.

AEENEZREFE  Be - B
AN H At R YRR A TTEHE ©

AEETEFAETFPETEEHR(2015
F ) AEBEABRZEGIEARE
BRWTIR - EEE R B HIAEeS o

Annual Report 2015/16

2015/16 £ 3§

143



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS HRAR L

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z= 201643 31 HIFF/E

| %2
R

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES B 5 R HAEWRIE (&)

23.

(continued)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables, based on invoice
date, and net of allowance, is as follows:

B 5 WA R R R B R
IR AT

2016 2015
2016 £ 20154
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Overdue by: g0 2
1-30 days 1ZE30H 11,840,614 27,356,487
31-60 days 31%60H 32,093,498 9,395,052
61-90 days 61290 H 1,723,543 2457,666
over 90 days #8390 B 4,639,287 2,902,940
50,296,942 42,112,145

As of 31 March 2016, trade receivables of HK$50,296,942
(2015: HK$42,112,145) were past due but not impaired.
These relate to a number of independent customers for
whom there are no recent history of default.

The breakdown of the Group’s deposits, prepayments and
other receivables are as follows:

R201643 A31R - B 5 & WA
50,296,942/ 70 (20154 : 42,112,145
AIL) BEEEY RRE - HEHH
YEOTATREECENBLEFA

AEEOES - B FIERE bR
FEMBENT -

2016 2015

2016 £ 20154

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Other receivables due from third parties & UL SE = J5 B H fb e L 5018 371,762 752,325
Deposits B"e 2,195,584 2,654,509
Prepayments AT FRIE 1,655,275 985,368
4,222,621 4,392,202

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
BRBEYEER (ZR)ERAH
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24. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS ERAR oL

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z 201643531 HIFF/E

24. EERBITERUARBRERR

BANK BALANCES 17458
2016 2015
2016 & 20154
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Cash on hand RE 188,005 188,000
Bank balances SRITES 64,584,626 34,388,349
Cash and bank balances 8 e MIR1TH 64,772,631 34,576,349
Pledged bank deposits (Note) BRI (M) 7,595,971 4,962,271

Note: Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to banks to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group as set out in note 28
to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s pledged bank deposits and cash and bank
balances are denominated in HK$.

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are made for
varying periods of between one day and one year depending
on the immediate cash requirement of the Group and earn
interest at the respective short-term time deposit rates. The
bank balances and pledged deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. The
deposits are in HK$ and at the interest rate of 0.01% to
0.1% (2015: 0.01% to 0.1%) as at 31 March 2016.

Hat . BEEMVITERIESRA B RRMT
BB TRITZER ERA

SEERRITRE VA o

Z£0.1%)FH 8 -

AEEZERRRITEFRARRE M
RITAERABTTRTE ©

RTRSREBARTERNR 2FH
MEFE - RHEHEFER 2R B —
FE—F1%F  KREANKE KR
THELME @ =B EEHERFERA
KB - RITBERMKCERERFE
MW B R - EERIF IR
1T FHRRAETT 20163 A31H
IAFIZ0.01%%0.1% (20154 : 0.01%
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS s'
B RS HRAR L ‘

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z 201643 A 31 HI1-/E :M
S ¥
25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25. EFRHEMENRIE

2016 2015
2016 20154
HK$ HK$
BT BTT
Trade payables H S EMN IR 1,221,476 1,161,971
Building management deposits received B WIEFEERILZS 4,062,887 3,847,372
Sundry creditors and accruals HAb R BR R R EFHIRE A 33,316,454 32,266,298
Provision for long service payment RHR S B E 7,501,066 5,198,013

46,101,883 42,473,654

The Group’s trade and other payables are denominated in REENE S REMENKIEBEAAETT
HKS. FHE °
Notes: Hifet -
(a)  The aging analysis of the trade payables based on invoice date is as (a) EZENFIBZEEZRBHORRS TN
follows: T
2016 2015
2016 20154
HK$ HK$
BT BT
1-30 days 1230H 1,221,476 1,161,971
(b)  The breakdown of sundry creditors and accruals are as follows: (b) EHMEMERRETRERZABNT
2016 2015
2016 & 20154
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Accrued staff cost and staff benefit fEFHRE TRA KR B TER) 19,623,032 18,091,763
Accrued staff bonus and annual leave EFTRB TR R F R’ 6,659,742 7,610,081
Other accrued expenses Hih BRI 1,614,404 1,331,109
Other payables due to other parties FERE M A LR HE MR KA 5,419,276 5,233,345
33,316,454 32,266,298
(c)  Movement of provision for long service payment is stated as follows: () RHERB:BEOEHRIIWT :
2016 2015
2016 & 20154
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At the beginning of the year REY) 5,198,013 6,143,638
Provision made during the year FREE 3,029,773 1,732,622
Paid during the year FARFK (726,720) (2,678,247)
At the end of the year MNER 7,501,066 5,198,013

1 46 Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
BRBEYEER (ZR)ERAH
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26. AMOUNT DUE TO FORMER ULTIMATE
HOLDING COMPANY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ERAR oL

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z 201643531 HIFF/E

26. BARIRAZR D RFKE

2016 2015
2016 20154
HK$ HK$
7T BT
Wiser Capital Management Wiser Capital Management
Limited (“Wiser Capital”) Limited ([ Wiser Capital |) - 1,657,151

The amount due arose from certain payments on behalf of
the Group, which was non-trade related, unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand. The carrying
amount of the amount due approximated its fair value.

On 28 August 2015, Wiser Capital ceased to be the ultimate
holding parent of the Company following the disposal of
200,000,000 pledged shares of the Company (the
“Disposal”), being 50% of the then equity interest in the
Company, by Kingston Securities Limited (“Kingston”), to
settle the loans outstanding from Wiser Capital under the
standby facility granted by Kingston. Before the Disposal,
Wiser Capital was interested in 297,760,000 issued shares
of the Company, representing 74.4% of the then issued
share capital of the Company.

On 30 September 2015, Wiser Capital and the Company
entered into a waiver agreement (“Waiver Agreement”),
under which the outstanding balance owed by the Company
to Wiser Capital at the date on the determination of Waiver
Agreement were released and discharged that resulted a
gain on waiver of amount due to former ultimate holding
company of HK$1,205,065 recognised in profit or loss
during the year ended 31 March 2016.

BRRAEEE T NRELNZEN
FERIFEZHEM - BEH  RER
WEBERER - BNSUANRAEREE
RAERE -

201548 A18H » &F|LEAEHFR
~aEl([ & E ) H S 200,000,000 f%
AN B IRAL D (B AR A 7 E B 50%
BeiE) (THREEIE]) - B FI LA
¥ 5 FA @t & T8 T Wiser Capital K (& 8
B 2 1% » Wiser Capital ™~ B &K 2 7
MEREIERET AR - REEEIEA
Wiser Capital 72 297,760,000 A% 7 A 7]
EBRITROFPEEEZ - BEREAR
RIER D BITIRAT4.4% -

MR 201549 A 30 H - Wiser Capital £
RARFI MR HaE ((FHRewzl) -
Bt - AN A Bl 45 R Wiser Capital #) &
BEEBNEI VAR HRE BRR K
%% MEZE2016F3A31HILFE
RIB MR I R BT B S A IR A A
FAIEH U 75 1,205,065 8 7T ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS HRAR L

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z= 201643 31 HIFF/E

27. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES

27.

_e
EAmERERE

Present value of minimum

Minimum lease payments lease payments
REERHFN EEEANHKRE
2016 2015 2016 2015
2016 F 2015%F 2016 % 2015F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Amount payable under finance leases: B &AM E B FEMNTUE -
Within one year —ER 306,936 314,265 289,043 302,931
In the second to fifth years inclusive ~ E-FZFERHF
(BHEBEME) 311,306 133,875 303,150 130,217
618,242 448,140 592,193 433,148
Less: Future finance charge W ARBERY (26,049) (14,992) - -
Present value of lease obligations MERERE 592,193 443,148 592,193 433,148

Less: Amount due for settlement W T EAREIEL

within 12 months shown HZIE (B AR E
under current liabilities 8E)
Amount due for settlement after T EA%EES (TR F0E
12 months

All finance lease payables are denominated in HKS$.

The Group’s motor vehicles are held under finance lease
(note 18). The average lease term is 3 years. At 31 March
2016, the effective borrowing rate was at the rate per annum
of 2.18% to 5% (2015: 2.18% to 5%). Interest rates are
fixed at the contract dates and thus expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk. All leases are on a fixed repayment
basis and no arrangements have been entered into for
contingent rental payments.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
BRBEYEER (ZR)ERAH

(289,043) (302,931)

303,150 130,217

EEENBEREFRG AETTEHE

AEBAEUREMRE(HF18)F
B FHHEEA3F - 201643 A
318  EREENEREF2.18% %
5% (20154 : 2.18% £5%) o F| R
AHRBET  ASBRELEEAR
BEFERER - FTAEHAIEETERE
o WERKABESMRET L L -



k NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R M &
\.—‘ For the year ended 31 March 2016 & Z 201643 431 AIFFE
28. BANK BORROWINGS — SECURED 28. RITEE — HEH
2016 2015
2016 & 20154
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Bank loans, secured IRITER - A 6,937,454 14,675,483
Bank overdrafts, secured RITES - AEM 1,645,434 2,036,247

8,582,888 16,711,730

The analysis of the carrying amount of bank borrowings is as TEENEmES T
follows:
2016 2015
2016 & 20154
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Bank overdrafts RITEX 1,645,434 2,036,247
Portion of bank loans due for repayment — £ A 2| EAEE 200 R
within one year TEH 5,886,334 8,653,085
Portion of bank loans due for repayment — & F|HIEER AR E K
after one year which contains a BEBHROBORITER
repayment on demand clause 1,051,120 6,022,398

8,582,888 16,711,730
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 & Z20164 3 431 AIFEE
28. IR{TIEE — FIEH (&)

28. BANK BORROWINGS — SECURED
(continued)

The Group’s bank borrowings were due for repayment as AEBEHEZMNRITEENT ¢

follows:
2016 2015
2016 & 20154
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Bank overdrafts repayable on demand R EREERRITE L 1,645,434 2,036,247
Portion of bank loans due for repayment — 4 R E|EAE & #Y5
within one year IRITER 5,886,334 8,653,085
7,531,768 10,689,332
Bank loans due for repayment after one —4 12 B HAE @ 89 R1T
year (Note) ER ()
After 1 year but within 2 years 1FZER2FA 292,831 3,230,129
After 2 years but within 5 years 2FEBERSFER 758,289 2,677,718
After 5 years 5F1& - 114,551
1,051,120 6,022,398
8,582,888 16,711,730
Note: The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates set Wizt BB BDERBERBEHETBETER

B AR - 30 E 4R 2 SR (B R R

=47
FE o

out in the loan agreements and ignore the effect of any repayment
on demand clause.

RITEENREENETIIE -

The carrying amounts of bank borrowings are denominated
in HK$.

i SRITE E R F F L 6.25% (2015
F425%FE6.25%)5H 8

The above bank borrowings carry interest at the rate per
annum 6.25% (2015: 4.25% to0 6.25%).

1 SOKong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
BRBEYEER (ZR)ERAH
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 ## 201643431 HIFF/E

k NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N—

28. BANK BORROWINGS — SECURED 28. IRITEE — BFEF (FE)
(continued)
The Group’s banking facilities were secured by: REBMRITHREH T FEEER
7
(a) Pledge of deposits placed for life insurance (note 20); (a) HMASRETFEANIZS (M
it20)
(b) Pledge of the Group’s fixed bank deposits (note 24); (b)y EIHAEERTEHEITERH
it24)
(c) Pledge of properties and unlimited guarantee by (c) HWIMEABEARINMEREREEE
related companies (note 34(c)(i)); and R (HTEE340)0) + *
(d) Joint and several unlimited personal guarantees of (d) ZE2ZRHRE L ERHEEEE A
directors (note 34(c)(ii)). 1R (Bt 5E 34(c)ii)) °
As at 31 March 2016, banking facilities granted to the R2016F3 A31H » RFAKERIR
Group are approximately HK$40.7 million (2015: 1TRNE 84,0708 7 7T (20154F : %Y
approximately HK$53.2 million). 53208%7T) °
As at 31 March 2016, approximately HK$17.5 million (2015: R2016F3 A31H » £1,7508 7% T
HK$25.7 million) of the banking facilities have been utilised (20154 : 492,570& BT ) Wi 1T @k
by the Group. BEEASEHA -

Annual Report 2015/161 5 1
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z= 201643 H31 HIFFE

29. CONVERTIBLE NOTES

Pursuant to a subscription agreement dated 9 June 2015
entered into between the Company and Madam Lau, Anna
Siu Fun, an independent third party, the Company issued
convertible notes with principal value of HK$20,000,000
(“CNs").

The holder of CNs is entitled to convert the CNs in whole or
in part of the principal amount into new ordinary shares of
the Company in amounts of not less than a whole multiple
of HK$1,000,000 at conversion price of HK$1.32 per share
at any time between the date of issue of CNs and 19
September 2015.

The holder of CNs shall not have the right to convert the
whole or part of the outstanding principal amount of CNs
into ordinary shares of the Company to the extent that
immediately after such conversion, the holder of CNs
together with parties acting in concert with, taken together,
will, directly or indirectly, control or be interested in 30% or
more of the voting rights of the Company (or in such
percentage as may from time to time be specified in the
Takeovers Code being the level for triggering a mandatory
general offer) or otherwise, a general offer shall be given in
accordance with the requirement of the Takeovers Code or
where applicable, a whitewash waiver is granted by the
Executive (as defined in the Takeovers Code). Further, the
holder of CNs shall not have the right to convert the whole or
part of the outstanding principal amount of the CNs into
ordinary shares of the Company to the extent that
immediately after such conversion, there will not be
sufficient public float of the shares of the Company as
required under the GEM Listing Rules.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
BRBEYEER (ZR)ERAH
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29. TR EE

BEARAREBYE=HRKSLL
FREI~SZ BEIA20154%6 AOH MR
ME RRARBBITAELES
20,000,000 T W AT i 245 ([ AT
REE]) o

RABRRERETHBE 201549 A
19 HEAfE - Al MARRIET A A B R
R EER1.3287T B2 ElK
O AL FREI AR R R E B
M2 #8115 27 1,000,00078 7T 2 52
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MR BREZE R JRREEEE
ANERE—BITHALTA LB EESK
TS AR AR 2R 30% A £
(=% Uk B8 =7 BI 7B 1) BR) 8 5 o I 1 &2
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ERZ2mMBL s (WER) BHITAE
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29. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

The CNs bears no interest. Details of the CNs are disclosed
in the Company’s announcements dated 9 June 2015 and
19 June 2015 respectively.

On 19 September 2015, CNs with principal amount of
HK$20,000,000 had been converted into 15,151,515
ordinary shares of the Company.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ERAR oL

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ## 201643431 HIFF/E

29. ARFE (&)

AR EE L - AR EER
BEABIRARAT HEA2015F6 A9
H&2015%6 A 19 B AHIHE o

MR2015%F9A8198 K £ % A
20,000,000 7% JT /) A 2 % = 15 B & i
ik 15,151,515 B AR &) Ei@pg -

The principal amount of CNs has been split into the liability }Wﬁ?&}ﬁﬁ/\%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁu‘l?%%
element and an equity component, as follows: RIS

HK$

BIT
Principal amount of CNs issued B #1TA] RN 20,000,000
Equity component T E D (640,000)
Liability component at date of issue REITHEHNEER S 19,360,000
Imputed interest HER B 640,000
Converted into ordinary shares of the Company & #apk A< =Rl (20,000,000)

Liability component at 31 March 2016

MR20165F3 A3l BNAEZD -

The Imputed interest for the period is calculated by applying
an effective interest rate of 13.1% to the liability component.

The fair value of liability component of CNs as of its issue
date was determined by Peak Vision Appraisals Limited, an
independent valuer appointed by the Company.

HIRFT W EREE R B TS B E 20k
EEFE13.1%EBH o

TRRBRREDHRETAMHD
A ERAR AEE OB ED RS
FEERAREE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #1Z 201643 31 A 1L ¥
¥y
30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. BRA&
Authorised and issued share capital EEREBBITRAK
2016 2015
2016 2015%F
Number of Number of
ordinary Nominal ordinary Nominal
shares Value shares Value
EBRYA Rl LEiE g [
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each  EREE0.01 BT
Authorised: EE
As at 1 April and 31 March R4A1HR3A31HE 5,000,000,000 50,000,000 5,000,000,000 50,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRMRE .
As at 1 April W4R1H 400,000,000 4,000,000 400,000,000 4,000,000
Issue of shares upon: BT FEABITREG
Conversion of CNs (note 29) EnnnhER
(K1529) 15,151,515 151,515 - -
Placing of shares (note (a)) BERND (K@) 80,000,000 800,000 - -
As at 31 March M3A31H 495,151,515 4,951,515 400,000,000 4,000,000

(@)  On 17 September 2015, the Company and the placing agent entered
into a placing agreement in respect of the placement of 80,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at a price of HK$0.4 per share.
The placement was completed on 6 October 2015 and the premium
on the issue of shares, amounting to approximately HK$30.4 million,

was credited to the Company’s share premium account.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited

BRBEYFEEE (ZR)ERQF

(@) M2015F9A17H  AATHEERE
RV ERERE - WIEFR0.4BITMER
fid & 80,000,000 A% & & E {E 0.01 8 7T Y
TR - BREEBEEN2015F10A6H
TERK 0 EETTR% 1934 1B %9 30,400,000 JT
EEAARRBRG G ER -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS ERAR oL

\p—‘ For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z 201643 31 HIFF/E
31. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 31. AR HKE R
COMPANY
Set out below is the statement of financial of position of the T SCE B AR D B R A5 BR oK 19 B TS Hk
Company at the end of the reporting period: IR
2016 2015
2016 £ 20154
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary "E—RENBA 4,750,108 4,750,108
Loan to a subsidiary (note a) ERT—H W% 7 (Kfazta) 15,000,000 15,000,000
Available-for-sale financial asset AftHEEmEE 4,267,000 -
24,017,108 19,750,108
Current assets REEE
Deposits and prepayments bieaora &?ﬁiﬁm 1,029,996 365,647
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note b) FEUHI B A 7 Z A (K1t b) 12,805,321 12,760,878
Bank balances and cash ﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁ%&fﬁﬁ 26,881,771 273
4,717,088 13,126,798
Current liabilities )?FLEJEE
Accruals fEETIRE A 1,281,561 214,889
Amount due to subsidiaries (note b) fﬁﬁﬁ% /TAIE (/Z/fu““fb) 4,162,720 3,943,292
Amount due to former ultimate FES A S 4R AR A R X
holding company - 1,657,151
Bank borrowings — secured IRITIEE - HEH - 398,541
5,444,281 6,213,873
Net current assets REBEESEE 35,272,807 6,912,925
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBERE 59,289,915 26,663,033
Net assets EERE 59,289,915 26,663,033
Capital and reserve EXRki#EE
Share capital f& 2N 4,951,515 4,000,000
Reserves (note c) & (Matc) 54,338,400 22,663,003
Total equity B 59,289,915 26,663,033
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B RS ERAR L

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z= 201643 H31 HIFFE

31. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

the amount due is unsecured and interest-free and has no fixed

terms of repayment.

31.

fifet

(a)

| %

x> W

AR BES (&)

ERENFERERR 28 REREE

the amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on (b) EBEENZEA®EEH . R NMIREX
demand. g -
Movements of the Company’s reserves are as follows: (c) AR HEEEWT -
Retained
Investment  Convertible profits/
Share  Share option  Contributed  revaluation notes  (Accumulated
premium reserve Surplus reserve reserve losses) Total
REEfT TEREE KRN/
ROEE BRERE  SAERR 1 i (RHER) fit
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
AL B BT AL B BT B
At 1 April 2014 R201454 518 24,087,947 - 4,750,108 - - 20162527 49,000,582
2014 dividends paid N4EBHBE - - - - -~ (20,000,000 (20,000,000
Equity-settled share-based payments  $RAR1E & Z b\ {3 2 98
B - 745,360 - - - - 745,360
Loss and total comprehensive FRAEBREERALSE
income for the year - - - - - (7082909  (7,082,909)
At 31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015 20156331 B R
201554818 24,087,947 745,360 4,750,108 - - (6,920,382) 22,663,033
Equity-settled share-hased payments R BLEE UKD X4
8 - 3,126,640 - - - - 3,126,640
Issue of convertible note (note 29)  BFARRER (f:729) - - - - 640,000 - 640,000
Issue of shares on conversion of BRTRRZERYT
convertible note (note 29) 13 (#7:#29) 20,488,485 - - - (640,000 - 19,848,485
Issue of shares on placement BREBRTRA 30,406,385 - - - - - 30,406,385
Loss and total comprehensive EREERZARALE
income for the year - - - (8,733,000) - (13,613,143) (22,346,143)
At 31 March 2016 R2016F3A31A 74,982,817 3872000 4,750,108  (8,733,000) - (205533,525) 54,338,400

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
BRBEYEER (ZR)ERAH
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32. RESERVES

(@)

(b)

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements
therein are presented in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

Share premium account

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium account
of the Company are distributable to the
shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Share premium represents premium arising from
the issue of shares at a price in excess of their
par value per share and after deduction of
capitalisation issue and issuance costs of shares.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the aggregated
amounts of issued capital of KSG, KSU, K-King
and Q&V as at 31 March 2013, the date on which
the aggregated issued capital was reallocated to
merger reserve after the Group’s reorganisation
for the purpose of the listing of the Company’s
shares on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 ## 201643431 HIFF/E

32. &
(@ F&£H
AEBFENSBELRETNED

(b)

EfABE

A

KEMEER R R

BB RAZS -

RENMEERRE

(i)

(i)

KRB ER

REFSBFESARE AR
AlREER 2 ES A HD
IRFARRBIRR - EEREZ
ADIKE BHR - ANAF]
ARENEBEENBEERS
BIEFERNHZEL -

B 038 (B FR AR R SR AR ()
H{EZ BEEITRD - I
FRE AT KA BT
RIBEE 2EME

&R

B BB 5 R 201343 A
31HKSG: B AB A& -
%ﬂ&%ﬁzaﬁéhﬂx$zﬂ
SE AR BIIRG REE R
FTEIER ETmE \MEl
iR A 42 %EEALk%lzﬁ
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z= 201643 H31 HIFFE

32. RESERVES (continued)

(b)
(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

Share option reserve

Share option reserve represents the fair value of
the actual or estimated number of unexercised
share options granted to directors and
consultants of the Company recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted
for equity-settled share-based payments in note
4(v) to the financial statements.

Contributed Surplus

The contributed surplus of the Company
represents the excess of the consideration of KSG
over the nominal value of 1 share issued by the
Company at the date on which it was acquired by
the Company pursuant to the Group
reorganisation for the listing of the Company’s
share on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of
available-for-sale financial asset held at the end
of the reporting period and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy in note
4(f)(ii) to the financial statements.

Convertible notes reserve

The convertible notes reserve represents the
equity component of the convertible notes at
initial recognition, representing the value of the
embedded option for the holder to convert the
note into equity of the Company.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
BRBEYEER (ZR)ERAH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS ERAR oL

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ## 201643431 HIFF/E

DIVIDEND 33. RE
No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended 31 HE2016F3A3lIBItFEMES
March 2016, nor has any dividend been proposed since the MBI MIRE » BAREBHELL
end of the reporting period (2015: Nil). RUAR IR AR B (2015 £ -
/) o
RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS AND 34. BBARZ R
BALANCES
In addition to the related party transactions and balances MBSk EM I E v @i
disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group Lo RSN - AREEHEEH R TR
had the following material transactions and balances with its FR/BEPRZBEBARL S REHT
related parties during the year/at the end of reporting period: T
2016 2015
2016 &£ 20154
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(a) Balance with a related party A RS T 4
— Amount due to ultimate holding — B &EZERATKIE
company
— Wiser Capital Management — Wiser Capital
Limited Management
Limited - 1,657,151
(b) Related parties transactions ML R 5
(i) Rental expenses paid to a (i) mMBEQFZNAHE
related companies BRX
— More Rise Investment — AAKREBRAF
Limited (“More Rise”) (WFED 336,000 276,000
— Kong Shum Union — BRES (R E)
(China) Limited =N CE/NGI!
(“KSU China”) (xRS
R ) 368,000 -
(ii) Directors (i) %
— Compensation of key —FEEBABZ
management personnel [ 9,393,569 6,122,608
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z= 201643 H31 HIFFE

34. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

()

Guarantees

(i)

(ii)

At 31 March 2015 and 2016, Mr. Ho Ying Choi
and Mr. Ho Ying Cheung, directors of the
Company (Mr. Ho Ying Cheung resigned as an
executive director of the Company on 6 February
2015 and remain as a director of KSU) had
provided joint and several unlimited personal
guarantees in favour of banking facilities granted
to certain subsidiaries within the Group (note 29);
and

At 31 March 2015 and 2016, More Rise and
Fortune Trend Investment Limited (“Fortune
Trend”) had provided unlimited guarantees and
pledged of their properties to secure banking
facilities granted to certain subsidiaries within the
Group (note 27).

Mr. Ho Ying Choi and Mr. Ho Ying Cheung are the directors
of Fortune Trend, KSU China and More Rise.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
aforementioned guarantees given by the related parties as
set out in note 34(c)(i) and 34(c)(ii) constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules but fully exempted pursuant to Rule 20.88 of
the GEM Listing Rules as the Company has fulfilled with the
relevant requirements.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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LEASE COMMITMENTS

At the end of reporting period, the total future minimum
lease payment under non-cancellable operating leases,
which fall due as follows:

35.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 ## 201643431 HIFF/E

M HRE

R|BEMR - FARGHEEENEAT
F R SR R AR TR A0 (< SRAR BRI A Ty
28

2016 2015

2016 & 20154

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Within one year —F R 2,822,300 2,268,500
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_FEERNF(BREERMF) 2,863,200 456,477
5,685,500 2,724 977

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its offices. Leases are negotiated for an
average term of one to two years and rentals are fixed over
the lease terms and do not include contingent rentals.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Equity-settled share option scheme

On 19 September 2013, the Company has adopted a share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) under which
the board of directors is authorised to grant share options to
any employee, adviser, consultant, service provider, agent,
customer, partner or joint-venture partner of the Company
or any subsidiary (including any director of the Company or
any subsidiary) who is in full-time or part-time employment
with or otherwise engaged by the Company or any subsidiary
at the time when an option is granted to such employee,
adviser, consultant, service provider, agent, customer,
partner or joint-venture partner or any person who, in the
absolute discretion of the board, has contributed or may
contribute to the Group (the “Eligible Participants”) as
incentive or reward for their contribution to the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS ERAR L

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z= 201643 H31 HIFFE

36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme (continued)

Maximum number of Shares

(i)

(ii)

Subject to (ii) below, the maximum number of shares
of the Company (“Shares”) in respect of which options
may be granted at any time under the Share Option
Scheme together with options which may be granted
under any other share option schemes for the time
being of the Group shall not exceed such number of
Shares as equals 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company at the date of approval of the Share
Option Scheme. On 14 August 2015, the Company
successfully sought approval by its shareholders in
general meeting to refresh the 10% limit (the
“Refreshment”). Upon the Refreshment approved by
the shareholders of the Company at the annual general
meeting on 14 August 2015, the Company may grant
Options entitling holders thereof to subscribe for up to
a maximum number of 40,000,000 Shares. A Options
previously granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Group
(including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in
accordance with the Share Option Scheme or any
other share option schemes and exercised options) will
not be counted for the purpose of calculating the limit
as refreshed. No further share option was granted after
14 August 2015, Options entitling holders thereof to
subscribe for up to a maximum number of 40,000,000
Shares may be granted by the Company under the
Share Option Scheme, representing 8.1% of the issued
shares as at 31 March 2016;

The limit on the number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option
Scheme and any other options granted and yet to be
exercised under any other share option schemes of the
Group must not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue
from time to time. No options may be granted under
the Share Option Scheme or any other share option
schemes of the Group if this will result in the limit
being exceeded; and

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme (continued)

Maximum number of Shares (continued)

(iii)

Unless approved by the shareholders of the Company,
the total number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each grantee
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in
any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
Shares in issue. Where any further grant of options to
an Eligible Participant would result in the Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
granted and to be granted to such person (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such
further grant representing in aggregate over 1% of the
Shares in issue, such further grant must be separately
approved by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting with such Eligible Participant and his
associates abstaining from voting. The Company must
send a circular to the shareholders of the Company
and the circular must disclose the identity of the
Eligible Participant, the number and terms of the
options to be granted (and options previously granted
to such Eligible Participant), and such information as
may be required under the GEM Listing Rules from
time to time. The number and terms (including the
subscription price) of options to be granted to such
Eligible Participant must be fixed before approval of
the shareholders of the Company and the date of
meeting of the Board for proposing such further grant
should be taken as the date of grant for the purpose of
calculating the subscription price. The exercise of any
option shall be subject to the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting approving any necessary
increase in the authorised share capital of the
Company. Subject thereto, the Directors shall make
available sufficient of the then authorised but unissued
share capital of the Company to allot the Shares on the
exercise of any option.
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36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 36. A7 Z{THITRIE ()
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Equity-settled share option scheme (continued)

An option may be exercised at any time during the period to
be determined and identified by the Board to each grantee
at the time of making an offer for the grant of an option, but
in any event no later than 10 years from the date of grant
but subject to the early termination of the Share Option
Scheme.

Though there is no specified minimum period under the
Share Option Scheme for which an option must be held or
the performance target which must be achieved before an
option can be exercised under the terms and conditions of
the Share Option Scheme, the Directors may make such
grant of options, subject to such terms and conditions in
relation to the minimum period of such options to be held
and/or the performance targets to be achieved as the
Directors may determine in their absolute discretion.

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the
Directors may, in their absolute discretion, make offer to the
Eligible Participants. An offer shall be made to an Eligible
Participant in writing in such form as the Directors may from
time to time determine. An offer shall be deemed to have
been accepted by an Eligible Participant concerned in
respect of all Shares which are offered to such Eligible
Participant when the duplicate letter comprising acceptance
of the offer duly signed by the Eligible Participant, together
with a non-refundable remittance in favour of the Company
of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof is
received by the Company within such time as may be
specified in the offer.
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36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme (continued)

The subscription price for Shares under the Share Option
Scheme shall be determined at the discretion of the
Directors but in any event will not be less than the highest of
(a) the closing price of the Shares on the Stock Exchange as
shown in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange
on the offer date of the particular option, which must be a
business day; (b) the average of the closing price of the
Shares as shown in the daily quotations sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding
the offer date of the particular option; and (c) the nominal
value of a Share on the offer date of the particular option.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective
commencing from the adoption date of the Share Option
Scheme (i.e. 19 September 2013) until the termination date
as provided therein which being the close of business of the
Company on the date which falls ten years from the date of
the adoption of the Share Option Scheme (i.e. 18 September
2023). The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are
summarised in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
in Appendix IV to the Prospectus of the Company dated 30
September 2013.
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36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme (continued)

Details of specific categories of share options granted are as

166

follows:
Number of share options
BREZA
Outstanding
Exercise  atheginning Reclassification ~ Outstanding  Exercisable
Grantee Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period price ofyear  during the year atend of year  at end of year
HKS HK$
RE i RER REXR REXR
ARA RERE REH d ] 6@ KT B E ESHd TFIE
BT BT
Executive directors
BITES
Shen Ka Yip, 6 February  N/A 6 February 2015 to 1.09 200,000 (200,000) - -
Timothy 2015 5 February 2018
LRZ 20155 TEm 015F2A6HZ
(resigned on 2A68 20182 A5H
22 January 2016)
(R 2016F
1A22RET)
Lai Sze Yau, 6 February  N/A 6 February 2015 10 1.09 200,000 - 200,000 200,000
Vivien 2015 5 February 2018
2Rk 2015% T 015F2A6E8E
(resigned on 2A6H 2018F2A5H
22 January 2016)
(R 2016%F
1A 2B8T)
Shen Ka Yip, 6 February 6 February 201510 30 June 2015 to 1.09 3,800,000 (3,800,000) - -
Timothy 2015 29 June 2015 5 February 2018
NEL 2015F 015F2A6HZ 201567308
(resigned on 2A6H  2015F6A29H 2018%2K5H
22 January 2016)
(R 2016F
1A22BEHT)
Lai Sze Yau, 6 February 6 February 2015t 30 June 2015 to 1.09 3,800,000 - 3,800,000 3,800,000
Vivien 2015 29 June 2015 5 February 2018
2Rk 20155 015F2A6HE 2015F6A30H%
(resigned on 2A6H  2015F6A29H 2018%2F5H
22 January 2016)
(R2016%
1A22 BET)

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme (continued)

36. LARRD AT HFRIE (&)

BERESE 2 BRET 8 ()

Number of share options
BREHA
Outstanding
Exercise  atheginning  Reclassification ~ Outstanding  Exercisable
Grantee Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period price ofyear  during the year atend of year  at end of year
HK$ HK$
RED RER REXR REXR
ARA RLAE HEH L] THE K17 ENDR B ERiit;d
BT BT
Consultants 6 February  N/A 6 February 2015 1o 1.09 - 200,000 200,000 200,000
2015 5 February 2018
B 015%  TEH 2015F2A6HZ
2H68 201852 A58
Consultants 6 February 6 February 2015t 30 June 2015 to 1.09 - 3,800,000 3,800,000 3,800,000
2015 29 June 2015 5 February 2018
B 2015F  2015F2R6HZ 2015F6H30HZ
2A68  2015F6H29H 2018%2K5H
Consultants 6 February  N/A 6 February 2015 to 1.09 600,000 - 600,000 600,000
2015 5 February 2018
B 015%  TEAE 015F2A6E8E
2R68 2018F2A5H
Consultants 6 February  N/A 30 June 2015 to 1.09 11,400,000 - 11,400,000 11,400,000
2015 5 February 2018
B 015F  TER 015F6H30RZ
2R68 2018F2A5H
20,000,000 - 20,000,000 20,000,000
Apart from the above re-classification, no share option was BRIAESEH D BEIEI  SIEERRE

granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the year.

Share options granted to consultants were incentives for
their services to assist the Group expanding its business
network and exploring new business opportunities. The fair
values of such benefit could not be measured reliably and
as a result, fair values of share options are measured by
reference to the fair values at the measurement date.
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=
36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 36. UARBZAFHFRIE (&)
Equity-settled share option scheme (continued) BREEE 2B IRETE(E)
The estimated fair values of the options granted on 6 R2015F 2 A6 B & I/ ES IR #E 7 (H
February 2015 are determined by Peak Vision Appraisals STARET BB EEGEMSET
Limited, an independent professional valuer using the (EER AT A —ERERETE - %
Binomial model. The estimated fair values and significant At A E RE NS A SIS0
inputs into the model are as follows: N

Share options grant date

iR L A
6 February 6 February 6 February 6 February
2015 (A) 2015 (B) 2015 (C) 2015 (D)
20155 20154 20154 20154
2H6H(A) 2H6H(B) 2H6H(C) 2H6H(D)
Option price model HEFEEL Binomial Binomial Binomial Binomial
—IEs —E —IER —E
Estimated fair value at RETE BB fEET HK$77,440 HK$1,471,360 HK$116,160 HK$2,207,040
the measurement date AR {E 77440870 147136087  116,160/87T 2,207,040/8 7T
No. of options granted ERNERESE 400,000 7,600,000 600,000 11,400,000
Weighted average PAETE B EA R h0iE HK$0.99 HK$0.99 HK$0.99 HK$0.99
share price at the FHKRE 0.99%7T 0.99/8 7T 0.99%7T 0.99/87T
measurement date
Weighted average INEF1TEE HK$1.09 HK$1.09 HK$1.09 HK$1.09
exercise price 1.09%8 T 1.09% 7T 1.097%7T 1.09%8 7T
Expected volatility® TEERIR IR 35.98% 35.98% 35.98% 35.98%
Expected life® JEHRFHR@ 3 years 3 years 3 years 3 years
3F 3F 3F 3F
Risk-free rate® EERFER® 0.72% 0.72% 0.72% 0.72%
Expected dividend yield® 78 EAA% B U 25 & 4.59% 4.59% 4.59% 4.59%
Notes: Biat -
m Expected volatility was determined by reference to the volatilities of M FEHRIE 52 E BAR AR ARITEL
companies operating in the same industry as the Company. ERSARRKIBETE -
@ The expected life used in the model is the duration of the option life. @ ZEARANERFHAHEFENG
EHAR -
@ Risk-free rate adopted in the model was based on the yield of HK$ 3 7R IR 4 Y R B ﬂ?)ﬂ;@%ﬁ%;‘%
Hong Kong Sovereign Curve. FREFMBNHNSEERE
@ The historical dividend yield of the Company’s stock is used to @ AARROHBERBKGZXREERA
estimate the future dividend yield of the stock during the option LAl 5T 5 ER 75 280 ER A 6 AR 1 R 2R AR B,
validity period. W= o

1 68 Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
BRBEYEER (ZR)ERAH
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37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(@)

(b)

Performance bond and incorporated owners’ fund

Performance bond has been issued by several banks
as the Group maintains certain incorporated owners’
funds in the form of client accounts which were held
on trust for and on behalf of the incorporated owners.
These client accounts are not recognised as assets
and associated liabilities in the financial statements of
the Group. At the end of reporting period, the Directors
do not consider it probable that a claim on the
performance bonds will be made against the Group.

As at 31 March 2016, the amount of outstanding
performance bond was approximately HK$17.5 million
(2015: HK$18.2 million).

As at 31 March 2016, the aggregate amount of the
bank balances in the client accounts not dealt with in
the consolidated financial statements of the Group is
approximately HK$32.4 million (2015: HK$21.1
million).

Legal cases

In carrying out the ordinary course of business, the
Group is subject to the risk of being named as
defendant in legal actions, claims and disputes in
connection with its business activities. The nature of
the legal proceedings initiated against the Group
generally include (i) claims for employees’
compensation by the Group’s employees; (ii) claims for
personal injury caused by the negligence of the Group
and owners’ corporations of the properties by passers-
by, residents or other users of the respective
properties; (iii) claims for property damage or
economic loss caused by the negligence of the Group
and owners’ corporations of the properties by residents
or other users of the respective properties; and (iv)
claims for property damage caused by the negligence
of individual flat owners by other residents or users of
the respective properties. The Group maintains
insurance cover and, in the opinion of the directors of
the Company, based on current evidence, any such
existing claims have no material financial impact to the
Group as at 31 March 2016.
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38. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

Major non-cash transaction

Additions to property, plant and equipment during the year
of HK$559,550 (2015: HK$300,988) were financed by
finance leases.

< ¥y

38. MERTMEBRMEE

TEFRERS

REARARAEME BELXB
559,550 7T (20154 : 300,988/ 7T )
HRERERE -

39. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 39. MEHBSEH

(@) Termination of proposed open offer and (a) ARIEEZBAFRERCSHGE
underwriting agreement
On 21 April 2016, the Company announced that the R2016F4HA21H AR RAE
proposed open offer of three shares for every one 5 BRI R RE) - BIE A
share of the Company then held by the qualifying BREREEEE AN T
shareholders at a subscription price of HK$0.12 per RO LAZREBEENIR0.12/8TRE
share (the “Proposed Open Offer”) together with the =R B EEAFEE ([E&
underwriting agreement entered into between the NEEE|)  BRA AT HEHB
Company and the underwriter in connection with the EMER ARSI LN E T
Proposed Open Offer was terminated due to recent BRI M ESTENFED
volatile market conditions. Details of above are set out RIE N AT HHEA20154 12
in the Company’s announcements dated 3 December H3H 201651/ 11H 2016
2015, 11 January 2016, 5 February 2016 and 19 April F2H5HN2016F4A19B8 /K
2016 respectively NI

(b) Acquisition of a property management company b)) WE—ZRYWEEERQT

On 26 May 2016, the Company announced that it
entered into a sale and purchase agreement (“S&P")
with the independent third parties to purchase the
entire issued share capital of a company incorporated
in Hong Kong that is principally engaged in the
business of property management in Hong Kong at a
total consideration of HK$2,500,000 to be satisfied by
cash (the “Acquisition”). The completion of the
Acquisition is subject to the fulfilment of all the
conditions precedent in the S&P. Up to the approval
date on these financial statements, the Acquisition is
under progress and not yet concluded. Details of above
are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 26
May 2016.

Up to the date of this report, this acquisition has not
been completed.
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39. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(continued)

()

Establishment of strategic cooperation

On 13 June 2016, the Company and Crystal Properties
Development Limited, an independent third party
(collectively referred to as the “Parties”) entered into
the strategic cooperation agreement pursuant to which
the Parties have agreed to establish strategic
partnership in investment in and redevelopment of old
buildings in Hong Kong. As of the approval date of
these financial statements, the establishment of
strategic partnership is under progress. Details of the
above are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 13 June 2016.

40. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 20 June 2016.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

EFEHMBEHRE
¥
4
Year ended/As at 31 March
BZ3A310LEE R3A3NA
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
2016 & 20154 20144 20135 20124
HK$’000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TEx FTAT FTAT FTAT TAT
OPERATING RESULT meEE
Revenue g 374,024 339,722 324,981 284,063 276,655
Cost of services ARAS A AN (295,756) (269,280)  (258,781)  (231,764)  (230,199)
Gross profit EF 78,268 70,442 66,200 52,299 46,456
Other revenue HAbWzx 1,494 349 279 - 6,283
Administrative expenses TEAY (53,823) (44,122) (37,980) (30,422) (28,245)
Other operating expenses Hib @RS (18,991) (18,717) (19,775) (13,084) (7,495)
Finance costs BB (992) (658) (1,105) (1,559) (1,264)
Profit before taxation AR 5,956 7,294 7,619 7,234 15,735
Income tax expense PrisTif (3,141) (2,320) (2,591) (1,664) (1,794)
Net profit for the year FRRFFEE 2,815 4974 5,028 5,570 13,941
Other comprehensive income HthZEUKA
Exchange differences on BEGINEE L
translation of foreign operation EHER - - - - 194
Release of translation reserve to RHE BB AR
profit or loss upon disposal of FRBREREZER
a subsidiary - - - - (1,493)
Fair value changes of AHHESREE
available-for-sale financial asset RAREES (8,733) - - - -
Other comprehensive income FREMZEEA
for the year, net of tax (MBFE) (8,733) - - - (1,299)
Profit and total comprehensive EQRHEE AEN
income for the year attributable FRBEINRER
to owners of the Company 2HBALZE (5,918) 4974 5,028 5,570 12,642
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERERE
Total assets BEE 144,871 100,563 115,994 105,023 92,483
Total liabilities BELeE (56,529) (61,276) (62,427) (84,572) (74,032)
Net assets BEETE 88,342 39,287 53,567 20,451 18,451
Equity attributable to owners of KATEEA
the Company bR 88,342 39,287 53,567 20,451 18,451

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited

BRBEYFEEE (ZR)ERQF




Units 2201-3, 22/F, Tai Tung Building,
8 Fleming Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

BB R IEMBRE8R AR A E221£2201-3F

Tel B . (852) 3620 2166
Fax & : (852) 3620 2311
Email & & : prop@kongshum.com.hk

www.kongshum.com.hk



	封面
	創業板特色
	目錄
	公司資料
	集團架構
	主席報告
	管理層討論及分析
	董事及高級管理層履歷
	企業管治報告
	董事會報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益及其他全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	財務報表附註
	五年財務概要

